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DUANE ALEX BURT   FAYE LYNN BURT   GLENN D BURT   JOHNNY R BURT   KENNETH BURT   NATHAN S BURT   TED J BURT   CHARLES R BURTIS   CHAD BURTON   CLAYTON A BURTON   ERIC V BURTON   KENNETH J BURTON   KENT K BURTON   
PHILIP A BURTON   SANDRA S BURTON   DANIEL A BUSCHE   DENA C BUSENBARK   LISA A BUSENBARK   CHRIS L BUSENBARK JR   JEFFERY B BUSER   BENNY BUSH   DARRIN C BUSH   GEORGE BUSH   KARL D BUSH   RYAN W BUSH   
JASON PATRICK BUSHALLOW   BRETT MATHEW BUSHONG   BRIAN D BUSHONG   PAUL D BUSHONG   BOBBY BUTLER   CORY C BUTLER   ERIC J BUTLER   FRANKIE P BUTLER   GRADY EUGENE BUTLER   JAMES M BUTLER   JODY L BUTLER   
KENNETH SHANE BUTLER   LARRY DAVID BUTLER   LYNN B BUTLER   REBECCA BUTLER   ROBERT H BUTLER   TOMMY W BUTLER   ROBERT R BUTLER JR   BRAD H BUTTARS   F GENE BUTTERFIELD   RONALD E BUTTERFIELD   BRUCE W BUTTON   
ALLAN D BUTTRAM   BILL BUXTON   GREGORY BUYER   ALDEN V BYBEE   AARON J BYERLEY   MARK A BYERLEY   JOSEPH H BYERLY   TRAVIS A BYNUM   KEVIN BYRAGEE   BEAYANKA J BYRD   CHARLES R BYRD   CRAIG BYRD   DANIEL W BYRD   
JAMES BYRD   KEVIN J BYRD   MONTRAY J BYRD   WILLIAM E BYRD   CLAUDE A BYRD JR   ROBERT L BYRD JR   HENRY S BYRDIC III   TONY LYNN BYRUM   JERRY S BYWATER   EDWARD E CABLE   JEFF CABLE   ROBERT RAY CABLE   WILLIAM ANDRES CADDELL   
KENNETH L CADMAN   BAXTER MATTHEW CAGLE   DEBRA ALEENE CAGLE   GARY CAGLE   JACE CAGLE   JOSEPH CAGLE   RUDI W CAGLE   WILSON J CAGLE JR   BERNICE PETTY CAIN   CHRISTOPHER J CAIN   CHRISTOPHER L CAIN   ROBERT L CAISON JR   
GERARDO CALDERON   SIMON CALDERON   DEBRA A CALDWELL   RODNEY CALDWELL   WALTER L CALDWELL   JOHN R CALHAN   CRAIG L CALHOUN   LOWELL D CALHOUN   RICHARD J CALHOUN   CHUCK D CALLAHAN   DAVID R CALLAHAN   
KEVIN J CALLAHAN   THOMAS HOLLIS CALLAHAN JR   DENNIS W CALLOW   RICHARD CALO`OY   FERNANDO CALVILLO   CHRISTOPHER P CALVIN   WILLIE A CALVIN   ERICK CAMARENA   ROBERT G CAMARILLO   DAVID S CAMERER   JAMES E CAMERON   
YVETTE D CAMILLE   BRIAN C CAMP   CHRISTOPHER J CAMP   ALAN Q CAMPBELL   CLARENCE CAMPBELL   GARY CAMPBELL   JEFFREY C CAMPBELL   JOHN J CAMPBELL   JON CAMPBELL   KRISTINA M CAMPBELL   PETER C CAMPBELL   RICK L CAMPBELL   
VINCENT A CAMPBELL   WILLIAM E CAMPBELL   RICHARD D CAMPBELL JR   MARYANN CANCIK   BRUCE L CANNON   JERRY CANNON   KELLY D CANNON   MICHAEL CANNON   PAUL D CANNON   TERRY L CANNON   ROBERT J CANODE   
SAMUEL OLIVER CANOY JR   W STEVEN CANTLEY   DENNIS A CANTRELL   JOSE G CANTU   MARIO G CANTU   MIGUEL A CANTU   ROBERTO CANTU   DENICE B CAPEHART   BRENT G CAPENER   BRIAN D CAPP   ROLAND D CAPPELLANO   KEVIN D CAPPS   
O JOEY CAPUTO   DAVID CARATACHEA III   FRANCIS U CARBONELL   GARY D CARD   CHRISTOPHER R CAREY   DANIEL L CAREY   DUANE A CAREY   ROBERT E CAREY   TAMMY SUE CAREY   BLAKE A CARGILE   DAVID CARGILL   SHARON MARIE CARL   
BRIAN E CARLOW   PRISCILLA ANNE CARLSEN   CHRISTOPHER J CARLSON   ERIC W CARLSON   HAROLD D CARLSON   HEATHER L CARLSON   JEROME R CARLSON   RYAN L CARLSON   SCOTT R CARLSON   VICTOR R CARLSON   LANCE W CARLTON   
RONI M CARMAN   JEFFREY B CARMEAN   CHAD W CARNAHAN   JERRY W CARNAHAN   WILLIAM C CARNAHAN   DAVID W CARNELL   JERRY P CARNES   EUGENE R CARNEY   THOMAS J CARNEY   ARTHUR JOHN CARNICELLI   CHRISTIAN T CARNRIGHT   
JERRY L CARNRIKE JR   BRADLEY A CARPENTER   JAMES E CARPENTER   JAMES FLOYD CARPENTER   KENNETH E CARPENTER   LARRY E CARPENTER   LUCAS C CARPENTER   RANDY J CARPENTER   SCOTT L CARPENTER   SHEENA S CARPENTER   
SHEROLEEN L CARPENTER   STEPHEN L CARPENTER   THOMAS E CARPENTER   CHAD A CARPER   RICKIE L CARPER   RONALD D CARPER   DANIEL CARR   MICHAEL E CARR   RODOLFO CARRASCO   DONALD R CARRAWAY   JOSEPH C CARRAWAY   
ROBERT CARRIEDO   AGUSTIN CARRILLO   JOSHUA N CARRINGTON   ROBERT E CARRINGTON   BETTY K CARROLL   BRIAN CARROLL   J T CARROLL   JACK G CARROLL   JACOB PAUL CARROLL   JEREMY BRENT CARROLL   KENNETH CARROLL   
MARION L CARROLL   RICKY L CARROLL   ROGER H CARROLL   CHRISTOPHE M CARROWAY   MARTY O CARSON   CRAIG A CARSTENS   LONNIE R CARSTENS   MICHAEL A CARSTENS   TERRY L CARSTENS   JOSEPH M CARTAGENA   JEFFREY T CARTEE   
ANTHONY CARTER   BYRON J CARTER   CHAD M CARTER   CHARLES G CARTER   CHRIS EDWIN CARTER   ELDON GWYN CARTER   ELI C CARTER   JACOB CARTER   JAMES A CARTER   JASON T CARTER   JERVONE V CARTER   LARRY J CARTER   
LEON CARTER   MARC W CARTER   ODELL CARTER   SCOTT D CARTER   SCOTT R CARTER   TIM D CARTER   TIMOTHY J CARTER   CHARLES H CARTER III   GLENN R CARTWRIGHT   ANTHONY E CARVER   DENNIS CARVER   DARREN CARY   
WILLIAM V CARY   AARON T CASE   ROYCE A CASE   SHARON K CASE   BETH B CASEY   CHAD A CASEY   CHARLES D CASEY   GARETH R CASEY   KENNETH CHARLES CASEY   DONALD E CASH   JONATHAN R CASH   KORY E CASH   RICHARD D CASH   
THOMAS RAY CASH   FRANK A CASHWELL   ROGER CASON   DANIEL C CASPER   HAROLD JOSEPH CASPER   MARK E CASPER   TAMMY M CASPER   CASS CASPERSON   SCOTT D CASSEL   GARY W CASSELMAN   CHARLIE E CASSIDY   
CHRISTOPHE K CASSIDY   JEFFREY L CASSIDY   TONY R CASSIDY   JAVIER CASTANEDA   JESSE N CASTANEDA   RALPH CASTANEDA   MARK A CASTEEL   BILLY K CASTELLI   AMY L CASTILLO   JUAN F CASTILLO   FREDERICK CASTLE   
STEVEN E CASTLEBERRY   THOMAS CASTO   LUIS F CASTRO   JESSICA L CATER   TIMOTHY W CATER   AMY E CATHELL   JOHN D CATO   RONNIE CATO   LAWRENCE D CATT   JESSE J CAUSEY   JOSE G CAVAZOS   BEN R CAVE   TIMOTHY J CAYWOOD   
DANIEL R CECIL   HAROLD E CECIL   CRISTOBAL H CELAYA   DALIA Y CELESTE   MICHAEL P CENTRONE   JOSEPH M CERCHIARO   JOHN ANTHONY CEREO   MICHAEL L CERES   PAUL A CERMINARA   BACILIO CERNA A   JOSE J CERNA-RUIZ   
DOUGLAS E CERNY   JEFF CERRATA   THOMAS GERARD CERVANTES   CHRISTOPHER CHABAUD   RANDY R CHACE   MARC D CHADAZ   DAMION CHAITRAM   JOAN M CHALFONT   MARYELLEN CHAMBERLIN   RANDY L CHAMBERLIN   RANDY J CHAMNESS   
CHRISTOPHER M CHAMPION   JOSEPH B CHAMPION   LINDA Y CHAMPION   SUSIE CHAMPION   RISHANAND CHANDERBALLY   DOYLE W CHANDLER   JOHNNIE R CHANDLER   ROBERT E CHANDLER   JAMES H CHANDLER III   BRAD D CHANEY   
JULIE A CHANEY   FORREST DEAN CHAP   CHAD A CHAPEK   ADAM CHAPMAN   JACK B CHAPMAN   JEFFREY W CHAPMAN   JOE R CHAPMAN   LELAND K CHAPMAN   LESTER F CHAPMAN   MARK E CHAPMAN   BOBBY R CHAPMAN JR   JOE C CHAPPELL   
LINDA R CHAPPELL   ANDREW J CHAPPLE   JOSHUA W CHARLES   RANDOLPH F CHARLES   COY L CHARLESWOOD   SHAWN WILLIAM CHARTIER   DAVID L CHASE   DERICK A CHASTAIN   CHARLES T CHATMAN   SUBHASH C CHAUDHRY   CIRENIO CHAVEZ   
ENRIQUE CHAVEZ   RIGOBERTO CHAVEZ   PATRICIA A CHAVIS   STEVEN E CHAVIS   MARY CHAYKA   WILLIAM CHEATHAM   ZANE D CHECKETTS   WILLIAM N CHEDDAR   HOYT CHEEK   KEITH A CHEESEBORO   JASON G CHELETTE   TRACY ALLEN CHERECHINSKY   
CARDELL CHERRY   DENNIE S CHERRY   KENNETH W CHERRY   DAVID M CHERVENY   HEATH M CHESNUT   FLOYD CHESSER SR   MARCUS WILLIE CHESTNUT   MICHAEL D CHESTNUT   ANGELO CHIEPPO   LOUIS CHIEPPO   MICHAEL T CHIKOS   
AJENE CHIKUYU   BRUCE C CHILD   LOWELL D CHILDERS   SHERYL J CHILDERS   STEPHEN M CHILDERS   CARL S CHILDRESS   KENNETH C CHILDRESS   THOMAS M CHILSON   SHARI L CHINEVERE   JESSE CHIPMAN   ANJANI CHITTAJALLU   
JERRY M CHITWOOD   HYO H CHOI   BRAD L CHORPENNING   AMIT K CHOUDHRI   SCOTT E CHRISMAN   DARREN CHRISTENSEN   EDWARD C CHRISTENSEN   GARY KEITH CHRISTENSEN   MICHAEL B CHRISTENSEN   CLETA M CHRISTIAN   
DAVID BRYAN CHRISTIAN   BILLY CHRISTIANSEN   CLAIR D CHRISTIANSEN   TRAVIS R CHRISTIANSEN   WAYNE B CHRISTIANSEN   JEREMY B CHRISTIE   CHRISTOPHER J CHRISTMAN   JASON C CHRISTMAN   ROBERT D CHRISTMAN   JERRY F CHRISTMAS   
TERRY L CHRISTMAS   KENNETH L CHRISTOFFERSEN   PAUL H CHRYST JR   STANLEY CHU   JAMES R CHURCH   RICHARD S CHURCHILL   TAMMY CHURCHWELL   JASON W CIEPIELA   KEITH A CIEPIELA   CONNIE L CIESLINSKI   TERRY CIESLINSKI   
KEITH A CILLS   CATHERINE L CIPRA   KIMBERLY B CLANTON   KYLEE M CLANTON   ALAN D CLARK   AMY L CLARK   BENJAMIN M CLARK   CHRISTOPHER C CLARK   DALE O CLARK   DUANE D CLARK   G YVONNE CLARK   JASON M CLARK   JEFFREY T CLARK   
MARK A CLARK   ROBERT D CLARK   STEVEN S CLARK   WILLIAM B CLARK   WILLIAM P CLARK   ZACHARY CLARK   CHARLES J CLARK JR   CHARLES R CLARK JR   JACK CLARK JR   PHILLIP L CLARKE   ROBERT JEFFREY CLARKE   VICKI T CLARKE   
WILLIAM R CLARKSTON   FORREST F CLARY   JUSTIN ADAM CLARY   JACK C CLASSEN   HEATH P CLAUSEN   SCOTT P CLAWSON   DENNIS L CLAY   TORRY D CLAY   CHAS CLAYBAUGH   HERROD CLAYBROOKS   D KURT CLAYTON   SHERRI CLAYTON   
ROBERT A CLEGG   CURTIS S CLEM   KENNETH O CLEM   RICHARD L CLEMANS   COURY T CLEMENTS   JERRY FARISH CLEMONS   DANIEL J CLER   BRANDON L CLEVELAND   CHARLES CLEVELAND JR   DALE CLEVER   PAUL ELMER CLIFT   
CHRISTOPHER L CLIFTON   SCOTT R CLINE   RANDALL E CLINES   STEVE CLINES   RICHARD J CLINTON   ROSS E CLODFELTER   ROGER W CLONCS   DANNY J CLOWERS   PAUL A CMOREY   MAXWELL SCOTT COAPMAN   WILLIAM A COATES   
JOSEPH R COATS   CHRISTOPHER W COBB   RICHARD E COBB   RODNEY G COBB   STEVEN D COBB   WILLIAM H COBB   KYLE COBBLEY   NELDON COBBLEY   CHARLIE COBBS   KORICO S COBIN   JAMES M COBLIN   FLOYD C COBURN   ROGER L COBURN   
GREGORY A COCHRAN   MARY A COCHRAN   TIMOTHY D COCHRAN   WILLIAM J COCHRAN   DAVID J COCKCROFT   RAYMOND W COCKRELL   CHAD J COCKRIEL   SEAN E CODY   LORENZO COE   JAMES T COFER   JOSHUA S COFFER   AMANDA JO COFFEY   
THOMAS H COFFEY   CHARLES STEVEN COFFING   GLENN D COFFMAN   JAMES E COFFMAN   WILLIAM COFFMAN   DANNY G COGGINS   PAUL W COHEE   CANDACE E COHEN   DELVIN R COHEN   BELINDA W COKER   QUENT L COKER   STEVE O COKER   
TIMOTHY L COKER   JAMES M COKER II   STEVEN S COKER II   CHRISTINE S COLBURN   JIMMY W COLBURN   ALBERT L COLE   BRIAN J COLE   DAVID E COLE   DOUGLAS J COLE   GREGORY B COLE   JIMMY D COLE   MICHAEL W COLE   MONICA S COLE   
RABORN D COLE   RICHARD MICHAEL COLE   ROBERT JAMES COLE   WILLIAM COLE   JAMES M COLEGROVE   RONALD ANTHONY COLELLA   ALVIN B COLEMAN   CALVIN L COLEMAN   CHARLENE COLEMAN   CYNTHIA W COLEMAN   DAVID W COLEMAN   
JAMES O COLEMAN   JASON R COLEMAN   JEFFREY P COLEMAN   JOE E COLEMAN   KENNETH G COLEMAN   LLOYD COLEMAN   TAMARA L COLEMAN   JEFFREY L COLER   IAN D COLES   KAREN L COLETTA   BRIAN K COLGAN   DARRIN R COLLARD   
HARLEY DAVID COLLARD   JOHN T COLLARD   JOHN W COLLETT   KENNETH C COLLETT   TED J COLLETTE   KAREN J COLLEY   DOUGLAS G COLLIER   LINWOOD F COLLIER   TIM N COLLIER   WILLIAM H COLLIER   JIMMY W COLLIER JR   BRUCE COLLINS   
CHRISTOPHER J COLLINS   CONSTANCE L COLLINS   DAVID L COLLINS   DONNIS COLLINS   DOUGLAS COLLINS   DURAND M COLLINS   ERIC P COLLINS   GEORGE W COLLINS   JAMES D COLLINS   JERALD K COLLINS   JOSHUA L COLLINS   
ROBERT L COLLINS   ROBERT W COLLINS   ROBIN COLLINS   RONALD COLLINS   SCOTT COLLINS   JOSEPH COLLINS JR   ALISA M COLLINS-CREACH   ROBERT WESLEY COLLINSII   JAY T COLLINSWORTH   MICHAEL R COLLOM   ROBERT K COLTON   
LORENZA COLTRANE JR   VICTOR L COLWELL   SARA I COMBS   THOMAS COMBS   JOHNNY COMMANDER   SAMUEL E COMMELLA JR   JAMES L COMMENT   JEREMIAH J COMMENT   ROBERTA E COMMENT   BRIAN G COMPTON   CHARLES E COMPTON   
TERRY COMPTON   ADAM J COMSTOCK   GEORGE CONAWAY JR   AIMEE M CONGLETON   DAVID A CONKLIN   BRYAN G CONLEY   JOHN E CONLEY   RICHARD ALLEN CONLEY   CLARK C CONLEY IV   CHRISTOPHER AUSTIN CONNERS   WILLIAM LEE CONOVER   
JON CARSON CONSTANT   ALBERT E CONTOIS JR   DENIS H CONTRERAS   KEVIN L CONWAY   STEVEN CONWAY   DAVID T CONYERS   ERIC E CONYERS   GERALD T CONYERS JR   AUBREY J COOK   BRIAN C COOK   CHAD L COOK   CRAIG M COOK   
DANIEL P COOK   DAVID COOK   DEAN E COOK   EDDIE J COOK   FRANCIS J COOK   GARY EDWARD COOK   JAMES D COOK   JAMIE COOK   JOHN W COOK   KENNETH C COOK   KEVIN L COOK   MARK COOK   ROBERT J COOK   ROY COOK   SAMUEL A COOK   
SCOTT COOK   STONEY HOWARD COOK   THOMAS W COOK   TIMOTHY W COOK   BRYCE M COOKE   FRANK L COOKS   DON K COOL   MATTHEW COOL   JEFFERY L COOLEY   MICHAEL TODD COOLEY   CHARLES E COOLIDGE   STANLEY A COONCE   
ANDREW JOSEPH COOPER   BRETT K COOPER   BRIAN A COOPER   BRIAN K COOPER   DOUGLAS F COOPER   FRANKIE L COOPER   GARY L COOPER   GREGORY T COOPER   JASON M COOPER   JEFFREY A COOPER   JEREMY M COOPER   
KERRY D COOPER   PATRICK COOPER   RANDALL K COOPER   RANDY B COOPER   ROGER D COOPER   SAMUEL K COOPER   SHAWN M COOPER   W KENT COOPER   WILLIAM C COOPER II   DONALD E COOPER JR   JOHN G COOPER JR   DARRELL A COPE   
JAMES W COPE   MARK B COPE   ROBERT L COPE JR   ANGELA MARIE COPELAND   JASON HARMON COPELAND   LARRY E COPELAND   STEPHEN W COPELAND   BRIAN T COPLEA   MARK H COPPENGER   MICHAEL E COPPOTELLI   MICHAEL W CORBELL   
MICHAEL CORBETT   PATRICE ANN CORBETT   ROBERT B CORBETT   HERBERT CORBIN   GREGORY CORDIAL   EDWARD CORDOVA   LOUIS R CORDOVA   STEVEN CORDOVA   FRANCIS ELLIOTT CORDREY JR   NICHOLAS J COREA   GREGERY A COREY   
D COLE CORGATELLI   THOMAS CORLETT   BONNIE CORLEY   CLINT CORLEY   SAMUEL CORNABY   CHRISTOPHER CHARLES CORNE   BREVAN T CORNELIUS   TRAVIS D CORNELIUS   CHARLES E CORNELL   LEAH R CORNETT   SHAWN CORNETT   
AVERY L CORNIELL-DE LA CRUZ   DAMON S CORNISH-II   DUSTIN CORNS   RONALD D CORNWELL   MARK CORTEZ   MICHAEL S CORWIN   STEPHEN ARTHUR CORY   CAMERON A COSSETTE   JANA PATRICE COSSEY   MICHAEL CRAIG COST   
HOWARD E COSTA   MARIE A COSTANZO   BUFORD D COSTEPHENS JR   GUY TOMMY COSTNER   EDDIE A COTHRAN   JONAS D COTLER   CHRIS N COTSONES   JAMES D COTTEN   PHILLIP A COTTEN   RONALD H COTTEN   RONALD L COTTEN   
JOHN W COTTEN JR   THOMAS E COTTEN JR   CAROLYN S COTTON   CATHERINE COTTON   JEREMY R COTTON   JACOB COTTRELL   RICARDO V COTTRELL   CHRISTOPHER COUCH   JAMES M COUGHLIN   PAUL N COUNTS   ELIZABETH A COURT   
N RICHARD COURTEMANCHE   RANDY A COURTNEY   MARK A COURTRIGHT   CHARLES E COURVILLE   JOSEPH P COURVILLE   ROBERT E COUSINS   WILLIAM C COUSINS   PHILLIP M COUVILLION   JIMMY R COVINGTON   STEVEN D COVINGTON   
BRUCE B COWAN   COREY S COWAN   TERESA L COWAN   ELEANOR ANN COWAN-HUNTER   JOEY G COWARD   ROBERT L COWARD   ROGER D COWARD   RYAN E COWARD   THOMAS W COWARD   DAVID N COWART   KENNETH D COWART   
STEVE COWART   MARK A COWGER   CECIL R COWSERT   CHRISTOPHER S COX   CLYDE A COX   DANNY L COX   GERRY D COX   GUY D COX   JOSEPH L COX   JOSEPH M COX   MARY R COX   MATTHEW A COX   MICHAEL G COX   MICHAEL M COX   
ROBERT J COX   SAMUEL R COX   STEVEN P COX   TERRY C COX   VICTOR S COX   WALTER J COX   WILLIAM T COX   JOHNNY CARLTON COX II   GUY FRANKLIN COX JR   LARRY COYKENDALL   DEBORAH COYLE   CHARLES V COZZENS   
BARBARA ANNETTE CRABB   CHARLES E CRABB   SHAWN ERIC CRABTREE   WILLIAM M CRAFT   WARREN E CRAGO   DANIEL LEE CRAIG   MITCH W CRAIG   RANDALL CRAIG   ORION D CRAIGUE   KELLIE M CRAIN   DAVID E CRANFORD   SCOTT G CRANSTON   
TERRY D CRAVALHO   ROY B CRAVEY   JAMES L CRAWFORD   JIMMY R CRAWFORD   LUANN CRAWFORD   MIKLE R CRAWFORD   MITCH CRAWFORD   PAUL D CRAWFORD   THOMAS EUGENE CRAWFORD   ANITA CREAG   JOE W CREAGER   JOEL W CREAGER   
BOBBY DEAN CREAMER   RANDALL D CREASY   DANIEL W CREEK   MATTHEW CREEK   HEATHER L CREELY   GREGORY CREESON   HOWARD F CREGER   JAMES T CRENSHAW   DONALD C CREW   TED DOUGLAS CREWS   LEWIS DIAL CREWS IV   
COREY S CRIDER   DENNIS CRILLO   MICHAEL L CRILLO   LESTER L CRIM   REBECCA ANN CRIM   CHRISTOPHER R CRIPPEN   GREGORY D CRISP   MICHAEL EDWARD CRISS JR   RYAN J CRIST   RONALD G CRITES   JOHN CROCKER   BRUCE G CROCKETT   
MICHAEL E CROCKETT   ROBERT G CROLL   GREGORY A CROOKER   SANDRA CROOKS   GREGORY T CROSBY   DONALD EDWIN CROSS   PHILLIP R CROSS   STEPHEN E CROSS   R BRADLEY CROSSETT   BRIAN CROSSKNO   RAYMOND C CROTTY   
CARRIE L CROUCH   GARY L CROUCH   JERAMY SHANE CROUCH   JEREMIAH W CROUCH   STEPHEN W CROUCH   HAROLD D CROW   JAMIE D CROWDEN   CARL A CROWDER   HEATH CROWE   DAVID L CROWELL   KEVIN L CROWL   CHAD A CROWTHER   
DEBORAH K CRUEA   DERICK CRUICKSHANK   DONNIE L CRUM   JAMES A CRUMLEY   MICHEAL A CRUMMEY   MICHAEL CRUMP   DARYN E CRUMRIN   GLENN E CRUSE JR   NICKY J CRUTCHER   JEANETTE N CRUZ   TITO CRUZ JR   DAVID CUCH   
TIMOTHY J CUDE   JAIME A CUEVAS   SAM D CULLER   SUMNER R CULLOM JR   KEVIN CULP   RONALD R CULPEPPER   SHELDON CUMBERBATCH   ROBERT R CUMBIE JR   JAMES C CUMINGS   DONALD R CUMINGS JR   KARAC I CUMMINGS   
JAMES EDGAR CUMMINGS JR   DAVID L CUNEY   CHARLES M CUNNINGHAM   CHRIS C CUNNINGHAM   CREED C CUNNINGHAM   DAVID CUNNINGHAM   MATT CUNNINGHAM   SHANE N CUNNINGHAM   RITA J CUPSTID   JOHNNY CURRIE   JOSHUA P CURRIE   
KAREN CURRIE   MARK CURRIE   MATTHEW J CURRIE   RUSSELL CURRIE   MICHAEL D CURRIN   DAVID M CURRY   JAMES DEAN CURRY   RICKY A CURRY   GERALD A CURTIN   KATHRYN J CURTIN   CHRISTOPHER A CURTIS   JASON B CURTIS   
LAWRENCE D CURTIS   PAUL D CURTIS   ROBERT SCOTT CURTIS   RYAN P CURTIS   STEVEN W CURTIS   DALE E CURWICK   ANTHONY D CUSSANO II   JOSEPH LEE CUTCHIN JR   DENNIS CUTLER   KENNETH L CZARNEK   JOHN S CZARNIECKI   
DANIEL A CZUBAT   FREDDIE D'AGNESE   ANTHONY R D'ANDREA II   ANTHONY E D'ANGELO   RONNIE DABIDEEN   CHARLES E DABNEY III   CHRIS E DACUS   DANNY H DACUS   JASON S DACUS   ELEANA MARIE DAEFFLER   THEODORE REED DAEFFLER   
WAYNE DAHL   BRAD R DAHLE   ANDREW J DAHLHEIM   CHAD F DAHLKOETTER   STEPHEN R DAHLKOETTER   RENE J DAIGLE   TONY DAIL   BENJAMIN C DAILEY   MARLIN L DAILEY   RICHARD KEITH DAILEY   MICHAEL DAILY   JEFFERY L DALEY   
LARRY A DALKE   CLARENCE B DALRYMPLE   GREGGORY A DALTON   KATHALEEN K DALTON   TIFFANY KING DALTON   MICHAEL J DAMICO JR   ANDREW DAMM   NICHOLAS DAMM   CHARLES P DAMPIER   HARRELL C DAMRON   FARRELL DANCER   
BRADLEY E DANGLER   ANTHONY U DANIEL   COLON D DANIEL   ERLWIN S DANIEL   FREDERICK DANIEL   JOSEPH GORDON DANIEL   MALCOM R DANIEL   ORRIN L DANIEL   PAUL D DANIEL   STEVE L DANIEL   TIMOTHY WAYNE DANIELL   BARBARA J DANIELS   
BRENDA D DANIELS   BRYAN DANIELS   CHARLES S DANIELS   CHUCK O DANIELS   GARY D DANIELS   GILBERT REESE DANIELS   JAMES E DANIELS   JOSEPH ERIC DANIELS   KENNON B DANIELS   LEE A DANIELS   OWEN J DANIELS   THOMAS BRENT DANIELS   
WILLIAM C DANIELS   DAVID B DANIELSON   DONNA M DANNER   JAMES J DANNER   BRANDON J DANSBY   ANTHONY J DANTONIO II   USHAH DANZY   TERRY A DARBY   BRYAN S DARNELL   JASON L DARROW   JAMES R DARSEY   SHAR A DARWISH   
MICHAEL A DASGUPTA   NEENA DASS   TOMMY L DATES   PHILIP M DAUGHERTY   GIFFIN F DAUGHTRIDGE   CHARLES T DAVENPORT   DAVID BRIAN DAVENPORT   GARY J DAVENPORT   PERRY G DAVENPORT   ARTHUR LEE DAVENPORT JR   JAMES R DAVID   
JOE M DAVID   RYAN L DAVID   GARY R DAVIDSON   JASON W DAVIDSON   JOHN L DAVIDSON   JOHN MIKHALE DAVIDSON   RODNEY D DAVIDSON   BRIAN J DAVIES   CHRISTOPHER L DAVIES   CORY W DAVIES   JAMES R DAVIES   AARON J DAVIS   
ALAN KEITH DAVIS   ANTHONY J DAVIS   BRANDON YARBER DAVIS   BRIAN KEITH DAVIS   BYRON J DAVIS   CARL N DAVIS   CASEY G DAVIS   CHADWICK E DAVIS   CHRISTOPHER L DAVIS   CHRISTOPHER S DAVIS   CLARA L DAVIS   CONNIE F DAVIS   
COY L DAVIS   DANIEL R DAVIS   DAPHNE N DAVIS   DAVID ALLEN DAVIS   DAVID S DAVIS   DENNIS S DAVIS   EVIE N DAVIS   GERALD D DAVIS   GREGORY E DAVIS   HAROLD L DAVIS   HILEY R DAVIS   JAMES DAVID DAVIS   JAMES M DAVIS   JAN WALTER DAVIS   
JEFFERY L DAVIS   JEREMY A DAVIS   JOAN L DAVIS   KEITH DAVIS   KEITH DAVIS   KEITH B DAVIS   KENNY W DAVIS   LARRY D DAVIS   MARK DAVIS   MARK A DAVIS   MARK V DAVIS   MARK WAYNE DAVIS   MARYANN J DAVIS   MATTHEW J DAVIS   
MICHELLE A DAVIS   NATHAN E DAVIS   PHILLIP MICHAEL DAVIS   RHONDA M DAVIS   RICHARD T DAVIS   RICKY J DAVIS   ROBERT DAVIS   ROBERT A DAVIS   SCOTT C DAVIS   STACEY K DAVIS   STEPHEN J DAVIS   TERRENCE L DAVIS   TERRY E DAVIS   
THOMAS E DAVIS   TIMMY DAVIS   TOM DAVIS   TOMMY G DAVIS   ULYSSES DAVIS   WHIT L DAVIS   WILLIAM L DAVIS   WILLIE DAVIS   JAMES K DAVIS JR   VERNON E DAVIS JR   WILLIE W DAVIS JR   DAVID EARL DAVIS SR   TRENT W DAVISON   
CARL C DAVISON SR   DAVID ALLAN DAVOLT JR   THEOPOLIS DAWKINS JR   EDIE JO DAWSON   RONALD D DAWSON   SAMMY DAWSON   CLYDE A DAY   COURTNEY DAY   DARREN L DAY   GARLAND C DAY   JERRY A DAY   RAYMOND A DAY   DAVE DAYS   
LIONEL E DAYTON   TOM J DAZEY   ROBERT F DE MEO   CRAIG V DEAKIN   FRANK DEAKIN   CARL W DEAM   MICHAEL R DEAMER   DANIEL J DEAN   SHANE DEAN   STANLEY J DEAN   DONALD G DEAN II   FRANCIS N DEAN JR   KIMBERLY D DEARING   
ROY G DEARMAN   JOHNNY R DEAS   ROBERT B DEAS   THOMAS DEAS III   JOHNNY J DEASE   WADE DEASE   LARRY PAUL DEATON   REBECCA CHERRY DEATRICK   THOMAS J DEATRICK   ROBIN L DEBES   MARCUS E DEBOARD   JOHN L DECAPRIO   
MIGUELITO DECASAS   WILLIAM R DECKARD   DONALD G DECKELMAN   WILLIAM H DECKER   GEORGE DECKLING JR   FREDERICK J DEDERMAN   JOHN F DEDMON   LINN T DEEDRICK   LINNIE C DEEDS   IAN DEEKS   DOUGLAS J DEENIK   MATTHEW D DEENIK   
ROBERT DEERE   JEFFREY S DEERING   MELISSA DEES   ROSS DEETER   LEON H DEFENDORF   MARK N DEFILIPPO   KEVIN J DEFOOR   KEVIN L DEFRIEZ   PERRY C DEGROFF   FRED R DEHART   STEVEN DEHART   BRANDON L DEHEK   MICHAEL D DEHLING   
MICHAEL DEL GRECO   NICK J DELACRUZ   RICARDO DELACRUZ   JEFFERY L DELAGRANGE   JERRY W DELANCEY   RICKY DELANCEY   DAVID M DELANEY   DANIEL L DELEON   ORLANDO DELGADO   CHARLES R DELL   ROBERT L DELLINGER JR   
CURTIS K DELOATCH   TIMOTHY L DELOATCH   DONALD E DELONG   RALPH DEMARTINO   DENNIS D DEMIERRE   JOHN L DEMPSEY   PATRICK M DEMPSEY   JEFFREY R DENARD   KEVIN S DENARD   JOANN M DENAULT   WILLIE DENBY   JOEL M DENDINGER   
LIN DENG   JOHN DENMAN   DOREEN DENMARK   ISIAH L DENMARK   THERON S DENMARK   ABRAHAM DENMARK JR   CRAIG J DENNARD   JAMES CADE DENNEY   CHARLES DENNIS   CHARLES R DENNIS   DONALD WILLIAM DENNIS   GENE A DENNIS   
KENNETH W DENNIS   COX N DENNIS III   ORVILLE DENNIS JR   BRUCE C DENNISON   JASON R DENNISON   PHILLIP O DENNISON   JOHN B DENNY II   ALAN J DENO   TIMOTHY DENSON   MAC DENT   JOHN G DENTON   MICHAEL W DENTON   
RONALD WAYNE DENTON   TAMMY R DENTON   BRIAN L DEPEW   STANLEY V DEPEW   TIMOTHY A DEPRETIS   PHIL DEPRIEST   THOMAS E DEPRIEST JR   MARK T DEPUE   NIKOLAS A DEPUGH   ROBERT A DEPUGH   TIMOTHY T DEPUGH   PHILIP DEROSA   
JOHN R DERSHEM   MICHAEL A DESEGUIRANT   CODY LEE DESPAIN   JESSE W DESPAIN   ROBERT DESPAIN   RONALD L DESPAIN   MARK R DEUEL   DEBORAH DEVALCOURT   ERIC C DEVALL   JOE T DEVALL   RODNEY R DEVALL   JAMES WILSON DEVIS JR   
DARRELL L DEVORS   JOHN P DEVROUDE   CLINTON M DEWEY   JAMES M DEXTER   STEPHEN C DEXTER   JOHN Q DIAMOND   GREG T DIAS   MARIA A DIAS   JASON G DIAZ   JOSEPH VICTOR DIAZ   ONASSIS O DIAZ   GREGORY F DIBBLE   KEITH N DIBBLE   
ROBERT B DICE   CHRISTOPHER J DICK   JOHN R DICK   CARROLL RONALD DICKENS   BRENT E DICKER   CHARLES H DICKERHOFF   DREW DICKERSON   I LEE DICKERSON   RONALD L DICKERSON   WAYLON LLOYD DICKERSON   BARBARA A DICKEY   
DANIEL E DICKEY   HARVEY J DICKEY   JEFF A DICKEY   JOHN L DICKEY   JOHN S DICKEY   KEVIN DICKEY   DANIEL E DICKINSON   PHILIP M DICKSON   CLAYTON D DIDION   RODGER M DIEDE   COREENA DIEDRICH   LOUIS DIEHL   RANDY J DIEHL   
DAVID D DIEKMANN   DANIEL G DIEMER   JACOB R DIETRICH   KATIE DAVIS DIGGS   TERRY W DIGGS   JAMES V DIGIANDOMENICO   MARK A DIGIROLAMO   CLAYTON E DILDAY JR   ORAN R DILL   JOHNNY DILL JR   MICHAEL L DILLINGHAM   
RHONDA M DILLMAN   DANIEL P DILTS   KEITH A DILTS   REFUGIO O DIMAS   DANIEL R DIMICCO   GUEORGUI A DIMITROV   RHONDA DIMON   WALLACE D DINGLE   DONALD W DINGLER   CURTIS L DINKEL   ROBERT PETER DINOTO   PRIYA DIPSINGH   
BRIAN ANTHONY DISANTO   DAVID A DITTMER   VERNON DITTRICH JR   DAVID RICHARD DIX   PAUL C DIX   BRENDA G DIXON   DAVID L DIXON   JANIE P DIXON   SHAWN JAMES DIXON   SHAWN LAUERN DIXSON   CHRISTOPHER L DOBBINS   
JERRY G DOBBINS   TRACY KENNETH DOBBS   STANLEY J DOBRZYNSKI   BOBBY D DODD   BRYAN DODD   KEITH L DODD   DAVID C DODGEN   JESSIE W DODGEN   DOUGLAS S DOERR   ANDREW D DOLDER   RICHARD L DOLESH   JAMES R DOLLAR   
KELLY G DOLLAWAY   KIAN M DOLSEN   STEPHEN J DOLSEN   BALTAZAR DOMINGUEZ   JAVIER DOMINGUEZ   JERONIMO DOMINGUEZ   JUAN DOMINGUEZ   JULIO DOMINGUEZ   MARGARITO DOMINGUEZ   MARTIN DOMINGUEZ   MIGUEL DOMINGUEZ   
OCTAVIO DOMINGUEZ   SALVADOR DOMINGUEZ   FREDI DOMINGUEZ SOTO   BRENDA MARIE DOMINISSE   DOUGLAS L DOMINISSE   KEARNEY DONAHUE   CEDRIC DONALD   FELTON DONALD   LESTER R DONALD   E JASON DONALDSON   
DAVID NICHOLAS DONCH   DOUGLAS K DONE   WILSON DONE III   KEVIN JAMES DONEY   ROBERT D DONLEY JR   JAYSON P DONOVAN   MICHAEL G DONOVAN   MICHAEL DOOLEY   TIMOTHY L DOOLEY   BRETT M DOOLITTLE   JEFFERY J DORAN   
BRENT DORFE   RICHARD B DORMAN   DAVIS L DORSEY   KEITH L DORSEY   STEPHEN V DORSEY   ROBERT DOS SANTOS   ALVIN J DOSS   JASON OWEN DOSS   LARRY DOSSER   ANTHONY J DOSSETT   PHILLIP R DOSSETT   LESLIE R DOUD   
DUSTIN D DOUGHTY   DAVID L DOUGLAS   DEBRA A DOUGLAS   DON E DOUGLAS   GERALD W DOUGLAS   JEFFREY A DOUGLAS   KATHLEEN M DOUGLAS   RICHARD L DOUGLAS   THERESA E DOUGLAS   DAN W DOUGLASS   WILLIAM H DOUGLASS   
D BLAINE DOUTRE   BRADLEY D DOVE   ROBERT S DOVER   STEPHEN DOW   KENNETH DOWDY   KELLY J DOWLESS   DARCIE M DOWLING   JOSEPH W DOWNEY   RICHARD DOWNEY   JOSHUA J DOWNIE   LAWRENCE S DOWNS   JAMES P DOYLE III   
BRENT R DRAKE   DANIEL B DRAKE   DALE R DRAPER   EARL C DRAUGHN   PATRICIA M DREHER   THOMAS JAMES DRENT   DAVID J DREVECKY   DARLA J DREW   KEGAN D DREW   THOMAS W DREW   JERRY D DREWS   BOBBY R DRIGGERS   
DARREN L DRIGGERS   GENE H DRIGGERS   STEVEN A DRIGGERS   KENNETH DRIGGINS   WILLIAM O DRISKELL JR   JOHN L DRISLAN   WALTER DROCZAK   STEVEN W DROLLINGER   DEAN A DRUDGE   LEONARD J DRYDEN   MARK B DRYMALLA   
DANIEL W DUBY   TOMAS DUCHECK   ABRAHAM T DUCKETT   TED L DUCKETT   BILLIE J DUCKSWORTH   TRAVIS E DUCLOS   TIMOTHY L DUDA   JACQUELINE DUDLEY   LATRICE N DUDLEY   DAVID J DUFALA   DEREK CRAIG DUFFY   PATRICK E DUFFY   
JOHNIE M DUGAN   ROBERT DUHON   HERBERT DUKE   VIRGIL L DUKE   HERBERT A DUKE JR   DONALD E DUKES   JON DUKES   EDDIE J DUMONTELLE   ERIC A DUNAVIN   CHRISTOPHER J DUNBAR   ERIC V DUNBAR   KRISTINA L DUNBAR   
APRIL DANIELLE DUNCAN   BLAINE DUNCAN   RHONDA L DUNCAN   ROGER A DUNCAN   CLARENCE P DUNCAN JR   SAM DUNCAN JR   EARL W DUNCOMBE   CHAD D DUNHAM   HAROLD R DUNKERSON   CYNTHIA LYNN DUNLAP   JAMES L DUNLAP   
BRIAN L DUNLOW   JAMES W DUNLOW   JEFFERY C DUNLOW   FERNANDO C DUNN   GREGORY L DUNN   PAUL C DUNN   SARAH DUNN   TONY DWAYNE DUNN   PRESTON L DUNN JR   JOHN STEPHEN DUNNAVANT   DANA M DUNNE   WILLIAM FRANCIS DUNSTER   
BOBBY DUPREE   JEFFREY J DURAND   ADRIEL U DUREN   CHRISTOPHER DURHAM   MICHAEL J DURIE   MARK S DURR   DAWN A DUTTON   LOUIS W DUTTON   MICHAEL W DUTTON   PATRICIA RAMONA DUTTON   CECIL H DUTTON JR   HEATH A DYCUS   
ALBERT L DYER   BILLY R DYER   CLEATUS O DYESS   JON M DYESS   DANIEL J DYGERT   TROY DYKES   STANLEY MATTHEW DZUBA   JEROME W DZUIBCZYNSKI   BRIAN D EADDY   JAMES EADDY   MARION E EADDY   STEPHEN R EADES   GARRY KEVIN EADS   
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DUANE ALEX BURT   FAYE LYNN BURT   GLENN D BURT   JOHNNY R BURT   KENNETH BURT   NATHAN S BURT   TED J BURT   CHARLES R BURTIS   CHAD BURTON   CLAYTON A BURTON   ERIC V BURTON   KENNETH J BURTON   KENT K BURTON   
PHILIP A BURTON   SANDRA S BURTON   DANIEL A BUSCHE   DENA C BUSENBARK   LISA A BUSENBARK   CHRIS L BUSENBARK JR   JEFFERY B BUSER   BENNY BUSH   DARRIN C BUSH   GEORGE BUSH   KARL D BUSH   RYAN W BUSH   
JASON PATRICK BUSHALLOW   BRETT MATHEW BUSHONG   BRIAN D BUSHONG   PAUL D BUSHONG   BOBBY BUTLER   CORY C BUTLER   ERIC J BUTLER   FRANKIE P BUTLER   GRADY EUGENE BUTLER   JAMES M BUTLER   JODY L BUTLER   
KENNETH SHANE BUTLER   LARRY DAVID BUTLER   LYNN B BUTLER   REBECCA BUTLER   ROBERT H BUTLER   TOMMY W BUTLER   ROBERT R BUTLER JR   BRAD H BUTTARS   F GENE BUTTERFIELD   RONALD E BUTTERFIELD   BRUCE W BUTTON   
ALLAN D BUTTRAM   BILL BUXTON   GREGORY BUYER   ALDEN V BYBEE   AARON J BYERLEY   MARK A BYERLEY   JOSEPH H BYERLY   TRAVIS A BYNUM   KEVIN BYRAGEE   BEAYANKA J BYRD   CHARLES R BYRD   CRAIG BYRD   DANIEL W BYRD   
JAMES BYRD   KEVIN J BYRD   MONTRAY J BYRD   WILLIAM E BYRD   CLAUDE A BYRD JR   ROBERT L BYRD JR   HENRY S BYRDIC III   TONY LYNN BYRUM   JERRY S BYWATER   EDWARD E CABLE   JEFF CABLE   ROBERT RAY CABLE   WILLIAM ANDRES CADDELL   
KENNETH L CADMAN   BAXTER MATTHEW CAGLE   DEBRA ALEENE CAGLE   GARY CAGLE   JACE CAGLE   JOSEPH CAGLE   RUDI W CAGLE   WILSON J CAGLE JR   BERNICE PETTY CAIN   CHRISTOPHER J CAIN   CHRISTOPHER L CAIN   ROBERT L CAISON JR   
GERARDO CALDERON   SIMON CALDERON   DEBRA A CALDWELL   RODNEY CALDWELL   WALTER L CALDWELL   JOHN R CALHAN   CRAIG L CALHOUN   LOWELL D CALHOUN   RICHARD J CALHOUN   CHUCK D CALLAHAN   DAVID R CALLAHAN   
KEVIN J CALLAHAN   THOMAS HOLLIS CALLAHAN JR   DENNIS W CALLOW   RICHARD CALO`OY   FERNANDO CALVILLO   CHRISTOPHER P CALVIN   WILLIE A CALVIN   ERICK CAMARENA   ROBERT G CAMARILLO   DAVID S CAMERER   JAMES E CAMERON   
YVETTE D CAMILLE   BRIAN C CAMP   CHRISTOPHER J CAMP   ALAN Q CAMPBELL   CLARENCE CAMPBELL   GARY CAMPBELL   JEFFREY C CAMPBELL   JOHN J CAMPBELL   JON CAMPBELL   KRISTINA M CAMPBELL   PETER C CAMPBELL   RICK L CAMPBELL   
VINCENT A CAMPBELL   WILLIAM E CAMPBELL   RICHARD D CAMPBELL JR   MARYANN CANCIK   BRUCE L CANNON   JERRY CANNON   KELLY D CANNON   MICHAEL CANNON   PAUL D CANNON   TERRY L CANNON   ROBERT J CANODE   
SAMUEL OLIVER CANOY JR   W STEVEN CANTLEY   DENNIS A CANTRELL   JOSE G CANTU   MARIO G CANTU   MIGUEL A CANTU   ROBERTO CANTU   DENICE B CAPEHART   BRENT G CAPENER   BRIAN D CAPP   ROLAND D CAPPELLANO   KEVIN D CAPPS   
O JOEY CAPUTO   DAVID CARATACHEA III   FRANCIS U CARBONELL   GARY D CARD   CHRISTOPHER R CAREY   DANIEL L CAREY   DUANE A CAREY   ROBERT E CAREY   TAMMY SUE CAREY   BLAKE A CARGILE   DAVID CARGILL   SHARON MARIE CARL   
BRIAN E CARLOW   PRISCILLA ANNE CARLSEN   CHRISTOPHER J CARLSON   ERIC W CARLSON   HAROLD D CARLSON   HEATHER L CARLSON   JEROME R CARLSON   RYAN L CARLSON   SCOTT R CARLSON   VICTOR R CARLSON   LANCE W CARLTON   
RONI M CARMAN   JEFFREY B CARMEAN   CHAD W CARNAHAN   JERRY W CARNAHAN   WILLIAM C CARNAHAN   DAVID W CARNELL   JERRY P CARNES   EUGENE R CARNEY   THOMAS J CARNEY   ARTHUR JOHN CARNICELLI   CHRISTIAN T CARNRIGHT   
JERRY L CARNRIKE JR   BRADLEY A CARPENTER   JAMES E CARPENTER   JAMES FLOYD CARPENTER   KENNETH E CARPENTER   LARRY E CARPENTER   LUCAS C CARPENTER   RANDY J CARPENTER   SCOTT L CARPENTER   SHEENA S CARPENTER   
SHEROLEEN L CARPENTER   STEPHEN L CARPENTER   THOMAS E CARPENTER   CHAD A CARPER   RICKIE L CARPER   RONALD D CARPER   DANIEL CARR   MICHAEL E CARR   RODOLFO CARRASCO   DONALD R CARRAWAY   JOSEPH C CARRAWAY   
ROBERT CARRIEDO   AGUSTIN CARRILLO   JOSHUA N CARRINGTON   ROBERT E CARRINGTON   BETTY K CARROLL   BRIAN CARROLL   J T CARROLL   JACK G CARROLL   JACOB PAUL CARROLL   JEREMY BRENT CARROLL   KENNETH CARROLL   
MARION L CARROLL   RICKY L CARROLL   ROGER H CARROLL   CHRISTOPHE M CARROWAY   MARTY O CARSON   CRAIG A CARSTENS   LONNIE R CARSTENS   MICHAEL A CARSTENS   TERRY L CARSTENS   JOSEPH M CARTAGENA   JEFFREY T CARTEE   
ANTHONY CARTER   BYRON J CARTER   CHAD M CARTER   CHARLES G CARTER   CHRIS EDWIN CARTER   ELDON GWYN CARTER   ELI C CARTER   JACOB CARTER   JAMES A CARTER   JASON T CARTER   JERVONE V CARTER   LARRY J CARTER   
LEON CARTER   MARC W CARTER   ODELL CARTER   SCOTT D CARTER   SCOTT R CARTER   TIM D CARTER   TIMOTHY J CARTER   CHARLES H CARTER III   GLENN R CARTWRIGHT   ANTHONY E CARVER   DENNIS CARVER   DARREN CARY   
WILLIAM V CARY   AARON T CASE   ROYCE A CASE   SHARON K CASE   BETH B CASEY   CHAD A CASEY   CHARLES D CASEY   GARETH R CASEY   KENNETH CHARLES CASEY   DONALD E CASH   JONATHAN R CASH   KORY E CASH   RICHARD D CASH   
THOMAS RAY CASH   FRANK A CASHWELL   ROGER CASON   DANIEL C CASPER   HAROLD JOSEPH CASPER   MARK E CASPER   TAMMY M CASPER   CASS CASPERSON   SCOTT D CASSEL   GARY W CASSELMAN   CHARLIE E CASSIDY   
CHRISTOPHE K CASSIDY   JEFFREY L CASSIDY   TONY R CASSIDY   JAVIER CASTANEDA   JESSE N CASTANEDA   RALPH CASTANEDA   MARK A CASTEEL   BILLY K CASTELLI   AMY L CASTILLO   JUAN F CASTILLO   FREDERICK CASTLE   
STEVEN E CASTLEBERRY   THOMAS CASTO   LUIS F CASTRO   JESSICA L CATER   TIMOTHY W CATER   AMY E CATHELL   JOHN D CATO   RONNIE CATO   LAWRENCE D CATT   JESSE J CAUSEY   JOSE G CAVAZOS   BEN R CAVE   TIMOTHY J CAYWOOD   
DANIEL R CECIL   HAROLD E CECIL   CRISTOBAL H CELAYA   DALIA Y CELESTE   MICHAEL P CENTRONE   JOSEPH M CERCHIARO   JOHN ANTHONY CEREO   MICHAEL L CERES   PAUL A CERMINARA   BACILIO CERNA A   JOSE J CERNA-RUIZ   
DOUGLAS E CERNY   JEFF CERRATA   THOMAS GERARD CERVANTES   CHRISTOPHER CHABAUD   RANDY R CHACE   MARC D CHADAZ   DAMION CHAITRAM   JOAN M CHALFONT   MARYELLEN CHAMBERLIN   RANDY L CHAMBERLIN   RANDY J CHAMNESS   
CHRISTOPHER M CHAMPION   JOSEPH B CHAMPION   LINDA Y CHAMPION   SUSIE CHAMPION   RISHANAND CHANDERBALLY   DOYLE W CHANDLER   JOHNNIE R CHANDLER   ROBERT E CHANDLER   JAMES H CHANDLER III   BRAD D CHANEY   
JULIE A CHANEY   FORREST DEAN CHAP   CHAD A CHAPEK   ADAM CHAPMAN   JACK B CHAPMAN   JEFFREY W CHAPMAN   JOE R CHAPMAN   LELAND K CHAPMAN   LESTER F CHAPMAN   MARK E CHAPMAN   BOBBY R CHAPMAN JR   JOE C CHAPPELL   
LINDA R CHAPPELL   ANDREW J CHAPPLE   JOSHUA W CHARLES   RANDOLPH F CHARLES   COY L CHARLESWOOD   SHAWN WILLIAM CHARTIER   DAVID L CHASE   DERICK A CHASTAIN   CHARLES T CHATMAN   SUBHASH C CHAUDHRY   CIRENIO CHAVEZ   
ENRIQUE CHAVEZ   RIGOBERTO CHAVEZ   PATRICIA A CHAVIS   STEVEN E CHAVIS   MARY CHAYKA   WILLIAM CHEATHAM   ZANE D CHECKETTS   WILLIAM N CHEDDAR   HOYT CHEEK   KEITH A CHEESEBORO   JASON G CHELETTE   TRACY ALLEN CHERECHINSKY   
CARDELL CHERRY   DENNIE S CHERRY   KENNETH W CHERRY   DAVID M CHERVENY   HEATH M CHESNUT   FLOYD CHESSER SR   MARCUS WILLIE CHESTNUT   MICHAEL D CHESTNUT   ANGELO CHIEPPO   LOUIS CHIEPPO   MICHAEL T CHIKOS   
AJENE CHIKUYU   BRUCE C CHILD   LOWELL D CHILDERS   SHERYL J CHILDERS   STEPHEN M CHILDERS   CARL S CHILDRESS   KENNETH C CHILDRESS   THOMAS M CHILSON   SHARI L CHINEVERE   JESSE CHIPMAN   ANJANI CHITTAJALLU   
JERRY M CHITWOOD   HYO H CHOI   BRAD L CHORPENNING   AMIT K CHOUDHRI   SCOTT E CHRISMAN   DARREN CHRISTENSEN   EDWARD C CHRISTENSEN   GARY KEITH CHRISTENSEN   MICHAEL B CHRISTENSEN   CLETA M CHRISTIAN   
DAVID BRYAN CHRISTIAN   BILLY CHRISTIANSEN   CLAIR D CHRISTIANSEN   TRAVIS R CHRISTIANSEN   WAYNE B CHRISTIANSEN   JEREMY B CHRISTIE   CHRISTOPHER J CHRISTMAN   JASON C CHRISTMAN   ROBERT D CHRISTMAN   JERRY F CHRISTMAS   
TERRY L CHRISTMAS   KENNETH L CHRISTOFFERSEN   PAUL H CHRYST JR   STANLEY CHU   JAMES R CHURCH   RICHARD S CHURCHILL   TAMMY CHURCHWELL   JASON W CIEPIELA   KEITH A CIEPIELA   CONNIE L CIESLINSKI   TERRY CIESLINSKI   
KEITH A CILLS   CATHERINE L CIPRA   KIMBERLY B CLANTON   KYLEE M CLANTON   ALAN D CLARK   AMY L CLARK   BENJAMIN M CLARK   CHRISTOPHER C CLARK   DALE O CLARK   DUANE D CLARK   G YVONNE CLARK   JASON M CLARK   JEFFREY T CLARK   
MARK A CLARK   ROBERT D CLARK   STEVEN S CLARK   WILLIAM B CLARK   WILLIAM P CLARK   ZACHARY CLARK   CHARLES J CLARK JR   CHARLES R CLARK JR   JACK CLARK JR   PHILLIP L CLARKE   ROBERT JEFFREY CLARKE   VICKI T CLARKE   
WILLIAM R CLARKSTON   FORREST F CLARY   JUSTIN ADAM CLARY   JACK C CLASSEN   HEATH P CLAUSEN   SCOTT P CLAWSON   DENNIS L CLAY   TORRY D CLAY   CHAS CLAYBAUGH   HERROD CLAYBROOKS   D KURT CLAYTON   SHERRI CLAYTON   
ROBERT A CLEGG   CURTIS S CLEM   KENNETH O CLEM   RICHARD L CLEMANS   COURY T CLEMENTS   JERRY FARISH CLEMONS   DANIEL J CLER   BRANDON L CLEVELAND   CHARLES CLEVELAND JR   DALE CLEVER   PAUL ELMER CLIFT   
CHRISTOPHER L CLIFTON   SCOTT R CLINE   RANDALL E CLINES   STEVE CLINES   RICHARD J CLINTON   ROSS E CLODFELTER   ROGER W CLONCS   DANNY J CLOWERS   PAUL A CMOREY   MAXWELL SCOTT COAPMAN   WILLIAM A COATES   
JOSEPH R COATS   CHRISTOPHER W COBB   RICHARD E COBB   RODNEY G COBB   STEVEN D COBB   WILLIAM H COBB   KYLE COBBLEY   NELDON COBBLEY   CHARLIE COBBS   KORICO S COBIN   JAMES M COBLIN   FLOYD C COBURN   ROGER L COBURN   
GREGORY A COCHRAN   MARY A COCHRAN   TIMOTHY D COCHRAN   WILLIAM J COCHRAN   DAVID J COCKCROFT   RAYMOND W COCKRELL   CHAD J COCKRIEL   SEAN E CODY   LORENZO COE   JAMES T COFER   JOSHUA S COFFER   AMANDA JO COFFEY   
THOMAS H COFFEY   CHARLES STEVEN COFFING   GLENN D COFFMAN   JAMES E COFFMAN   WILLIAM COFFMAN   DANNY G COGGINS   PAUL W COHEE   CANDACE E COHEN   DELVIN R COHEN   BELINDA W COKER   QUENT L COKER   STEVE O COKER   
TIMOTHY L COKER   JAMES M COKER II   STEVEN S COKER II   CHRISTINE S COLBURN   JIMMY W COLBURN   ALBERT L COLE   BRIAN J COLE   DAVID E COLE   DOUGLAS J COLE   GREGORY B COLE   JIMMY D COLE   MICHAEL W COLE   MONICA S COLE   
RABORN D COLE   RICHARD MICHAEL COLE   ROBERT JAMES COLE   WILLIAM COLE   JAMES M COLEGROVE   RONALD ANTHONY COLELLA   ALVIN B COLEMAN   CALVIN L COLEMAN   CHARLENE COLEMAN   CYNTHIA W COLEMAN   DAVID W COLEMAN   
JAMES O COLEMAN   JASON R COLEMAN   JEFFREY P COLEMAN   JOE E COLEMAN   KENNETH G COLEMAN   LLOYD COLEMAN   TAMARA L COLEMAN   JEFFREY L COLER   IAN D COLES   KAREN L COLETTA   BRIAN K COLGAN   DARRIN R COLLARD   
HARLEY DAVID COLLARD   JOHN T COLLARD   JOHN W COLLETT   KENNETH C COLLETT   TED J COLLETTE   KAREN J COLLEY   DOUGLAS G COLLIER   LINWOOD F COLLIER   TIM N COLLIER   WILLIAM H COLLIER   JIMMY W COLLIER JR   BRUCE COLLINS   
CHRISTOPHER J COLLINS   CONSTANCE L COLLINS   DAVID L COLLINS   DONNIS COLLINS   DOUGLAS COLLINS   DURAND M COLLINS   ERIC P COLLINS   GEORGE W COLLINS   JAMES D COLLINS   JERALD K COLLINS   JOSHUA L COLLINS   
ROBERT L COLLINS   ROBERT W COLLINS   ROBIN COLLINS   RONALD COLLINS   SCOTT COLLINS   JOSEPH COLLINS JR   ALISA M COLLINS-CREACH   ROBERT WESLEY COLLINSII   JAY T COLLINSWORTH   MICHAEL R COLLOM   ROBERT K COLTON   
LORENZA COLTRANE JR   VICTOR L COLWELL   SARA I COMBS   THOMAS COMBS   JOHNNY COMMANDER   SAMUEL E COMMELLA JR   JAMES L COMMENT   JEREMIAH J COMMENT   ROBERTA E COMMENT   BRIAN G COMPTON   CHARLES E COMPTON   
TERRY COMPTON   ADAM J COMSTOCK   GEORGE CONAWAY JR   AIMEE M CONGLETON   DAVID A CONKLIN   BRYAN G CONLEY   JOHN E CONLEY   RICHARD ALLEN CONLEY   CLARK C CONLEY IV   CHRISTOPHER AUSTIN CONNERS   WILLIAM LEE CONOVER   
JON CARSON CONSTANT   ALBERT E CONTOIS JR   DENIS H CONTRERAS   KEVIN L CONWAY   STEVEN CONWAY   DAVID T CONYERS   ERIC E CONYERS   GERALD T CONYERS JR   AUBREY J COOK   BRIAN C COOK   CHAD L COOK   CRAIG M COOK   
DANIEL P COOK   DAVID COOK   DEAN E COOK   EDDIE J COOK   FRANCIS J COOK   GARY EDWARD COOK   JAMES D COOK   JAMIE COOK   JOHN W COOK   KENNETH C COOK   KEVIN L COOK   MARK COOK   ROBERT J COOK   ROY COOK   SAMUEL A COOK   
SCOTT COOK   STONEY HOWARD COOK   THOMAS W COOK   TIMOTHY W COOK   BRYCE M COOKE   FRANK L COOKS   DON K COOL   MATTHEW COOL   JEFFERY L COOLEY   MICHAEL TODD COOLEY   CHARLES E COOLIDGE   STANLEY A COONCE   
ANDREW JOSEPH COOPER   BRETT K COOPER   BRIAN A COOPER   BRIAN K COOPER   DOUGLAS F COOPER   FRANKIE L COOPER   GARY L COOPER   GREGORY T COOPER   JASON M COOPER   JEFFREY A COOPER   JEREMY M COOPER   
KERRY D COOPER   PATRICK COOPER   RANDALL K COOPER   RANDY B COOPER   ROGER D COOPER   SAMUEL K COOPER   SHAWN M COOPER   W KENT COOPER   WILLIAM C COOPER II   DONALD E COOPER JR   JOHN G COOPER JR   DARRELL A COPE   
JAMES W COPE   MARK B COPE   ROBERT L COPE JR   ANGELA MARIE COPELAND   JASON HARMON COPELAND   LARRY E COPELAND   STEPHEN W COPELAND   BRIAN T COPLEA   MARK H COPPENGER   MICHAEL E COPPOTELLI   MICHAEL W CORBELL   
MICHAEL CORBETT   PATRICE ANN CORBETT   ROBERT B CORBETT   HERBERT CORBIN   GREGORY CORDIAL   EDWARD CORDOVA   LOUIS R CORDOVA   STEVEN CORDOVA   FRANCIS ELLIOTT CORDREY JR   NICHOLAS J COREA   GREGERY A COREY   
D COLE CORGATELLI   THOMAS CORLETT   BONNIE CORLEY   CLINT CORLEY   SAMUEL CORNABY   CHRISTOPHER CHARLES CORNE   BREVAN T CORNELIUS   TRAVIS D CORNELIUS   CHARLES E CORNELL   LEAH R CORNETT   SHAWN CORNETT   
AVERY L CORNIELL-DE LA CRUZ   DAMON S CORNISH-II   DUSTIN CORNS   RONALD D CORNWELL   MARK CORTEZ   MICHAEL S CORWIN   STEPHEN ARTHUR CORY   CAMERON A COSSETTE   JANA PATRICE COSSEY   MICHAEL CRAIG COST   
HOWARD E COSTA   MARIE A COSTANZO   BUFORD D COSTEPHENS JR   GUY TOMMY COSTNER   EDDIE A COTHRAN   JONAS D COTLER   CHRIS N COTSONES   JAMES D COTTEN   PHILLIP A COTTEN   RONALD H COTTEN   RONALD L COTTEN   
JOHN W COTTEN JR   THOMAS E COTTEN JR   CAROLYN S COTTON   CATHERINE COTTON   JEREMY R COTTON   JACOB COTTRELL   RICARDO V COTTRELL   CHRISTOPHER COUCH   JAMES M COUGHLIN   PAUL N COUNTS   ELIZABETH A COURT   
N RICHARD COURTEMANCHE   RANDY A COURTNEY   MARK A COURTRIGHT   CHARLES E COURVILLE   JOSEPH P COURVILLE   ROBERT E COUSINS   WILLIAM C COUSINS   PHILLIP M COUVILLION   JIMMY R COVINGTON   STEVEN D COVINGTON   
BRUCE B COWAN   COREY S COWAN   TERESA L COWAN   ELEANOR ANN COWAN-HUNTER   JOEY G COWARD   ROBERT L COWARD   ROGER D COWARD   RYAN E COWARD   THOMAS W COWARD   DAVID N COWART   KENNETH D COWART   
STEVE COWART   MARK A COWGER   CECIL R COWSERT   CHRISTOPHER S COX   CLYDE A COX   DANNY L COX   GERRY D COX   GUY D COX   JOSEPH L COX   JOSEPH M COX   MARY R COX   MATTHEW A COX   MICHAEL G COX   MICHAEL M COX   
ROBERT J COX   SAMUEL R COX   STEVEN P COX   TERRY C COX   VICTOR S COX   WALTER J COX   WILLIAM T COX   JOHNNY CARLTON COX II   GUY FRANKLIN COX JR   LARRY COYKENDALL   DEBORAH COYLE   CHARLES V COZZENS   
BARBARA ANNETTE CRABB   CHARLES E CRABB   SHAWN ERIC CRABTREE   WILLIAM M CRAFT   WARREN E CRAGO   DANIEL LEE CRAIG   MITCH W CRAIG   RANDALL CRAIG   ORION D CRAIGUE   KELLIE M CRAIN   DAVID E CRANFORD   SCOTT G CRANSTON   
TERRY D CRAVALHO   ROY B CRAVEY   JAMES L CRAWFORD   JIMMY R CRAWFORD   LUANN CRAWFORD   MIKLE R CRAWFORD   MITCH CRAWFORD   PAUL D CRAWFORD   THOMAS EUGENE CRAWFORD   ANITA CREAG   JOE W CREAGER   JOEL W CREAGER   
BOBBY DEAN CREAMER   RANDALL D CREASY   DANIEL W CREEK   MATTHEW CREEK   HEATHER L CREELY   GREGORY CREESON   HOWARD F CREGER   JAMES T CRENSHAW   DONALD C CREW   TED DOUGLAS CREWS   LEWIS DIAL CREWS IV   
COREY S CRIDER   DENNIS CRILLO   MICHAEL L CRILLO   LESTER L CRIM   REBECCA ANN CRIM   CHRISTOPHER R CRIPPEN   GREGORY D CRISP   MICHAEL EDWARD CRISS JR   RYAN J CRIST   RONALD G CRITES   JOHN CROCKER   BRUCE G CROCKETT   
MICHAEL E CROCKETT   ROBERT G CROLL   GREGORY A CROOKER   SANDRA CROOKS   GREGORY T CROSBY   DONALD EDWIN CROSS   PHILLIP R CROSS   STEPHEN E CROSS   R BRADLEY CROSSETT   BRIAN CROSSKNO   RAYMOND C CROTTY   
CARRIE L CROUCH   GARY L CROUCH   JERAMY SHANE CROUCH   JEREMIAH W CROUCH   STEPHEN W CROUCH   HAROLD D CROW   JAMIE D CROWDEN   CARL A CROWDER   HEATH CROWE   DAVID L CROWELL   KEVIN L CROWL   CHAD A CROWTHER   
DEBORAH K CRUEA   DERICK CRUICKSHANK   DONNIE L CRUM   JAMES A CRUMLEY   MICHEAL A CRUMMEY   MICHAEL CRUMP   DARYN E CRUMRIN   GLENN E CRUSE JR   NICKY J CRUTCHER   JEANETTE N CRUZ   TITO CRUZ JR   DAVID CUCH   
TIMOTHY J CUDE   JAIME A CUEVAS   SAM D CULLER   SUMNER R CULLOM JR   KEVIN CULP   RONALD R CULPEPPER   SHELDON CUMBERBATCH   ROBERT R CUMBIE JR   JAMES C CUMINGS   DONALD R CUMINGS JR   KARAC I CUMMINGS   
JAMES EDGAR CUMMINGS JR   DAVID L CUNEY   CHARLES M CUNNINGHAM   CHRIS C CUNNINGHAM   CREED C CUNNINGHAM   DAVID CUNNINGHAM   MATT CUNNINGHAM   SHANE N CUNNINGHAM   RITA J CUPSTID   JOHNNY CURRIE   JOSHUA P CURRIE   
KAREN CURRIE   MARK CURRIE   MATTHEW J CURRIE   RUSSELL CURRIE   MICHAEL D CURRIN   DAVID M CURRY   JAMES DEAN CURRY   RICKY A CURRY   GERALD A CURTIN   KATHRYN J CURTIN   CHRISTOPHER A CURTIS   JASON B CURTIS   
LAWRENCE D CURTIS   PAUL D CURTIS   ROBERT SCOTT CURTIS   RYAN P CURTIS   STEVEN W CURTIS   DALE E CURWICK   ANTHONY D CUSSANO II   JOSEPH LEE CUTCHIN JR   DENNIS CUTLER   KENNETH L CZARNEK   JOHN S CZARNIECKI   
DANIEL A CZUBAT   FREDDIE D'AGNESE   ANTHONY R D'ANDREA II   ANTHONY E D'ANGELO   RONNIE DABIDEEN   CHARLES E DABNEY III   CHRIS E DACUS   DANNY H DACUS   JASON S DACUS   ELEANA MARIE DAEFFLER   THEODORE REED DAEFFLER   
WAYNE DAHL   BRAD R DAHLE   ANDREW J DAHLHEIM   CHAD F DAHLKOETTER   STEPHEN R DAHLKOETTER   RENE J DAIGLE   TONY DAIL   BENJAMIN C DAILEY   MARLIN L DAILEY   RICHARD KEITH DAILEY   MICHAEL DAILY   JEFFERY L DALEY   
LARRY A DALKE   CLARENCE B DALRYMPLE   GREGGORY A DALTON   KATHALEEN K DALTON   TIFFANY KING DALTON   MICHAEL J DAMICO JR   ANDREW DAMM   NICHOLAS DAMM   CHARLES P DAMPIER   HARRELL C DAMRON   FARRELL DANCER   
BRADLEY E DANGLER   ANTHONY U DANIEL   COLON D DANIEL   ERLWIN S DANIEL   FREDERICK DANIEL   JOSEPH GORDON DANIEL   MALCOM R DANIEL   ORRIN L DANIEL   PAUL D DANIEL   STEVE L DANIEL   TIMOTHY WAYNE DANIELL   BARBARA J DANIELS   
BRENDA D DANIELS   BRYAN DANIELS   CHARLES S DANIELS   CHUCK O DANIELS   GARY D DANIELS   GILBERT REESE DANIELS   JAMES E DANIELS   JOSEPH ERIC DANIELS   KENNON B DANIELS   LEE A DANIELS   OWEN J DANIELS   THOMAS BRENT DANIELS   
WILLIAM C DANIELS   DAVID B DANIELSON   DONNA M DANNER   JAMES J DANNER   BRANDON J DANSBY   ANTHONY J DANTONIO II   USHAH DANZY   TERRY A DARBY   BRYAN S DARNELL   JASON L DARROW   JAMES R DARSEY   SHAR A DARWISH   
MICHAEL A DASGUPTA   NEENA DASS   TOMMY L DATES   PHILIP M DAUGHERTY   GIFFIN F DAUGHTRIDGE   CHARLES T DAVENPORT   DAVID BRIAN DAVENPORT   GARY J DAVENPORT   PERRY G DAVENPORT   ARTHUR LEE DAVENPORT JR   JAMES R DAVID   
JOE M DAVID   RYAN L DAVID   GARY R DAVIDSON   JASON W DAVIDSON   JOHN L DAVIDSON   JOHN MIKHALE DAVIDSON   RODNEY D DAVIDSON   BRIAN J DAVIES   CHRISTOPHER L DAVIES   CORY W DAVIES   JAMES R DAVIES   AARON J DAVIS   
ALAN KEITH DAVIS   ANTHONY J DAVIS   BRANDON YARBER DAVIS   BRIAN KEITH DAVIS   BYRON J DAVIS   CARL N DAVIS   CASEY G DAVIS   CHADWICK E DAVIS   CHRISTOPHER L DAVIS   CHRISTOPHER S DAVIS   CLARA L DAVIS   CONNIE F DAVIS   
COY L DAVIS   DANIEL R DAVIS   DAPHNE N DAVIS   DAVID ALLEN DAVIS   DAVID S DAVIS   DENNIS S DAVIS   EVIE N DAVIS   GERALD D DAVIS   GREGORY E DAVIS   HAROLD L DAVIS   HILEY R DAVIS   JAMES DAVID DAVIS   JAMES M DAVIS   JAN WALTER DAVIS   
JEFFERY L DAVIS   JEREMY A DAVIS   JOAN L DAVIS   KEITH DAVIS   KEITH DAVIS   KEITH B DAVIS   KENNY W DAVIS   LARRY D DAVIS   MARK DAVIS   MARK A DAVIS   MARK V DAVIS   MARK WAYNE DAVIS   MARYANN J DAVIS   MATTHEW J DAVIS   
MICHELLE A DAVIS   NATHAN E DAVIS   PHILLIP MICHAEL DAVIS   RHONDA M DAVIS   RICHARD T DAVIS   RICKY J DAVIS   ROBERT DAVIS   ROBERT A DAVIS   SCOTT C DAVIS   STACEY K DAVIS   STEPHEN J DAVIS   TERRENCE L DAVIS   TERRY E DAVIS   
THOMAS E DAVIS   TIMMY DAVIS   TOM DAVIS   TOMMY G DAVIS   ULYSSES DAVIS   WHIT L DAVIS   WILLIAM L DAVIS   WILLIE DAVIS   JAMES K DAVIS JR   VERNON E DAVIS JR   WILLIE W DAVIS JR   DAVID EARL DAVIS SR   TRENT W DAVISON   
CARL C DAVISON SR   DAVID ALLAN DAVOLT JR   THEOPOLIS DAWKINS JR   EDIE JO DAWSON   RONALD D DAWSON   SAMMY DAWSON   CLYDE A DAY   COURTNEY DAY   DARREN L DAY   GARLAND C DAY   JERRY A DAY   RAYMOND A DAY   DAVE DAYS   
LIONEL E DAYTON   TOM J DAZEY   ROBERT F DE MEO   CRAIG V DEAKIN   FRANK DEAKIN   CARL W DEAM   MICHAEL R DEAMER   DANIEL J DEAN   SHANE DEAN   STANLEY J DEAN   DONALD G DEAN II   FRANCIS N DEAN JR   KIMBERLY D DEARING   
ROY G DEARMAN   JOHNNY R DEAS   ROBERT B DEAS   THOMAS DEAS III   JOHNNY J DEASE   WADE DEASE   LARRY PAUL DEATON   REBECCA CHERRY DEATRICK   THOMAS J DEATRICK   ROBIN L DEBES   MARCUS E DEBOARD   JOHN L DECAPRIO   
MIGUELITO DECASAS   WILLIAM R DECKARD   DONALD G DECKELMAN   WILLIAM H DECKER   GEORGE DECKLING JR   FREDERICK J DEDERMAN   JOHN F DEDMON   LINN T DEEDRICK   LINNIE C DEEDS   IAN DEEKS   DOUGLAS J DEENIK   MATTHEW D DEENIK   
ROBERT DEERE   JEFFREY S DEERING   MELISSA DEES   ROSS DEETER   LEON H DEFENDORF   MARK N DEFILIPPO   KEVIN J DEFOOR   KEVIN L DEFRIEZ   PERRY C DEGROFF   FRED R DEHART   STEVEN DEHART   BRANDON L DEHEK   MICHAEL D DEHLING   
MICHAEL DEL GRECO   NICK J DELACRUZ   RICARDO DELACRUZ   JEFFERY L DELAGRANGE   JERRY W DELANCEY   RICKY DELANCEY   DAVID M DELANEY   DANIEL L DELEON   ORLANDO DELGADO   CHARLES R DELL   ROBERT L DELLINGER JR   
CURTIS K DELOATCH   TIMOTHY L DELOATCH   DONALD E DELONG   RALPH DEMARTINO   DENNIS D DEMIERRE   JOHN L DEMPSEY   PATRICK M DEMPSEY   JEFFREY R DENARD   KEVIN S DENARD   JOANN M DENAULT   WILLIE DENBY   JOEL M DENDINGER   
LIN DENG   JOHN DENMAN   DOREEN DENMARK   ISIAH L DENMARK   THERON S DENMARK   ABRAHAM DENMARK JR   CRAIG J DENNARD   JAMES CADE DENNEY   CHARLES DENNIS   CHARLES R DENNIS   DONALD WILLIAM DENNIS   GENE A DENNIS   
KENNETH W DENNIS   COX N DENNIS III   ORVILLE DENNIS JR   BRUCE C DENNISON   JASON R DENNISON   PHILLIP O DENNISON   JOHN B DENNY II   ALAN J DENO   TIMOTHY DENSON   MAC DENT   JOHN G DENTON   MICHAEL W DENTON   
RONALD WAYNE DENTON   TAMMY R DENTON   BRIAN L DEPEW   STANLEY V DEPEW   TIMOTHY A DEPRETIS   PHIL DEPRIEST   THOMAS E DEPRIEST JR   MARK T DEPUE   NIKOLAS A DEPUGH   ROBERT A DEPUGH   TIMOTHY T DEPUGH   PHILIP DEROSA   
JOHN R DERSHEM   MICHAEL A DESEGUIRANT   CODY LEE DESPAIN   JESSE W DESPAIN   ROBERT DESPAIN   RONALD L DESPAIN   MARK R DEUEL   DEBORAH DEVALCOURT   ERIC C DEVALL   JOE T DEVALL   RODNEY R DEVALL   JAMES WILSON DEVIS JR   
DARRELL L DEVORS   JOHN P DEVROUDE   CLINTON M DEWEY   JAMES M DEXTER   STEPHEN C DEXTER   JOHN Q DIAMOND   GREG T DIAS   MARIA A DIAS   JASON G DIAZ   JOSEPH VICTOR DIAZ   ONASSIS O DIAZ   GREGORY F DIBBLE   KEITH N DIBBLE   
ROBERT B DICE   CHRISTOPHER J DICK   JOHN R DICK   CARROLL RONALD DICKENS   BRENT E DICKER   CHARLES H DICKERHOFF   DREW DICKERSON   I LEE DICKERSON   RONALD L DICKERSON   WAYLON LLOYD DICKERSON   BARBARA A DICKEY   
DANIEL E DICKEY   HARVEY J DICKEY   JEFF A DICKEY   JOHN L DICKEY   JOHN S DICKEY   KEVIN DICKEY   DANIEL E DICKINSON   PHILIP M DICKSON   CLAYTON D DIDION   RODGER M DIEDE   COREENA DIEDRICH   LOUIS DIEHL   RANDY J DIEHL   
DAVID D DIEKMANN   DANIEL G DIEMER   JACOB R DIETRICH   KATIE DAVIS DIGGS   TERRY W DIGGS   JAMES V DIGIANDOMENICO   MARK A DIGIROLAMO   CLAYTON E DILDAY JR   ORAN R DILL   JOHNNY DILL JR   MICHAEL L DILLINGHAM   
RHONDA M DILLMAN   DANIEL P DILTS   KEITH A DILTS   REFUGIO O DIMAS   DANIEL R DIMICCO   GUEORGUI A DIMITROV   RHONDA DIMON   WALLACE D DINGLE   DONALD W DINGLER   CURTIS L DINKEL   ROBERT PETER DINOTO   PRIYA DIPSINGH   
BRIAN ANTHONY DISANTO   DAVID A DITTMER   VERNON DITTRICH JR   DAVID RICHARD DIX   PAUL C DIX   BRENDA G DIXON   DAVID L DIXON   JANIE P DIXON   SHAWN JAMES DIXON   SHAWN LAUERN DIXSON   CHRISTOPHER L DOBBINS   
JERRY G DOBBINS   TRACY KENNETH DOBBS   STANLEY J DOBRZYNSKI   BOBBY D DODD   BRYAN DODD   KEITH L DODD   DAVID C DODGEN   JESSIE W DODGEN   DOUGLAS S DOERR   ANDREW D DOLDER   RICHARD L DOLESH   JAMES R DOLLAR   
KELLY G DOLLAWAY   KIAN M DOLSEN   STEPHEN J DOLSEN   BALTAZAR DOMINGUEZ   JAVIER DOMINGUEZ   JERONIMO DOMINGUEZ   JUAN DOMINGUEZ   JULIO DOMINGUEZ   MARGARITO DOMINGUEZ   MARTIN DOMINGUEZ   MIGUEL DOMINGUEZ   
OCTAVIO DOMINGUEZ   SALVADOR DOMINGUEZ   FREDI DOMINGUEZ SOTO   BRENDA MARIE DOMINISSE   DOUGLAS L DOMINISSE   KEARNEY DONAHUE   CEDRIC DONALD   FELTON DONALD   LESTER R DONALD   E JASON DONALDSON   
DAVID NICHOLAS DONCH   DOUGLAS K DONE   WILSON DONE III   KEVIN JAMES DONEY   ROBERT D DONLEY JR   JAYSON P DONOVAN   MICHAEL G DONOVAN   MICHAEL DOOLEY   TIMOTHY L DOOLEY   BRETT M DOOLITTLE   JEFFERY J DORAN   
BRENT DORFE   RICHARD B DORMAN   DAVIS L DORSEY   KEITH L DORSEY   STEPHEN V DORSEY   ROBERT DOS SANTOS   ALVIN J DOSS   JASON OWEN DOSS   LARRY DOSSER   ANTHONY J DOSSETT   PHILLIP R DOSSETT   LESLIE R DOUD   
DUSTIN D DOUGHTY   DAVID L DOUGLAS   DEBRA A DOUGLAS   DON E DOUGLAS   GERALD W DOUGLAS   JEFFREY A DOUGLAS   KATHLEEN M DOUGLAS   RICHARD L DOUGLAS   THERESA E DOUGLAS   DAN W DOUGLASS   WILLIAM H DOUGLASS   
D BLAINE DOUTRE   BRADLEY D DOVE   ROBERT S DOVER   STEPHEN DOW   KENNETH DOWDY   KELLY J DOWLESS   DARCIE M DOWLING   JOSEPH W DOWNEY   RICHARD DOWNEY   JOSHUA J DOWNIE   LAWRENCE S DOWNS   JAMES P DOYLE III   
BRENT R DRAKE   DANIEL B DRAKE   DALE R DRAPER   EARL C DRAUGHN   PATRICIA M DREHER   THOMAS JAMES DRENT   DAVID J DREVECKY   DARLA J DREW   KEGAN D DREW   THOMAS W DREW   JERRY D DREWS   BOBBY R DRIGGERS   
DARREN L DRIGGERS   GENE H DRIGGERS   STEVEN A DRIGGERS   KENNETH DRIGGINS   WILLIAM O DRISKELL JR   JOHN L DRISLAN   WALTER DROCZAK   STEVEN W DROLLINGER   DEAN A DRUDGE   LEONARD J DRYDEN   MARK B DRYMALLA   
DANIEL W DUBY   TOMAS DUCHECK   ABRAHAM T DUCKETT   TED L DUCKETT   BILLIE J DUCKSWORTH   TRAVIS E DUCLOS   TIMOTHY L DUDA   JACQUELINE DUDLEY   LATRICE N DUDLEY   DAVID J DUFALA   DEREK CRAIG DUFFY   PATRICK E DUFFY   
JOHNIE M DUGAN   ROBERT DUHON   HERBERT DUKE   VIRGIL L DUKE   HERBERT A DUKE JR   DONALD E DUKES   JON DUKES   EDDIE J DUMONTELLE   ERIC A DUNAVIN   CHRISTOPHER J DUNBAR   ERIC V DUNBAR   KRISTINA L DUNBAR   
APRIL DANIELLE DUNCAN   BLAINE DUNCAN   RHONDA L DUNCAN   ROGER A DUNCAN   CLARENCE P DUNCAN JR   SAM DUNCAN JR   EARL W DUNCOMBE   CHAD D DUNHAM   HAROLD R DUNKERSON   CYNTHIA LYNN DUNLAP   JAMES L DUNLAP   
BRIAN L DUNLOW   JAMES W DUNLOW   JEFFERY C DUNLOW   FERNANDO C DUNN   GREGORY L DUNN   PAUL C DUNN   SARAH DUNN   TONY DWAYNE DUNN   PRESTON L DUNN JR   JOHN STEPHEN DUNNAVANT   DANA M DUNNE   WILLIAM FRANCIS DUNSTER   
BOBBY DUPREE   JEFFREY J DURAND   ADRIEL U DUREN   CHRISTOPHER DURHAM   MICHAEL J DURIE   MARK S DURR   DAWN A DUTTON   LOUIS W DUTTON   MICHAEL W DUTTON   PATRICIA RAMONA DUTTON   CECIL H DUTTON JR   HEATH A DYCUS   
ALBERT L DYER   BILLY R DYER   CLEATUS O DYESS   JON M DYESS   DANIEL J DYGERT   TROY DYKES   STANLEY MATTHEW DZUBA   JEROME W DZUIBCZYNSKI   BRIAN D EADDY   JAMES EADDY   MARION E EADDY   STEPHEN R EADES   GARRY KEVIN EADS   



MARGARITA G LABAY   MATTHEW C LABISHAK   CHRISTOPHER SHA LACEY   SCOTT LACEY   MICHAEL K LACK   RANDALL L LACKAS   DANNY C LACKEY   TONYA L LACY   JOSEPH A LAFAN   DOUGLAS A LAFAYETTE   KARL J LAFOND   JEFFREY M LAGACY   
JOHN H LAGRAVIER   WINKY WAN LAI   BERNARD LAIRD   DOUGLAS E LAKE   JAMES P LAKER   GERARD LALL   ROOKMINEE LALL   JOSE L LAMAS   BRETT J LAMB   DUSTY LAMB   GREG C LAMB   JED C LAMB   JOHNNY LAMB   JUSTIN G LAMB   
KENNETH V LAMB   MARTY A LAMB   MICHAEL DUANE LAMB   STEPHEN P LAMB   JAMES A LAMBERT   JUSTEN R LAMBERT   TERRY A LAMBERT   TRICIA LAMBERT   CHRISTINE J LAMBRECHT   JUSTIN L LAMBRECHT   MICHAEL R LAMBRECHT   
CHRISTOPHER P LAMIE   STEVEN M LAMIE   JOHN M LAMINACK   ANNA M LAMONT   SCOTT F LAMPHERE   JAMES W LAMPHERE IV   DONNA J LAMPKIN   ANTHONY P LAMPMAN   KYLE D LAMPRECHT   JENNIFER L LANCE   JEREMY D LANCE   
SAMUEL D LANCE   STEVEN M LAND   JAMES A LANDIS   SHELLEY R LANDIS   LESTER L LANDRIE   JAMES LANDRUM   CORY STEVEN LANDRY   SUZANNE M LANDRY EADDY   BRYAN H LANE   FRANCIS M LANE   GERALD LANE   JERRY LANE   
KRYSTINA LH LANE   MARK A LANE   ROGER E LANE   RONALD LANE   SHAWN W LANE   JIRDEN RAY LANE JR   DONALD LEWIS LANE JR   JEFFREY A LANFORD   HOMER T LANG   JEFF P LANG   JOHN D LANG   DAVID J LANGE   DARRYL J LANGELLIER   
KEITH A LANGELLIER   DONALD G LANGFORD   JAMES T LANGLEY   LORA C LANGLEY   MICHAEL L LANGLEY   GREG A LANGLOIS   CHARLES J LANGSTON   DANIEL W LANGSTON   JEFFREY G LANGSTON   JUSTIN LANGSTON   WILLIAM KENNETH LANHAM III   
FREDRICK DEWAYNE LANIER   LARONDA LANIER   PATSY A LANIER   SCOTT J LANIER   MICHAEL KEITH LANINGHAM   MELVIN C LANINGHAM JR   BETTY M LANKFORD   CHARLES S LANKFORD   JAMES D LANMAN   JERI D LANO   WILLIAM E LANO   
MARK S LAPINSKY   BRYAN GILBERT LAPOINT   JOHN D LARGE   TERESA L LARGENT   GREGORY LARK   ERIC D LARMORE   DAVID S LARRABEE   DEON G LARSEN   ERIK D LARSEN   JERAD J LARSEN   JOHN LARSEN   KENT H LARSEN   
KEVIN D LARSH   REBECCA G LARSH   CRAIG J LARSON   DANIEL E LARSON   DWAIN E LARSON   JAMES L LARSON   KEN D LARSON   MARK S LARSON   RAYMOND K LARSON   TERRY D LARSON   LONNIE K LARUE   VENITA LARUE   
BRAD ROBERT LASHER   JOHNNIE B LASSITER   LEROY LASSITER   TYLER L LAST   RANDY L LASTER   JERRY W LASTER JR   GIL A LASTRAPES   ANDREW K LATHROM   STEVEN M LATRAY   DANNY LATTY   JAMES P LAUDENKLOS   SCOTT J LAURENTI   
KELLY C LAURITZEN   RONNIE LAUTZENHEISER   FLOYD LAVALLEE   JEROME W LAVOIE   MICHAEL T LAWHON   DAVID M LAWLER   ROBERT JOHN LAWLER   CHRISTOPHE S LAWLESS   JOSEPH C LAWLESS   D R LAWRENCE   GLENN A LAWRENCE   
JAMES LAWRENCE   JARON O LAWRENCE   TONY E LAWRENCE   ROBERT LAWRENCE JR   ROBERT W LAWRENCE SR   JUSTIN LAWSHE   ANTHONY LAWSON   CHARLES S LAWSON   LARRY D LAWSON   MICHAEL L LAWSON   RICHARD B LAWSON   
STEVE LAXTON   JOHN P LAY JR   J MICHAEL LAYDEN   RICHARD W LAYDING   BARRY LAYNE   MICHAEL LAYNE   LINDA K LAYTON   JOHN N LE   JEAN P LE GALL   SONET LE ROUX   LAWRENCE LEADY   MICHAEL J LEAK   THOMAS C LEAKEY   
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STEPHEN H HENDRIX   PHILLIP C HENEGAR   DELREA L HENERY   JOSHUA P HENERY   MICHAEL T HENERY   JEFFREY J HENG   BRUCE C HENLEY   DANNY HENLEY   DAVID S HENLEY   PHILIP A HENLEY   TODD E HENLINE   WILLIAM P HENNENFENT   
DENNIS E HENNESSY   DAVID R HENNING   JEFFREY D HENNING   RICK G HENRICHS   RAY M HENRIE   CARL HENRY   GREGORY A HENRY   JANET M HENSELEIT   JERAMIE HENSLEY   WILLIAM RAY HENSON   STEVEN K HEPP   DENISE I HEPPNER   
JEFFREY J HEPPNER   STEVE HERALDO   CHAD HERBERT   CLINTON A HERBERT   CODY HERBERT   WILLIAM D HERBERT   THOMAS M HERD   AARON E HEREDIA   CHRIS R HERMAN   JAMES HERMAN   JASON X HERMAN   WENDY HERMAN   
DANIEL HERMANN   TERRI HERMES   JUAN HERNANDEZ   JUAN G HERNANDEZ   JUVENTINO HERNANDEZ   RICARDO HERNANDEZ   FRANK M HERNANDEZ III   MARY ANN HEROUX   MARTIN HERRERA   JOHN R HERRICK   TERRY R HERRICK   
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JAMES C HESTER JR   CHAD N HETHCOCK   G A HEWETT   HARRY M HEWITT   JAMES R HEWITT   PATRICK M HEWITT   TINA M HEWITT   RYAN A HEWSON   MATTHEW G HEY   JAMES T HEYWARD   DAVID LAVELL HIBBARD   ROBERT HICE   
LISA CHRISTINE HICKERSON   STEPHEN W HICKERSON   JESSICA D HICKEY   CHRISTOPHER M HICKMAN   PHILIP R HICKMAN   CAROLYN HICKS   CHERYL HICKS   DANNY R HICKS   DARYL R HICKS   HURSHEL JOSEPH HICKS   JASON ERIC HICKS   
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BRIAN HIGGS   JOHN P HIGH   TROY H HIGH   TY J HIGH   STACY A HIGHTOWER   BRENT L HILDEN   CHAD HILDRETH   BRADLEY J HILFIKER   BART A HILGE   LEANN F HILGERT   BERTIS HILL   BRIAN WALKER HILL   CURT E HILL   DENNIS HILL   
JAMES A HILL   JIM L HILL   KEITH W HILL   LARRY HILL   MARTIN O HILL   STEPHEN W HILL   TIMOTHY W HILL   TINA M HILL   WILLIAM R HILL   CHARLES L HILL JR   EUGENE M HILLE   SHARON K HILLEY   TERRY E HILLIARD   JOHN H HILLIGES   
MARION L HILLS   DANNY HILT   GYLES W HILTON III   BRADLEY K HIMES   MATTHEW HINDMAN   SCOTT A HINDS   STERLING HINE   JOHNNY G HINES   PHILLIP D HINKLE   RIDGE R HINKLEY   MICHAEL K HINSON   CATHERINE HINTON   
JEFFREY D HINTON   MICHAEL J HINZ   STEVEN L HINZMAN   JOHN L HIPP   LARRY R HIPP   MATTHEW G HIRE   TOSHIYUKI HIROSE   JOSEPH M HIRT   JOHN P HISTED   KASEY HITCHCOCK   THOMAS B HITCHCOCK   STEVEN L HITZ   
MICHAEL V HLEBOVY   STEPHEN K HOAGLAND   MARK A HOAR   GARY N HOBBS   MICHAEL K HOBBS   TERRANCE L HOCHSTEIN   JEFFREY R HOCKEY   ANTHONY D HODGE   CHRISTINA L HODGE   JAMES M HODGE   DENNIS C HODGES   
LANDON WALTER HODGES   TIMOTHY S HODGES   WILLIAM N HODGES   DONALD W HOEHNE   STANLEY O HOELLEIN   JEFFREY S HOERING   JAROD K HOEYE   ADAM J HOFF   ANDREW J HOFF   DENNIS J HOFF   GERALD S HOFF   
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LAWRENCE J HOFFMANN   THOMAS HOFFMEYER   BENJAMIN W HOFFPAUER   JOAN HOFFSTETTER   MICHAEL C HOFMANN   ANTHONY HOGAN   DAWN MARIE HOGAN   JOSHUA A HOGAN   RICHARD HOGAN   JORDAN A HOGEBOOM   
MAX TRUMAN HOGGARD   TRAVIS BRENT HOGGARD   MAX T HOGGARD II   MICHAEL W HOGLE   AMY JEAN HOGUE   JAMIE A HOHENBERGER   RUDY R HOHENSTEIN   TREVOR JAY HOHENSTEIN   DEAN R HOLAN   DUANE Q HOLAN   
WENDY D HOLBROOK   ROBERT HOLCOMB   TRACEY LYN HOLCOMBE   BRUCE W HOLDEN   PERRY KENNETH HOLDEN   DUSTY L HOLLAND   JARELL HOLLAND   TONI L HOLLAND   JOHN J HOLLATZ   JASON VANN HOLLAWAY   DONNA L HOLLEMAN   
GARY T HOLLENBECK   CHRISTOPHER R HOLLEY   KARL J HOLLEY   THOMAS MELVIN HOLLEY   DWIGHT S HOLLIDAY   KENNETH HOLLIE   JEFFREY L HOLLIMAN   ANTHONY HEATH HOLLINGSWORTH   WILLIAM E HOLLINGSWORTH   
CHRISTOPHER A HOLLIS   JAMES A HOLLIS   PAUL DILLARD HOLLIS   TAWNYA D HOLLOBON   ROBERT HOLLOMAN   MATTHEW D HOLLYWOOD   COURTLEY A HOLMAN   CRYSTAL W HOLMAN   NICKY L HOLMAN   ADRIENNE D HOLMES   
BRADLEY D HOLMES   BRENDA G HOLMES   CORY NICHOLUS HOLMES   GARY D HOLMES   JAMES H HOLMES   JASON E HOLMES   KEVIN G HOLMES   NATHAN R HOLMES   ROGER D HOLMES   CLAYNE HOLMGREN   GORDON CHAD HOLMGREN   
LAMAR ALAN HOLSTON   DAVID L HOLT   JOHN A HOLT   JOSHUA E HOLT   KEVIN H HOLT   MARIA L HOLT   TORIANO M HOLT   RANDALL E HOLTKE   SCOTT E HONAKER   BENJAMIN F HONCHELL III   JAMES E HONCIK   AMY R HONEYCUTT   
SCOTT D HONKONEN   BRIEN L HONN   OLIVER A HONNEY   JOHN HENRY HOOD   JOHN T HOOD   TIMOTHY W HOOD   DELBERT H HOOKER   GWENDOLYN A HOOKS   MICHAEL HOOKS   RENEE A HOOKS   DAVID HOOPER   DAVID HOOTEN   
HERBERT A HOOVER   SCOTT A HOOVER   LUKE N HOOVLER   CHRISTOPHER HOPE   MCKENZIE HOPE   RODNEY F HOPE   ANTHONY N HOPKINS   JEFFREY C HOPKINS   MARY W HOPKINS   OLANDO HOPKINS   RICHARD A HOPKINS   
STEVEN T HOPKINS   LEO J HOPKINS III   KENNETH J HOPPE   DOYLE HOPPER   DUSTIN ROBERT HOPPER   JEFFREY S HOPPER   JOHN L HOPPER   MICHAEL J HOPPER   WALTER L HOPPER   MELVIN J HOPPER JR   WALTER L HOPPER JR   
ZANE S HOPPES   ANNA MAY HORAN   BRIAN KEITH HORN   JAMES L HORN   JAMIE HORN   JEFFREY M HORN   THOMAS J HORN   BILLY HORNE   MICHAEL R HORNE   JAMES E HORNE II   KENNETH R HORNER JR   JERRY D HORNSBY   
WILLIAM C HORNSBY   RICHARD D HORNUNG   ADAM Z HORREX   WILLIAM M HORTON   JOHN HORVATH   JOSEPH J HORVATH   IDREES F HOSEIN   HOWARD L HOSFORD   DIRK HOSIEN   LONNIE L HOSKINS   TODD L HOSKINS   JEANNE M HOSTED   
JOHN V HOUART JR   KEITH F HOUSE   RICKY D HOUSE   DEXTER J HOUSE SR   CLAUDE W HOUSER   KEVIN HOUSER   WILL HOUSETON   TOD N HOUSLEY   BRIAN HOUSTON   DIONNA TAMARA HOUSTON   PATRICK W HOUSTON   WILLIAM HOUSTON   
JEFFREY S HOUWEN   JONATHAN D HOVDE   EDWARD E HOVE   JONATHAN A HOVE   EUGENE E HOVIS   ANDY J HOWARD   CHRISTOPHER D HOWARD   CHRISTOPHER H HOWARD   DANNY HOWARD   DAWN R HOWARD   FERRON PAUL HOWARD   
HAROLD HOWARD   KENNETH E HOWARD   KEVIN J HOWARD   MICHAEL E HOWARD   TERRY L HOWARD   THOMAS E HOWARD   TIMMY HOWARD   TIMOTHY L HOWARD   TYRONE E HOWARD   VICKI HOWARD   NORMAN HOWARD JR   
SEAN H HOWARTH   JOHN E HOWDEN   DOUGLAS E HOWE   MOLLY J HOWE   TERRY L HOWE   DIRK D HOWELL   JAMES HOWELL   RONNIE E HOWELL   ROY L HOWELL   THOMAS L HOWELL   STEVEN W HOWEY   LONNIE O HOWLE   WILLIAM R HOWLE   
MARK P HOWLEY   DAVID HOYE   AMY HUBBARD   JOHN RICHARD HUBBARD   RICKEY E HUBBARD   WILSON C HUBBARD   DENNIS A HUBER   PETER HUBER   RICHARD A HUBER   SUZANNE M HUBER   ROBERT A HUBLER   LEE A HUCKSTEP   
RICHARD L HUDDLE   J SCOTT HUDDLESTON   KENNETH D HUDDLESTON   STEPHEN ELMER HUDNALL   CARL A HUDSON   CHRIS S HUDSON   CLAUDE W HUDSON   JAMES E HUDSON   JAMES W HUDSON   JEFFERY L HUDSON   MICHAEL L HUDSON   
MICHAEL T HUDSON   PAUL S HUDSON   TERRY D HUDSON   WINSTON B HUDSON   KELLY M HUDZINA   KURT W HUELSMAN   KENNETH C HUEY   BRIAN R HUFF   DUSTIN HUFF   JAMES HUFF   JIMMY S HUFF   KENNETH HUFF   MARK B HUFF   
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ANGELA HUGHES   CHARLES E HUGHES   DONALD G HUGHES   EVELYN HUGHES   GREGORY J HUGHES   JESSE L HUGHES   JOHN R HUGHES   KYLE J HUGHES   ROBERT HUGHES   STEVE HUGHES   VONDA D HUGHES   KENNETH A HUGHEY   
CHRISSY LEWIS HUGHSON   BRADLEY T HUGO   JIM R HUGO SR   TOMEKA L HUITT   CHRISTOPHER S HULBERT   BRENT D HULET   SIDNEY L HULETT III   CRAIG L HULGAN   JERRY N HULGAN   RONNIE L HULGAN   ROBERT J HULIK   BRADLEY L HULL   
JAMES RONALD HULL   CLINTON J HULLIBERGER   RYAN D HULS   NICHOLAS J HUMMEL   DAVID A HUMPHREY   FREDERICK D HUMPHREY   KATHLEEN K HUMPHREY   NICKOLAS L HUMPHREY   TRAVIS E HUMPHREY   WALTER L HUMPHREY   
ROBERT L HUMPHREY JR   NICHOLAS G HUMPHRIES   JAMES P HUNEYCUTT   DANNY E HUNIGAN   GERALD HUNSAKER   RANDALL L HUNSAKER   CHRISTOPHER M HUNSINGER   JASON W HUNSINGER   JESSICA L HUNSINGER   ALLEN J HUNT   
ANTHONY C HUNT   CHARLES HUNT   FRANKY L HUNT   JOHN S HUNT   KENNETH R HUNT   PATTY JEAN HUNT   EUGENE C HUNTER   JOHN L HUNTER   JULIUS ANDREW HUNTER   ROBERT O HUNTER   SCOTT A HUNTER   WILLIE LASHAN HUNTER   
MATTHEW R HUPP   STEPHEN D HURD   AVA L HURLBERT   CODY L HURLBERT   GERRY L HURLBERT   TODD W HURLBERT   TREVOR J HURLBERT   BRIAN K HURLEY   JOHN BENJAMIN HURN   ERNIE F HURNI   JEFFREY L HURNI   GEORGE D HURST   
JOHN C HURST   EFRAIN A HURTADO   NOE B HURTADO   DARVIN HURTT   KENNETH W HUSKEY   DONALD D HUSMANN   BABETTE A HUSTED   RICK A HUSTED   MICHAEL W HUTCHENS   DAVID J HUTCHINGS   DAVID ARNOLD HUTCHINS   
MATTHEW T HUTCHINS   ERIC L HUTCHISON   MICHAEL L HUTCHISON   MICHAEL J HUTNAK   MARGARET R HUTNICK   JEREMY I HUTSON   LILLIAN HUTSON   JOHN R HUTTO   THOMAS RHETT HUTTO   MARK HUTTON   RICKY L HUX   
JERRY Y HWANG   AHMAD HYDE   KENNETH W HYDE   IRVIN M HYDE JR   JAMES W HYMAN   ROWLAND HYMAN   JAMES C HYMAS   CATHERINE M HYTEN   FRANK L IACAMPO   OLUMAYOWA IJISESAN   JACK A ILER   WILLIAM IMBODY   
LOUIS R INCROCCI   SHELLEY A INGERICK   JAMES INGLE   KENNETH E INGLE   STEVE R INGLE   GEORGE S INGLIS   DARRELL K INGRAM   JAMES T INGRAM   JERROLD W INGRAM   KIMBERLY K INGRAM   MARION INGRAM   ARMIN G INGRAM II   
MARK S INGRASSIA   WILLIAM S INMAN   GARY INSKEEP   JAMES M IRELAND   KEVIN IRISH   MICHAEL JOSEPH IRNIRI JR   BARRY K IRVIN   GEORGE IRVIN   LARRY G IRVIN   FOSTER L IRVING   MICHAEL THOMAS IRVING   DALE IRWIN   
ROBERT IRWIN   GREGORY LEOPOLD ISAAC   JOEY YOUNG ISBELL   JULIE A ISBELL   MATT E ISBELL   WILLARD ALLEN ISBELL   MARK S ISENBERG   ROBERT E ISGETT JR   JAMES C ISH   RITCHIE A ISHAM   BILLY R ISON   MATTHEW B ISRAELSEN   
KURT A IVES   COREY D IVEY   JIM D IVISON   JEFFERY JEROME IVORY   SCOTT W IVY   WILLIAM R IVY   BOGUMIL IWAN   PATRICK L JABLONSKI   BRET A JACKMAN   ADRIAN DEMARCUS JACKSON   ANDREW JACKSON   ANTHONY JACKSON   
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				    2006	 2005	 % CHANGE

FOR THE YEAR

Net sales	 $14,751,270	 $12,700,999	 16%

Earnings:

	 Earnings before income taxes	 2,693,818	 2,016,368	 34%

	 Provision for income taxes	 936,137	 706,084	 33%

	 Net earnings	 1,757,681	 1,310,284	 34%

		  Per share:

			   Basic(1)	 5.73	 4.17	 37%

			   Diluted(1)	 5.68	 4.13	 38%

Dividends declared per share(1)	 2.15	 0.93	 131%

Percentage of net earnings to net sales	 11.9%	 10.3%	 16%

Return on average equity	 38.6%	 33.9%	 14%

Capital expenditures	 338,404	 331,466	 2%

Depreciation	 363,936	 375,054	 -3%

Sales per employee	 1,273	 1,159	 10%

AT YEAR END

Working capital	 $3,225,008	 $2,815,854	 15%

Property, plant and equipment, net	 2,856,415	 2,855,717	 —

Long-term debt	 922,300	 923,550	 —

Stockholders’ equity	 4,825,989	 4,279,788	 13%

	 Per share(1)	 16.04	 13.80	 16%

Shares outstanding(1)	 300,949	 310,220	 -3%

Employees	 11,900	 11,300	 5%

F inanc ial  Highl ights (dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS Certain statements made in this annual report are forward-looking statements that involve risks and 
uncertainties. These forward-looking statements reflect the Company’s best judgment based on current information, and although  
we base these statements on circumstances that we believe to be reasonable when made, there can be no assurance that future events 
will not affect the accuracy of such forward-looking information. As such, the forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future 
performance, and actual results may vary materially from the results and expectations discussed in this report. Factors that might cause 
the Company’s actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:  
(1) the sensitivity of the results of our operations to volatility in steel prices and changes in the supply and cost of raw materials, 
including scrap steel; (2) availability and cost of electricity and natural gas; (3) market demand for steel and steel products, which,  
in the case of many of our products, is driven by the level of non-residential construction activity in the U.S.; (4) competitive pressure 
on sales and pricing, including pressure from imports and substitute materials; (5) uncertainties surrounding the global economy, 
including excess world capacity for steel production and fluctuations in currency conversion rates; (6) U.S. and foreign trade policy 
affecting steel imports or exports; (7) significant changes in government regulations affecting environmental compliance; (8) the cyclical 
nature of the steel industry; (9) capital investments and their impact on our performance; and (10) our safety performance.

FInancial highlights

(1) Per share amounts and shares outstanding have been adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split effective May 2006.
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Fellow stockholders:

We are pleased to report that for the third consecutive year, Nucor has set a record for 
earnings performance. For 2006, Nucor earned $1.76 billion ($5.68 per diluted share),  
an increase of 34% over 2005’s net earnings of $1.31 billion ($4.13 per diluted share).  
Our return on equity was 39%, marking our third consecutive year of returns topping 30%. 
Our ROE was 34% in 2005 and 39% in 2004.

Over the past three years, cumulative net income was more than $4.1 billion and 
cumulative cash provided by operations was more than $5.4 billion. 

This performance allowed us to continue to reward our stockholders through  
increased and special dividends, stock repurchases, and stock appreciation of 64%  
in 2006. Nucor’s dividends paid have increased more than nine-fold since 2003.  
We have raised our base dividend each year, and in December, we declared our eighth 
consecutive supplemental dividend. In 2006 we paid out $578 million in dividends. 
Since reactivating our share repurchase program in the second quarter of 2005,  

Nucor has repurchased approximately 22.8 million shares of its common stock. Terry Lisenby, our Chief Financial Officer,  
has details in his letter. 

Consistent with our culture’s core value of taking care of our customers (stockholders, employees and purchasers of our 
products), we are strongly focused on generating attractive returns for our stockholders. The Nucor team’s record-setting 
performance is easy to explain. It is being driven by the stellar performance of our people and by the disciplined execution  
of our strategy for growing Nucor’s long-term earnings power and increasing returns on our stockholders' valuable capital.

Over the past six years, we have focused on continually improving operations, expanding Nucor’s platform for generating earnings 
and strengthening Nucor’s position as North America’s most diversified producer of steel and steel products. 

The composition of our sales tons for 2006 was 38% sheet, 29% bars, 15% beams, 11% plate and 7% downstream. Nucor’s 
product line diversity is important, because our short-term performance is not tied to the health of any one steel product market. 
In January 2007, we took a major step in strengthening our downstream business by agreeing to acquire Harris Steel Group, Inc. 
("Harris Steel"), a fabricator of rebar and other products. The Harris Steel acquisition, the largest in Nucor’s history, is valued  
at approximately $1.07 billion and is expected to close in the first quarter of 2007.

During 2006, our results benefited from a strong recovery in flat-roll products, further fueled by continued robust growth  
in our bar, beam, plate and downstream businesses. The fourth quarter saw an erosion of margins, particularly in flat-rolled 
sheet, due to a record high level of imports and overstocked customer inventories. Fortunately, the consolidation of the steel 
industry worldwide led to disciplined production during this period, resulting in a higher trough for pricing than the last inventory 
adjustment. We expect these inventories to correct to more balanced levels in early 2007. Critical to this correction will  
be a significant reduction of the record import levels of 2006.  

Our work implementing the strategic growth plan has greatly expanded Nucor’s platform for generating earnings. As you’ve 
heard us say many times over the past six years, the keys to executing this strategy have been and remain: First, we will 
optimize existing operations. Second, we will pursue strategic acquisitions. Third, we will continue greenfield growth, exploring 
new technologies and other unique marketplace opportunities where we can demonstrate a major cost advantage over the 
competition. And fourth, we will grow globally through joint ventures that leverage new technologies.

A multi-pronged growth strategy, along with our unrivaled financial strength, allows us to be patient and to go where the growth 
opportunities are at any point in time. The Nucor team has very effectively implemented this growth strategy, and this work has 
positioned Nucor to generate higher highs and higher lows through the economic and steel market cycles. Our results prove my point.
 

Daniel R. DiMicco
 Chairman, President and  
Chief Executive Officer

TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS



� MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION  and ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Here are just a few examples of how we implemented our strategy in 2006. 

• We announced plans, ordered equipment, and started reconstruction on a special bar quality product ("SBQ") steel 
mill in Memphis, Tennessee. This growth project provides our Bar Mill Group an exciting opportunity to capitalize  
on a significantly better cost structure compared with key competitors in the SBQ market, both domestic and foreign.  
Our SBQ mills' continuous casting technology will allow us to produce large blooms that have a minimum 5 to 1 reduction 
ratio to final product. Nucor will be one of a very limited number of producers globally with this capability. At the same 
time, our new mill will be building on the SBQ market success of our Nebraska and South Carolina bar mills.

 
• Our Sheet Mill Group began construction of our fourth galvanizing facility, to be located in our Decatur, Alabama, mill. 
 
• We announced plans and began construction of our fourth metal building systems plant, in Brigham City, Utah. 

The 45,000-tons annual capacity facility will expand our Building Systems Group’s total capacity to approximately  
200,000 tons.

 
• Construction moved ahead on our second Castrip® production facility at Nucor-Yamato Steel in Arkansas. We expect

production will start up in the fall of 2008. Meanwhile, our original Castrip facility in Indiana set monthly shipping records 
and began serving our first contract customers for Castrip products. The facility uses proprietary technology to directly cast 
sheet steel into final shape and thickness, a process that consumes much less energy than alternative methods. 

 
• We acquired the assets of the western U.S. steel floor and roof decking maker Verco Manufacturing Company for $180 

million, boosting our annual deck capacity to more than 500,000 tons, and giving us a market-leading position across  
the entire country.

 
• We acquired the assets of Connecticut Steel Corporation for a cash purchase price of $43.9 million, adding annual

capacity of approximately 300,000 tons of wire rod and rebar and 85,000 tons of wire and structural mesh fabrication 
to our product mix.

• We negotiated the agreement to acquire Harris Steel, our largest acquisition ever.

It is worth remembering that prior to the onset of our strategic plan implementation, our previous record for annual net earnings 
was $311 million in 2000. This past year, we exceeded $311 million in every quarter. We believe Nucor is well positioned to 
continue delivering attractive returns to our stockholders through the economic and steel market cycles, no matter what the 
challenge. 

We know a new challenge is always waiting around the corner. One of the critical challenges we face is developing new sources 
of iron to supply our value-added product mix and to add an element of stability in the volatile pricing for our raw materials.  
I’m pleased to say we made excellent progress on three projects designed to help meet this challenge.

During 2006, we transitioned from start-up to full production in two facilities. The Ferro Gusa Carajás ("FGC") venture we launched  
in Brazil with Companhia Vale de Rio Doce ("CVRD") has been running both furnaces since mid-2006. Through year-end, FGC  
shipped 208,000 tons of pig iron to Nucor’s steel mills. In addition, our direct reduced iron ("DRI") plant in Trinidad began 
production in the fourth quarter of 2006 and has been successfully performance-tested at 220 tons per hour, with all key metrics 
significantly better than plan. This facility will have an annual capacity of 2.0 million tons of DRI. Our Nu-Iron team has done  
an outstanding job on this project, and we expect this DRI facility to be an increasingly important strategic asset, supporting  
our growth plans.  
 
Our HIsmelt® joint venture with Rio Tinto in Australia has been operating continuously through much of the second half  
of 2006. The HIsmelt plant produces pig iron without using coke through an energy-efficient, low-emissions process.  
In 2006, Nucor received one shipment of 40,000 tons of pig iron from HIsmelt. Other shipments have been made  
by HIsmelt to customers in Asia. 
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In 2006 we continued to improve upon our solid environmental performance. We have made excellent progress towards our goal  
of being fully ISO 14001 certified, with 83% of our operations having achieved this milestone. We also have been very active  
in our efforts to increase our energy efficiency by participating in the Climate Vision program. This program is aimed  
at achieving voluntary reductions in greenhouse gas emissions by improving energy efficiency. Since 2002 our energy  
intensity has improved approximately 16%. Putting this statistic in perspective, our efforts now annually save enough energy  
and reduce associated environmental emissions in quantities sufficient to offset all energy and environmental emissions  
for nearly 20% of our steel production.

Entering 2007, our industry continues to face the challenge of global over-capacity. We have already seen a negative earnings 
impact from this oversupply issue, as record levels of finished steel imports finally caught up with demand in late 2006. This 
oversupply resulted in bloated customer inventories and a subsequent slowing of orders as our customers started to work down 
their inventories. 

As a crucial part of our efforts to optimize existing operations, Nucor is taking care of our customers by building grass-root  
support for enforcement of our nation’s trade laws. We must not only support, we must also strengthen the backbone of America’s 
economy – our manufacturing sector. Free trade depends on countries playing by the rules, not distorting or outright ignoring 
them. China, a country where the steel industry is heavily subsidized or outright owned by the government, and where new 
capacity is built without consideration of the market demand or market dynamics for that capacity, is the most serious abuser  
of the rules. This abuse has resulted in China becoming the largest exporter to the world, and in particular, to the United States. 
China is in direct violation of its World Trade Organization agreements on industry subsidization, and it must and will be held 
accountable. As always, the Nucor team is applying our “can do” attitude and energy level to address these challenges.

This “can do” spirit of Nucor people is part of our critical competitive advantage: We put the right people in the right culture. 
We reward strong performance, treat people fairly and honestly, communicate openly with them, make communicating easy  
up and down the organization, give them an avenue of appeal if they feel they are not being treated fairly, encourage them  
to take appropriate risks, offer them a stake in the business, allow them to make mistakes and learn from them, and hold them 
accountable for being a contributing part of our Team. 

The Nucor culture is a critical, sustainable competitive advantage. Let me share just one exciting example with you. Look at our  
team’s performance at our Tuscaloosa, Alabama, plate mill. When we acquired the plant in 2004, the mill’s rated annual capacity 
was 800,000 tons – which is 20 percent more than it had ever achieved under the previous owner. Last year, without any 
significant capital spending to expand melting or rolling capacity, the Nucor Steel-Tuscaloosa team shipped more than 1 million 
tons, as well as paid back our original investment several times over. The best news is that Tuscaloosa’s team isn’t satisfied. 
They expect to do better – just as we all do at Nucor. 

The 11,900 men and women of Nucor are working safely, working hard, working smart, and working together to take care of our 
customers. Our team’s journey is that of climbing a mountain with no peak. We view the results we have achieved at this point as 
just the initial payoff from our growth strategy. The Nucor Team is excited by both the challenge and the reality that our best years 
are still ahead of us.

We are doing it Together!

Daniel R. DiMicco 
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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Nucor’s net sales for 2006 were a record $14.75 billion, an increase of 16% from $12.70 billion 
in 2005. Net earnings were a record $1.76 billion ($5.68 per diluted share), an increase of 34% 
over $1.31 billion ($4.13 per diluted share) earned in 2005. This is the third consecutive year 
Nucor has achieved record sales and earnings as well as many other record performance levels.

This outstanding performance trend reflects our focus on the disciplined execution of our 
strategic growth plan, combined with continued strong global demand for basic commodities. 
Our investments in existing operations together with greenfield projects and acquisitions have 
practically doubled our hot rolled steel production capacity from 13 million tons in 2000, 
to over 25 million tons today. In 2006, we continued our focus on strategic growth with the 
announcement of several major investment projects culminating in January 2007, when 
Nucor announced an agreement to acquire Harris Steel Group, Inc, for a cash purchase price 
of about $1.07 billion. Through these efforts, we are determined to deliver the continuing 
promise that Nucor's best years are still ahead of us.

Nucor’s utilization rate in 2006 was approximately 88% of production capacity (an average 
of all operating facilities), reflecting improved market conditions through most of 2006.  
This stable market combined with continued growth helped Nucor achieve new records  

in 2006 for steel production, total steel shipments and steel sales to outside customers. Steel production in 2006 increased 10% 
to 22,382,000 tons, compared with 20,332,000 tons in 2005. Total steel shipments improved 8% to 22,346,000 tons, compared 
with 20,669,000 tons a year earlier. Steel shipments to outside customers increased 9% to 20,649,000 tons, compared with 
19,020,000 tons in 2005. Nucor also achieved gains in the steel products segments as steel joist production was 570,000 tons 
in 2006, compared with 554,000 tons in 2005. Steel deck sales increased to a record 398,000 tons in 2006, compared with 
380,000 tons in 2005. Cold finished steel sales decreased to 327,000 tons in 2006, compared with 342,000 tons sold in 2005. 
Building systems sales were a record 116,000 tons in 2006, compared with 114,000 tons a year earlier.

Nucor’s success is built upon sound business fundamentals, including conservative financial and accounting practices and plain 
language, easy-to-understand financial reporting. We have a simple capital structure with no off-balance sheet liabilities. Cash 
flow from operations was a record $2.25 billion for 2006 compared to last year’s record performance of $2.14 billion, as earnings 
growth more than offset increased working capital relating to higher sales prices and scrap costs. At the end of 2006, Nucor’s cash 
and short-term investments reached $2.20 billion, despite record spending on growth investments, dividend payments and stock 
repurchases. Debt to total capital was reduced to less than 16%. We remain committed to maintaining a strong financial position 
and view our industry-high credit rating as a competitive advantage in a globally consolidating industry.

The Nucor team is focused on generating shareholder value, and we have increased our dividend every year since we began  
paying dividends in 1973. In 2006, Nucor announced two increases to its quarterly base dividend and quarterly supplemental 
dividend, resulting in dividend payments increasing from $209.8 million in 2005 to $577.8 million in 2006. Cumulatively,  
Nucor increased the dividend payment from $0.325 per share in the first quarter of 2006 to $0.60 per share ($0.10 base and 
$0.50 supplemental) in both the third and fourth quarters of 2006. In addition, Nucor has declared a total dividend of $0.61  
per share ($0.11 base and $0.50 supplemental) payable in May 2007 to stockholders of record on March 31, 2007. In 2006  
Nucor repurchased 11.7 million shares of common stock for a total cash purchase price of $599.4 million, or about $51 per share. 
Since we reactivated our stock repurchase program in the second quarter of 2005, we have repurchased 22.8 million shares  
for a total cash purchase price of $890.7 million, or about $39 per share.

While we are enjoying our recent success, we remain excited about the future. The 11,900 men and women of Nucor remain 
committed to generating even more shareholder value as we work together taking care of our customers and growing our company. 
We believe Nucor is well positioned for another very good year in 2007.

Sincerely,

Terry S. Lisenby
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Executive Vice President

Terry S. Lisenby
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer

 and Executive Vice President
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In recognition of the extraordinary leadership he has provided since becoming Nucor’s Chief 
Executive Officer in 2000, Nucor’s board of directors voted to give Dan DiMicco the additional 
role of Chairman during the May 2006 annual meeting. 

As a consequence, my role has changed from Non-Executive Chairman to Lead Director. 
In that new role, my responsibilities include helping Dan, as Chairman, to set the board 
meeting agenda, facilitating the regular meeting of the board’s independent directors, 
and, as needed, serving as the board’s liaison with Dan.

The board was not the only group that recognized the excellent work of Nucor’s top 
management. For the third consecutive year, Dan was selected as Chief Executive Officer 
of the Year in the Metals and Mining category by Institutional Investor magazine. The 
award, voted on by the nation’s leading institutional investors, recognizes the exceptional 
leadership of not only Dan, but also the entire Nucor executive team. 

That leadership was pivotal in 2006, as Nucor dealt with a large number of challenges 
and opportunities, including record imports (particularly from China), industry 

consolidation, strategic acquisitions, major investments in new and existing facilities and early-phase operations in scrap-
substitute ventures. 

In this challenging environment, the entire Nucor team of 11,900 people continued to implement and execute the consistent 
growth strategy that has led the company to record earnings in each of the past three years. The board looks forward to continuing 
to support the company in the implementation of its successful strategy in 2007. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Peter C. Browning 
Lead Director

Peter C. Browning
Lead Director
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STEEL products SEGMENT

Vulcraft and verco

Products: Steel joists, joist girders and steel deck  
for non-residential building construction.

Florence, South Carolina
Norfolk, Nebraska
Fort Payne, Alabama
Grapeland, Texas
St. Joe, Indiana
Brigham City, Utah
Chemung, New York (Vulcraft of New York, Inc.)
Phoenix, Arizona (Verco Decking, Inc.)
Fontana, California (Verco Decking, Inc.)
Antioch, California (Verco Decking, Inc.)

Cold Finish

Products: Cold finished steel bars for shafting and precision 
machined parts.

Norfolk, Nebraska
Darlington, South Carolina
Brigham City, Utah
Oak Creek, Wisconsin (Nucor Cold Finish Wisconsin, Inc.)

Building Systems

Products: Metal buildings and metal building components  
for commercial, industrial and institutional building markets.

Waterloo, Indiana
Swansea, South Carolina 
Terrell, Texas
Brigham City, Utah (Nucor Building Systems Utah, LLC)

Fastener

Products: Steel hexhead cap screws, structural bolts and 
hex bolts for automotive, machine tools, farm implements, 
construction and military applications. 

St. Joe, Indiana

NUCON STEEL

Products: Load bearing light gauge steel framing systems  
for the commercial and residential construction markets.

Denton, Texas
Dallas, Georgia

Other

NU-iron unlimited

Products: Direct reduced iron for use as a charge material  
in our steelmaking operations.

Point Lisas, Trinidad

Corporate Office

Charlotte, North Carolina

STEEL MILLS SEGMENT

Bar MillS

Products: Steel bars, angles and other products for 
automotive, construction, farm machinery, metal buildings, 
furniture and recreational equipment.

Darlington, South Carolina
Norfolk, Nebraska
Jewett, Texas
Plymouth, Utah
Auburn, New York (Nucor Steel Auburn, Inc.)
Birmingham, Alabama (Nucor Steel Birmingham, Inc.)
Kankakee, Illinois (Nucor Steel Kankakee, Inc.)
Jackson, Mississippi (Nucor Steel Jackson, Inc.)
Seattle, Washington (Nucor Steel Seattle, Inc.)
Marion, Ohio (Nucor Steel Marion, Inc.)
Wallingford, Connecticut (Nucor Steel Connecticut, Inc.)
Memphis, Tennessee (Nucor Steel Memphis, Inc.)

Sheet Mills

Products: Flat-rolled steel for automotive, appliance, pipe 
and tube, construction and other industries.

Crawfordsville, Indiana
Hickman, Arkansas 
Berkeley County, South Carolina
Decatur, Alabama (Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC)

Nucor-Yamato Steel Company

Products: Super-wide flange steel beams, pilings and 
heavy structural steel products for fabricators, construction 
companies, manufacturers and steel service centers.

Blytheville, Arkansas

Beam Mill
Products: Wide flange steel beams, pilings and heavy 
structural steel products for fabricators, construction 
companies, manufacturers and steel service centers.

Berkeley County, South Carolina

Plate Mills

Products: Steel plate for manufacturers of heavy equipment, 
rail cars, ships, barges, refinery tanks, pipe and tube, 
pressure vessels, construction and others.

Hertford County, North Carolina
Tuscaloosa, Alabama (Nucor Steel Tuscaloosa, Inc.)

 
 

AT A GLANCE
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STEEL MILLS SEGMENT

BAR MILLS, SHEET MILLS, STRUCTURAL MILLS AND PLATE MILLS  
Nucor operates scrap-based steel mills in nineteen facilities. These mills utilize 

modern steelmaking techniques and produce steel at a cost competitive with 

steel manufactured anywhere in the world.

BAR MILLs 
Nucor has eleven bar mills located in South Carolina, Nebraska, Texas, Utah, New York, Alabama, Illinois, Mississippi, 
Washington, Ohio and Connecticut that produce bars, angles and light structural shapes in carbon and alloy steels. These 
products have a wide range of usage including automotive, construction, farm equipment, metal buildings, furniture and 
recreational equipment. Four of the bar mills were constructed by Nucor between 1969 and 1981. Over the years, Nucor has 
completed extensive capital projects to keep these facilities modernized and globally competitive. Nucor acquired the remaining 
seven bar mills since 2000, including the purchase of substantially all of the assets of Marion Steel Company (“Marion Steel”) 
in the second quarter of 2005 and substantially all of the assets of Connecticut Steel Corporation (“Connecticut Steel”) in the 
second quarter of 2006. Nucor Steel Marion, Inc. has the capacity to produce up to 450,000 tons annually and Nucor Steel 
Connecticut, Inc. has the capacity to produce up to 300,000 tons annually. With these recent acquisitions, the total capacity  
of our eleven bar mills is currently approximately 7,960,000 tons per year. 

SHEET MILLS

The sheet mills produce flat-rolled steel for automotive, appliance, pipe and tube, construction and other industries. The four 
sheet mills are located in Indiana, Arkansas, South Carolina and Alabama. Nucor constructed three of the sheet mills between 
1989 and 1996. The constructed sheet mills utilize thin slab casters to produce hot rolled sheet. In 2002, Nucor’s wholly 
owned subsidiary Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC purchased substantially all the assets of Trico Steel Company, LLC (“Trico”). This 
sheet mill is located in Decatur, Alabama, and has an annual capacity of approximately 2,400,000 tons, expanding our sheet 
capacity by 30% at the time of the acquisition. In 2004, Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC purchased the adjacent cold rolling mill  
of Worthington Industries, Inc. (“Worthington”). In 2006 Nucor announced plans to construct its fourth sheet steel galvanizing 
facility at Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC. Upon completion of the galvanizing facility, all four of our sheet mills will be fully equipped 
with cold rolling mills and galvanizing lines for further processing of hot rolled sheet. The total capacity of the four sheet mills  
is approximately 10,800,000 tons per year.

STRUCTURAL MILLS

The structural mills produce wide flange steel beams, pilings and heavy structural steel products for fabricators, construction 
companies, manufacturers and steel service centers. In 1988, Nucor and Yamato Kogyo, one of Japan's major producers of wide-
flange beams, completed construction of a beam mill located near Blytheville, Arkansas. Nucor owns a 51% interest in Nucor-
Yamato Steel Company. During 1999, Nucor started operations at its 1,000,000 tons-per-year steel beam mill in South Carolina. 
Both mills use a special continuous casting method that produces a beam blank closer in shape to that of the finished beam 
than traditional methods. Current annual production capacity of our two structural mills is approximately 3,700,000 tons.

PLATE MILLS

Nucor operates two plate mills. Nucor completed construction of its first plate mill, located in North Carolina, in 2000  
with the competitive advantages of new, more efficient production technology. This mill produces plate for manufacturers  
of heavy equipment, rail cars, ships, barges, refinery tanks and others. In 2004, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nucor Steel 
Tuscaloosa, Inc., purchased substantially all the assets of Corus Tuscaloosa. The Tuscaloosa mill has an annual capacity  
of 1,200,000 tons, and complements our product offering with thinner gauges of coiled and cut-to-length plate used in the 
pipe and tube, pressure vessel, transportation and construction industries. Current annual production capacity of our two plate  
mills is approximately 2,800,000 tons. 

OPERATIONS REVIEW
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OPERATIONS  
Nucor’s steel mills are among the most modern and efficient mills in the United States. Recycled steel scrap and other metallics 
are melted in electric arc furnaces and poured into continuous casting systems. Highly sophisticated rolling mills convert the 
billets, blooms and slabs into rebar, angles, rounds, channels, flats, sheet, beams, plate and other products. 

Production in 2006 was a record 22,382,000 tons, a 10% increase from 20,332,000 tons in 2005. Annual production capacity 
has grown from 120,000 tons in 1970 to a present total of more than 25,000,000 tons.

The operations in the rolling mills are highly automated and require fewer operating employees than older mills. All Nucor steel 
mills have high productivity, which results in employment costs of approximately 7% of the sales dollar. This is lower than the 
employment costs of integrated steel companies producing comparable products. Employee turnover in Nucor mills is extremely 
low. All employees have a significant part of their compensation based on their productivity. Production employees work under 
group incentives that provide increased earnings for increased production. This additional compensation is paid weekly. 

Steel mills are large consumers of electricity and gas. Total energy costs decreased approximately $1 per ton from 2005 to 2006 
due to lower natural gas prices. Due to the greater efficiency of Nucor steel mills, these energy costs were less than 10%  
of the sales dollar in 2006 and 2005. Nucor is partially hedged against exposure to increases in energy costs.

Scrap and scrap substitutes are the most significant element in the total cost of steel production. The average cost of scrap 
and scrap substitutes used increased 1% to $246 per ton in 2006 from $244 per ton in 2005. A raw material surcharge 
implemented in 2004 has allowed Nucor to maintain operating margins and to meet our commitments to customers in spite  
of highly volatile scrap and scrap substitute costs. 

MARKETS AND MARKETING 
Approximately 92% of the nineteen steel mills' production in 2006 was sold to outside customers and the balance was used 
internally by the Vulcraft, Cold Finish, Building Systems and Fastener divisions. Steel shipments to outside customers increased 
9% from 19,020,000 tons in 2005 to a record 20,649,000 tons in 2006. 

Our steel mill customers are primarily manufacturers, steel service centers and fabricators. The sheet mills continue to build 
long-term relationships with contract customers who purchase more value-added products. We enter 2007 with approximately 
60% of our sheet mill volume committed to contract customers with terms typically ranging from six to twelve months. These 
contracts are non-cancelable agreements with a pricing formula that takes into account changes in our raw material costs.  
The sheet mills will continue to pursue profitable contract business on a long-term basis. 

GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS 
In 2006, Nucor continued our efforts in governmental affairs on several planes. We have continued the aggressive trade case 
efforts in which we have engaged over the years with our participation in the current statutory five-year sunset reviews of existing 
duties for coated sheet and carbon plate products. In late 2006, the International Trade Commission chose to remove the exisiting 
duties on many of the countries involved in dumping these products into our country. As a result, more unfairly traded foreign 
steel may continue to enter our borders with negative effects on our business. We are currently evaluating these decisions for  
an appeal, and we will continue to fight illegally dumped foreign steel in support of free and fair trade through the legal process.

We have also developed a well-embedded grass roots effort with our state and local legislators to help build support toward many 
other issues beyond the trade cases. Some of these issues include currency manipulation, climate change, energy and tax policy. 
Our goal is to move state and local legislators to recognize the importance of domestic manufacturing and the serious threat 
these issues place against our customer base.

In Washington, we have a strong lobbying effort with the House, Senate, Commerce Department and other Executive Branch 
agencies. At the federal level, we pursue the same issues of currency manipulation, climate change, energy and tax policy 
while working with government officials to help design legislation and public policies that recognize the importance of the U.S. 
manufacturing base. Our end goal in all our governmental affairs work is to help generate changes in our laws to advocate free 
and fair trade in order to allow domestic manufacturing to thrive and succeed. 



14

NEWER FACILITIES AND EXPANSIONS
As part of our long-term growth strategy, Nucor continues to invest in existing operations, make greenfield investments utilizing 
advantageous new technologies and pursue acquisitions that are accretive to earnings. Capital expenditures in the steel mill 
segment totaled $242.5 million, $216.0 million and $195.5 million in 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Nucor began operations of its 100%-owned Castrip facility in Crawfordsville, Indiana, in May 2002. This facility uses the 
breakthrough technology of strip casting, to which Nucor holds exclusive rights in the United States and Brazil. Strip casting 
involves the direct casting of molten steel into final shape and thickness without further hot or cold rolling. This process allows 
lower investment and operating costs, reduced energy consumption and smaller scale plants than can be economically built with 
current technology. This process also reduces the overall environmental impact of producing steel by generating significantly 
lower emissions. In 2006, production and shipments of the Castrip product increased more than 30% over 2005 levels. In 2005, 
Nucor selected Blytheville, Arkansas, as the second Nucor location for a Castrip operation in the United States. The Blytheville, 
Arkansas, Castrip facility is expected to begin operating in the second half of 2008. Nucor expects to establish at least one joint 
venture partner overseas in 2007 to utilize the Castrip technology. 

During the third quarter of 2004, Nucor purchased substantially all of the assets of Corus Tuscaloosa for a cash purchase 
price of approximately $89.4 million. This plate mill had an initial annual capacity of about 800,000 tons and complements 
the product offering of our Hertford County plate mill with thinner gauges of coiled and cut-to-length plate. With minimal 
investments in this facility, combined with the benefits of our incentive pay program, we have increased capacity to 1,200,000 
tons currently. This acquisition was immediately accretive to earnings and made significant operating contributions in 2004 
through 2006.

Also in the third quarter of 2004, Nucor purchased certain cold rolling assets from Worthington, located adjacent to our Decatur, 
Alabama sheet mill, for a cash purchase price of approximately $80.3 million. The purchased assets include all of the buildings, 
a pickle line, four-stand tandem mill, temper mill and annealing furnaces. This modern 1,000,000-ton cold mill with 600,000 
tons of annealing capacity was constructed in 1998 and, together with our new galvanizing line described below, complements 
our strategy to serve value-added customers in the Southeast market. 

In June 2005, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nucor Steel Marion, Inc., purchased substantially all of the assets of Marion 
Steel for a cash purchase price of approximately $110.7 million. The facility is a bar products mill that manufactures angles, 
flats, rebar, rounds and signposts. Located in Marion, Ohio, the mill is in close proximity to 60% of the steel consumption  
in the United States. The facility has already grown its capacity from 400,000 ton to 450,000 tons largely as a result  
of our incentive based compensation program. 

In May 2006, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nucor Steel Connecticut, Inc., purchased substantially all of the assets  
of Connecticut Steel for a cash purchase price of approximately $43.9 million. This facility produces wire rod, rebar, wire mesh 
and structural mesh products. Located in Wallingford, Connecticut, the bar products mill has an annual capacity of approximately 
300,000 tons of wire rod and rebar and approximately 85,000 tons of wire mesh fabrication and structural mesh fabrication.

In June 2006, Nucor announced plans to construct its fourth sheet steel galvanizing facility at Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC,  
with a capital budget of about $152 million. Annual capacity will be approximately 500,000 tons per year and the facility will 
galvanize up to 72-inch wide sheet steel. Construction is expected to begin in the second quarter of 2006 with completion and 
start-up in mid-2008. The addition of this facility will increase Nucor’s total galvanizing annual capacity  
by one-third to 2,000,000 tons.

In October 2006, Nucor announced plans to construct a “Special Bar Quality Products” (“SBQ”) steel mill in Memphis, 
Tennessee. The planned site was acquired in 2002 from the bankrupt Birmingham Steel Company, and the project will utilize 
some of the infrastructure existing at this location. The project is expected to cost approximately $230 million and to have  
an estimated annual capacity of 850,000 tons. The facility will produce high quality carbon and alloy rounds and round  
cornered squares from 2.25” to 9”, complementing the product offerings of Nucor’s Nebraska and South Carolina SBQ mills. 
Construction has begun and start-up is expected in the first quarter of 2008.
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RAW MATERIALS STRATEGY 
Nucor has established a raw materials strategy to control directly, and indirectly through joint ventures with various partners,  
the production of 6,000,000 to 7,000,000 tons per year of high quality metallics for consumption at its steel mills. In April 
2002, Nucor entered a joint venture with The Rio Tinto Group, Mitsubishi Corporation and Chinese steel maker Shougang 
Corporation to construct a commercial HIsmelt plant in Kwinana, Western Australia. The HIsmelt process converts iron ore 
fines and coal fines to liquid metal, eliminating the need for a blast furnace, sinter/pellet plants and coke ovens. Nucor  
has a 25% interest in the joint venture that owns the HIsmelt commercial plant. Construction was completed and start-up 
commenced in 2005. This plant has an initial annual capacity of 800,000 metric tons and is expandable to over 1,500,000 
metric tons. 

In April 2003, Nucor entered a joint venture with CVRD to construct and operate an environmentally friendly pig iron project  
in northern Brazil. The project, named Ferro Gusa Carajás S.A. (“FGC"), utilizes two conventional mini-blast furnaces to produce 
about 380,000 metric tons of pig iron per year, using iron ore from CVRD’s Carajás mine in northern Brazil. The charcoal source 
is exclusively from eucalyptus trees grown in a cultivated forest of about 80,000 acres with the total project encompassing 
approximately 175,000 acres in northern Brazil. The 
cultivated forest removes more carbon dioxide from the 
atmosphere than the blast furnace emits. Production  
of pig iron began in the fourth quarter of 2005. Nucor  
is purchasing all of the production of the plant.

In September 2004, Nucor acquired the assets of an idled 
DRI plant located in Louisiana and subsequently moved 
these assets to Trinidad. Construction is complete and heat-
up commenced in December 2006. In January 2007, Nucor 
announced the successful ramp up of Nu-Iron Unlimited  
to full production capacity of about 2,000,000 tons per year. 
The Trinidad site benefits from a low cost supply of natural 
gas and favorable logistics for receipt of Brazilian iron ore  
and shipment of DRI to the U.S. 
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STEEL PRODUCTS SEGMENT

VULCRAFT AND VERCO are the nation’s largest producers of open-web 

steel joists, joist girders and steel deck, which are used for non-residential 

building construction.

operations
Steel joists and joist girders are produced and marketed nationally through seven Vulcraft facilities located in South Carolina, 
Nebraska, Alabama, Texas, Indiana, Utah and New York. Current annual production capacity is approximately 715,000 tons.  
In 2006, Vulcraft produced 570,000 tons of steel joists and joist girders, an increase of 3% from the 554,000 tons produced  
in 2005.

Material costs, primarily steel, were approximately 53% of the joist sales dollar in 2006 (50% in 2005). Vulcraft obtained 99% 
of its steel requirements for joists and joist girders from the Nucor bar mills in both 2006 and 2005. Freight costs for joists and 
joist girders were less than 10% of the sales dollar in 2006 and 2005. Vulcraft maintains an extensive fleet of trucks to ensure 
and control on-time delivery. 

Steel decking is produced and marketed nationally through nine deck plants located in South Carolina, Nebraska, Alabama, 
Texas, Indiana, New York, Arizona and two in California. Six of these plants were constructed by Nucor adjacent to Vulcraft joist 
facilities. In November 2006, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Verco Decking, Inc, purchased substantially all of the assets of 
Verco Manufacturing Company (“Verco”) for a cash purchase price of approximately $180 million. This acquisition includes three 
deck plants located in Arizona and California, positioning Nucor to better supply the large western construction market. Current 
deck annual production capacity is now approximately 530,000 tons. Steel deck sales increased 5% from 380,000 tons in 2005 
to a record 398,000 tons in 2006. Coiled sheet steel was approximately 64% of the steel deck sales dollar in 2006 (62%  
in 2005). In 2006 and 2005, Nucor obtained 99% of its steel requirements for steel deck production from the Nucor sheet 
mills. For 2006 and 2005, freight costs for deck were less than 10% of the sales dollar.

Production employees of Vulcraft work with a group incentive system that provides increased compensation each week  
for increased performance.

MARKETS AND MARKETING
Steel joists, joist girders and steel decking are used extensively as part of the roof and floor support systems in manufacturing 
buildings, retail stores, shopping centers, warehouses, schools, churches, hospitals and, to a lesser extent, in multi-story 
buildings and apartments. Building support systems using joists, joist girders and steel deck are frequently more economical 
than other systems.

Steel joists and joist girder sales are obtained by competitive bidding. Vulcraft quotes on a significant percentage of the domestic 
buildings using steel joists and joist girders as part of the support systems. In 2006, Vulcraft supplied more than 40% of total 
domestic sales of steel joists. Steel deck is specified in the majority of buildings using steel joists and joist girders. Steel deck  
is also used as concrete floor support in high rise buildings. In 2006, Vulcraft supplied more than 30% of total domestic sales 
of steel deck. With the acquisition of Verco in late 2006, Nucor expects to substantially increase deck sales in 2007. 

Sales of steel joists, joist girders and steel deck are dependent on the non-residential building construction market.



17

year

80

160

240

320

400

th
o

u
sa

n
d

s 
o

f 
to

n
s

steel Deck sales

97 98 99 00 01 02 03 0504 06year

125

250

375

500

625

th
o

u
sa

n
d

s 
o

f 
to

n
s

steel JOist PrODuctiON

97 98 99 00 01 02 03 0504 06



18

COLD FINISH AND FASTENER Nucor manufactures a variety of 

products using steel from Nucor mills.

COLD FINISH

Nucor Cold Finish is the largest producer of cold finished bars in the United States and has facilities in Nebraska, South Carolina, 
Utah and Wisconsin. Three of these facilities were originally constructed by Nucor between 1978 and 1983. In February 2005, 
Nucor purchased the assets of Fort Howard Steel, Inc.’s (“Fort Howard Steel”) operations in Oak Creek, Wisconsin for a cash 
purchase price of approximately $44.1 million. This facility has approximately 140,000 tons of annual capacity. The total capacity 
of the four facilities is approximately 490,000 tons per year. With the successful completion of the acquisition of Harris Steel,  
the Laurel Steel division of Harris Steel will add to Nucor’s position as the largest producer of cold finish steel in North America.  

These facilities produce cold drawn and turned, ground and polished steel bars that are used extensively for shafting and 
precision machined parts. Nucor Cold Finish produces rounds, hexagons, flats and squares in carbon, alloy and leaded steels. 
These bars, in turn, are purchased by the automotive, farm machinery, hydraulic, appliance and electric motor industries,  
as well as by service centers. Nucor Cold Finish bars are used in tens of thousands of products. A few examples include anchor 
bolts, farm machinery, hydraulic cylinders, and shafting for air conditioner compressors, ceiling fan motors, garage door openers, 
electric motors and lawn mowers. 

All four facilities are among the most modern in the world and use in-line electronic testing to ensure outstanding quality. Nucor 
Cold Finish obtains most of its steel from the Nucor bar mills. This factor, along with the efficient facilities using the latest 
technology, results in a highly competitive cost structure.

In 2006, sales of cold finished steel products were  
327,000 tons, a decrease of 4% from 2005’s record 
342,000 tons. The total cold finish market is estimated  
to be approximately 2,000,000 tons. The Wisconsin facility 
represents a continuation of our successful value-added 
strategy and expands our presence in the midwest market. 
Nucor Cold Finish anticipates opportunities for significant 
increases in sales and earnings during the next several years. 

FASTENER 

Nucor Fastener’s state-of-the-art steel bolt-making facility  
in Indiana produces standard steel hexhead cap screws,  
hex bolts, structural bolts and custom-engineered fasteners. 
Fasteners are used in a broad range of markets, including 
automotive, machine tools, farm implements, construction 
and military applications. 

Annual capacity is more than 75,000 tons. Nucor Fastener’s 
dedication to quality, on-time delivery and exceptional 
customer service yields a competitive advantage in a very 
import-sensitive market. Nucor Fastener obtains much  
of its steel from the Nucor bar mills.
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BUILDING SYSTEMS AND LIGHT GAUGE STEEL FRAMING  
Nucor manufactures metal buildings and steel framing systems for 

commercial, industrial and residential construction markets.

BUILDING SYSTEMS

Nucor Building Systems produces metal building systems and components in Indiana, South Carolina and Texas. The annual 
capacity is more than 145,000 tons. The size of the buildings that can be produced ranges from less than 500 square feet 
to more than 1,000,000 square feet. In September 2006, Nucor announced that Brigham City, Utah, had been selected 
for construction of a new Building Systems facility. The facility is expected to cost approximately $27 million and to add 
approximately 45,000 tons to Nucor’s annual capacity to produce metal building systems and components. 

Complete metal building packages can be customized and combined with other materials such as glass, wood and masonry  
to produce a cost effective, aesthetically pleasing building designed for customers’ special requirements. The buildings are  
sold primarily through an independent builder distribution network in order to provide fast-track, customized solutions for 
building owners. 

Building systems sales in 2006 were a record 116,000 tons (114,000 tons in 2005). The primary markets are commercial, 
industrial and institutional buildings, including distribution centers, automobile dealerships, retail centers, schools, warehouses 
and manufacturing facilities. Nucor Building Systems obtains a significant portion of its steel requirements from the Nucor bar 
and sheet mills.

LIGHT GAUGE STEEL FRAMING 

NUCONSTEEL™ (“Nucon”) specializes in load bearing 
light gauge steel framing systems for the commercial and 
residential construction markets with fabrication facilities  
in Texas and Georgia. Nucon also sells its proprietary products 
through a growing network of authorized fabricators located 
throughout the United States. 

In 2004, Nucon introduced two new low-cost automated 
fabrication systems for residential construction: the 
NUFRAME™ automated wall panel system and the 
NUTRUSS® automated truss system. Nucon uses these 
systems in its residential wall panel and truss fabrication 
facility in Texas and has formed a separate group within 
Nucon to sell and license the systems to third parties.

In March 2006, Nucor formed a joint venture with Lennar 
Corporation. NEXFRAME, LP was established to provide 
comprehensive light gauge steel framing solutions for 
residential construction markets across the nation. Nucor 
plans to continue to aggressively broaden Nucon’s 
opportunities through geographic expansion and the 
introduction of new products. 
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OVERVIEW

Nucor is principally a domestic manufacturer of steel and steel products whose customers are located primarily in the United 
States. Additionally, Nucor is the nation’s largest recycler. Nucor reports its results in two segments, steel mills and steel 
products. 

Principal products from the steel mills segment are hot-rolled steel (angles, rounds, flats, channels, sheet, wide-flange beams, 
pilings, billets, blooms, beam blanks and plate) and cold-rolled steel. Principal products from the steel products segment 
are steel joists and joist girders, steel deck, cold finished steel, steel fasteners, metal building systems and light gauge 
steel framing. Hot-rolled steel is manufactured principally from scrap, utilizing electric arc furnaces, continuous casting and 
automated rolling mills. Cold-rolled steel, cold finished steel, steel joists and joist girders, and steel fasteners are manufactured 
by further processing of hot-rolled steel. Steel deck is manufactured from cold-rolled steel. In 2006, approximately 92% of the 
steel mills segment production was sold to non-affiliated customers; the remainder was used internally by the steel products 
segment. 

During the last five years, Nucor’s sales have increased over 240% from $4.33 billion in 2001 to $14.75 billion in 2006. 
Average sales price per ton has increased 88% from $354 in 2001 to $667 in 2006. Total tons sold to external customers 
have increased 81% from 12,237,000 tons in 2001 to 22,118,000 tons in 2006. This growth has been generated through 
acquisitions, optimizing existing operations and developing traditional greenfield projects using new technologies. For the third 
consecutive year, Nucor achieved record sales and net earnings in 2006 due to historically high selling prices, margins and 
shipments. 

In addition to Nucor’s traditional strategy of growing by developing greenfield projects and continually improving existing 
operations, Nucor’s focus over the past several years has included growing profitably through acquisitions. In the steel 
mills segment, the capacity of our bar mills has more than doubled over the past five years, increasing from approximately 
3,800,000 tons in 2001 to 7,960,000 tons in 2006. This growth was driven by the acquisition of the assets of Birmingham 
Steel Corporation's four bar mills in late 2002, the assets of Marion Steel in 2005 and the assets of Connecticut Steel in 2006. 
Ongoing productivity gains obtained at existing bar mills as well as the acquired mills have supplemented this growth.

The capacity of our sheet mills has increased more than 70% from 6,300,000 tons in 2001 to 10,800,000 tons in 2006 
due to the acquisition and start-up in late 2002 of our sheet mill in Decatur, Alabama, as well as by continued productivity 
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advances at our three other sheet mills. The sheet mills are well-positioned to advance our strategic plan for greater 
participation in higher value-added sheet markets.

In 2001, Nucor’s plate mill in Hertford County, North Carolina, had been operational for less than two years and produced 
523,000 tons. With the successful growth of the North Carolina facility and the acquisition of the assets of the Corus Tuscaloosa 
plate mill in 2004, Nucor’s plate capacity is now approximately 2,800,000 tons allowing us to continue to benefit from healthy 
plate market conditions.

Nucor has also increased its participation in downstream steel products via acquisitions and joint ventures. The acquisition 
of Verco Manufacturing Company in late 2006 expanded the reach of Nucor’s steel decking business to the western United 
States. With the acquisition of Fort Howard Steel’s operations in Oak Creek, Wisconsin in 2005, Nucor became the largest U.S. 
producer of cold finished bars. Our value-added steel products provide a valuable base load of volume for our steel mills and are 
less vulnerable to competition from imports. Nucor established several joint ventures in the past few years, forming partnerships 
to grow in the reinforcing steel construction market and residential light gauge steel framing industry. 

Over the past five years, we have strengthened Nucor’s position as North America’s most diversified steel producer. With this 
product line diversity, Nucor’s short-term performance is not tied to any one market. This diversity has been a significant factor 
in Nucor’s ability to maintain profitability every year and every quarter since 1966.

 

COMPARISON OF 2006 TO 2005

NET SALES 
Net sales for 2006 increased 16% to $14.75 billion, compared with $12.70 billion in 2005. The average sales price per ton 
increased 7% from $621 in 2005 to $667 in 2006, while total shipments to outside customers increased 8%. In the steel mills 
segment, net sales to external customers increased 18% from $11.06 billion in 2005 to $13.03 billion in 2006. Approximately 
50% of the sales increase was due to higher sales volume resulting from increased demand for our products, as well as additional 
production capacity obtained from acquisitions made in 2005 and 2006. The remaining 50% of the increase in sales was due  
to higher average selling prices. Net sales to external customers in the steel products segment increased 5% from $1.64 billion 
in 2005 to $1.73 billion in 2006. Approximately 70% of the increase was due to higher average selling prices and approximately 
30% of the increase was due to increased volume, reflecting an improved non-residential construction market. 

Nucor established annual tonnage records in the steel mills segment for total steel shipments and steel shipments to outside 
customers in 2006. Total steel shipments, including those to the steel products segment, increased 8% to 22,346,000 tons  
in 2006, compared with 20,669,000 tons in the previous year. Steel sales to outside customers increased 9% to 20,649,000 
tons in 2006, compared with 19,020,000 tons in 2005. In the steel products segment, production and shipment volumes 
increased over 2005 across most major product lines. Steel joist production for 2006 increased to 570,000 tons, compared with 
554,000 tons in the previous year. Steel deck sales increased to a record 398,000 tons in 2006, compared with 380,000 tons  
in 2005. Cold finished steel sales were 327,000 tons in 2006, compared with 342,000 tons in the previous year.

DIVERSIFIED PRODUCT MIX
Total Tons Sold to Outside Customers in 2006

Sheet
Bar
Structural
Plate
Downstream steel products, including
steel joists, steel deck, cold finish
and building systems

11%

38%

15%

29%

7%
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COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD 
The major component of cost of products sold is raw material costs.  
The volume of raw materials used increased approximately 8% from 2005 
to 2006, consisting of an increase of 9% in the steel mills segment and 
a decrease of 1% in the steel products segment. The average price of raw 
materials remained unchanged in the steel mills segment and increased  
1% in the steel products segment from 2005 to 2006. The average scrap 
and scrap substitute cost per ton used in our steel mills segment increased  
1% from $244 in 2005 to $246 in 2006.

Nucor incurred a charge to value inventories using the last-in, first-out 
(“LIFO”) method of accounting of $5.4 million in 2006, compared with 
a credit of $151.6 million in 2005 when the costs of scrap and scrap 
substitutes were decreasing.

Another significant component of cost of products sold for the steel mills 
segment is energy costs, since steel mills are large consumers of electricity 
and natural gas. Total energy costs decreased approximately $1 per ton  
from 2005 to 2006 as natural gas prices decreased approximately 10%  
and electricity prices increased approximately 2%. Due to the efficiency  
of Nucor’s steel mills, however, energy costs remained less than 10% of the sales dollar in 2006 and 2005. We expect that  
our total energy costs will remain high in 2007. Nucor is hedging a portion of its exposure to the variability of future cash flows 
for forecasted natural gas purchases over various time periods not exceeding four years. In 2006, the settlement of these hedging 
transactions increased cost of products sold by approximately $6.8 million (reduced cost of products sold by $12.4 million in 2005). 
In addition to these hedges, Nucor has entered into natural gas purchase contracts that commit Nucor to purchase $144.9 
million, $45.3 million and $27.4 million of natural gas in 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively, and $563.4 million between 
2010 and 2028. These natural gas purchase contracts will primarily supply our DRI facility in Trinidad. 

In December 2000, Nucor entered into a consent decree with the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“USEPA”) 
and certain states in order to resolve alleged environmental violations. Under the terms of this decree, Nucor is conducting 
testing at some of its facilities, performing corrective action where necessary, and piloting certain pollution control 
technologies.

Nucor revises estimates for environmental reserves as additional information becomes available and projects are completed.  
In 2006 Nucor made approximately $3.9 million in cash payments for remedial efforts and increased reserves by approximately 
$2.9 million ($12.2 million in cash payments and a $9.4 million decrease to reserves in 2005).

GROSS MARGIN 
Gross margins increased from 20% in 2005 to 24% in 2006. In addition to the events and trends discussed above, gross 
margins are affected by pre-operating and start-up costs. Nucor defines pre-operating and start-up costs, all of which are 
expensed, as the losses attributable to facilities or major projects that are either under construction or in the early stages of 
operation. Once these facilities or projects have attained a utilization rate that is consistent with our similar operating facilities, 
they are no longer considered by Nucor to be in start-up. Pre-operating and start-up costs of new facilities increased to $49.1 
million in 2006, compared with $14.4 million in 2005. In 2006, these costs primarily related to the refurbishment and start-up 
of our DRI facility in Trinidad, and to the Hlsmelt project in Australia. In 2005, these costs primarily related to the relocation  
of the DRI plant and its refurbishment, and to the HIsmelt project.

MARKETING, ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES 
The major components of marketing, administrative and other expenses are freight and profit sharing costs. Unit freight costs 
increased 8% from 2005 to 2006 primarily due to higher fuel costs. Profit sharing costs, which are based upon and fluctuate 
with pre-tax earnings, increased approximately 30% from 2005 to 2006. In 2006, profit sharing costs included $272.6 million 
for contributions to a Profit Sharing and Retirement Savings Plan for qualified employees, compared with $206.0 million  
in 2005. In both 2005 and 2006, all employees except for senior officers received a special cash bonus of $2,000 in addition  
to their regular profit-sharing payments. These extraordinary bonuses were paid to employees for the achievement of record 
earnings during the year, resulting in additional profit sharing costs of approximately $23.8 million in 2006 and $22.6 million 
in 2005. Profit sharing costs also fluctuate based on Nucor’s achievement of certain financial performance goals, including 
comparisons of Nucor’s financial performance to peers in the steel industry and to other high performing companies. 
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Stock-based compensation expense included in marketing, administrative, and other expenses increased from $6.7 million  
in 2005 to $17.1 million in 2006. Since stock-based compensation is impacted by changes in Nucor’s stock price, this  
increase in expense was primarily due to the 64% increase in Nucor’s stock price from 2005 to 2006, compared with  
an increase of 27% from 2004 to 2005. The additional stock-based compensation expense incurred in 2006 was also due  
to the granting of restricted stock units to key employees, officers and non-employee directors for the first time in 2006 and  
the expensing of stock options for the first time in 2006 due to the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards  
No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.”

INTEREST (INCOME) EXPENSE 
Net interest (income) expense is detailed below:

Gross interest income more than doubled due to increases in average cash equivalents and short-term investments and,  
to a lesser extent, due to increases in average interest rates. Gross interest expense increased approximately 10% primarily  
due to increased average interest rates. 

MINORITY INTERESTS 
Minority interests represent the income attributable to the minority partners of Nucor’s joint venture, Nucor-Yamato Steel 
Company. Income attributable to minority interests almost doubled from $110.7 million in 2005 to $219.2 million in 
2006. Cash distributions to minority interests increased from $89.9 million in 2005 to $174.7 million in 2006. Under 
the partnership agreement, the minimum amount of cash to be distributed each year to the partners of Nucor-Yamato Steel 
Company is the amount needed by each partner to pay applicable U.S. federal and state income taxes. In some years the 
amount of cash distributed to minority interests exceeds amounts allocated to minority interests based on mutual agreement  
of the general partners; however, the cumulative amount of cash distributed to partners is less than the cumulative net  
earnings of the partnership.

OTHER INCOME 
In 2005, Nucor received $9.2 million in settlement of claims against third parties related to environmental matters (none 
in 2006). Nucor has made claims for reimbursement of additional amounts. No amounts have been recorded for such 
reimbursements, if any, that may be received.

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 
Nucor had an effective tax rate of 34.75% in 2006 compared with  
35.02% in 2005. In 2006, the Internal Revenue Service completed  
its examination of our 2002 through 2004 tax returns. The 2006 tax  
rate reflects an approximately 0.26% reduction to the federal statutory 
tax rate as a result of the reevaluation of our liabilities and contingencies 
in light of the completion of the examination. In 2006, Nucor recorded 
refundable state income tax credits of $12.6 million ($10.4 million  
in 2005). 

NET EARNINGS AND RETURN ON EQUITY  
Net earnings and earnings per share for 2006 increased 34% and 38%, 
respectively, to a record $1.76 billion and $5.68 per diluted share, 
compared with $1.31 billion and $4.13 per diluted share in 2005. Net 
earnings as a percentage of net sales were 11.9% in 2006 compared with 
10.3% in 2005. The 38% increase in earnings per share also reflects the 
effect of repurchasing approximately 11.7 million shares of outstanding 
common stock during 2006. Return on average stockholders’ equity was 
38.6% and 33.9% in 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Year Ended December 31,	 2006	 2005

Interest income	 $(77,716)	 $(32,370)

Interest expense	 40,351	 36,571

Interest (income) expense, net	 $(37,365)	 $   4,201

(in thousands)
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COMPARISON OF 2005 TO 2004

NET SALES 
Net sales increased 12% from $11.38 billion in 2004 to $12.70 billion in 2005. The average sales price per ton increased  
4% from $595 in 2004 to $621 in 2005, while total shipments to outside customers increased 7%. In the steel mills segment, 
net sales to external customers increased 9% from $10.11 billion in 2004 to $11.06 billion in 2005. Approximately 75% 
of the sales increase was due to higher sales volume resulting from stronger business conditions for bar, plate and structural 
products, as well as acquisitions made in 2004 and 2005. The remaining 25% of the increase in sales was due to higher 
average selling prices. Net sales to external customers in the steel products segment were $1.64 billion in 2005 compared with 
$1.27 billion in 2004, an increase of 29%. Approximately 60% of the increase was due to higher average selling prices and 
approximately 40% of the increase was due to increased volume, reflecting a stronger non-residential construction market. 

In the steel mills segment, total steel shipments, including those to the steel products segment, increased from 19,464,000  
tons in 2004 to 20,669,000 tons in 2005, an increase of 6%. Steel sales to outside customers increased 7% to 19,020,000 
tons in 2005, compared with 17,787,000 tons in 2004. In the steel products segment, production and shipment volumes 
increased over the prior year across all major product lines. Steel joist production for 2005 was 554,000 tons, compared with 
522,000 tons in the previous year. Steel deck sales were a record 380,000 tons in 2005, compared with 364,000 tons  
in 2004. Cold finished steel sales were a record 342,000 tons in 2005, compared with 271,000 tons in the previous year,  
aided by the successful integration of the Fort Howard Steel acquisition.

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD 
The volume of raw materials used increased approximately 5% from 2004 to 2005, consisting of an increase of 4% in the 
steel mills segment and an increase of 14% in the steel products segment. The average price of raw materials increased 
approximately 5% from 2004 to 2005. The average price of raw materials in the steel mills segment and the steel products 
segment increased 3% and 25%, respectively, from 2004 to 2005. The average scrap and scrap substitute cost per ton used  
in our steel mills segment increased 3% from $238 in 2004 to $244 in 2005. 

Nucor incurred a credit to value inventories using the LIFO method of accounting of $151.6 million in 2005, compared  
with a charge of $375.9 million in 2004.

Total energy costs increased approximately $7 per ton from 2004 to 2005 due to increases of 31% and 19%, respectively,  
in the prices of natural gas and electricity. Energy costs remained less than 10% of the sales dollar in 2005 and 2004.  
In 2005, the settlement of natural gas hedging transactions reduced cost of products sold by approximately $12.4 million. 

Nucor made approximately $12.2 million in cash payments for remedial efforts and reduced reserves by approximately  
$9.4 million in 2005 ($0.4 million and $10.0 million, respectively, in 2004). The most significant components of the 
decreases of reserves in 2005 are related to successful implementation of alternate environmental technologies that achieve 
full compliance with the agreement between Nucor and the USEPA through minor operational changes. The most significant 
components of the decreases in 2004 related to an agreement with the USEPA that certain technologies identified in the 
consent decree are not feasible and a favorable court ruling that implicated additional potentially responsible parties for  
the cleanup of an off-site waste-recycling facility.

GROSS MARGIN 
Gross margins increased slightly from 19% in 2004 to 20% in 2005. In addition to the events and trends discussed  
above, gross margins improved due to the decrease pre-operating and start-up costs from $28.8 million in 2004 to $14.4  
million in 2005. In 2005, these costs primarily related to the relocation and refurbishment of the DRI facility and to the  
HIsmelt project. In 2004, these costs primarily related to the continuing start-up of the Castrip facility at our sheet mill  
in Crawfordsville, Indiana. Late in 2004, the Castrip process achieved commercial viability; therefore, the costs associated  
with this facility were not included in start-up costs in 2005.  

MARKETING, ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES 
Due to the increase in fuel costs, unit freight costs increased 12% from 2004 to 2005. Profit sharing costs, which are based 
upon and fluctuate with pre-tax earnings, increased approximately 6% from 2004 to 2005. In 2005, profit sharing costs included 
$206.0 million for contributions to a Profit Sharing and Retirement Savings Plan for qualified employees, compared with $172.3 
million in 2004. Profit sharing costs in 2005 and 2004 included an additional $22.6 million and $21.0 million, respectively, 
in extraordinary bonuses paid to employees for the achievement of record earnings during the year. All employees except for senior 
officers received a special cash bonus of $2,000 in addition to their regular profit-sharing payments in both 2005 and 2004. 



25

Year Ended December 31,	 2005	 2004

Interest expense	 $36,571	 $29,335

Interest income	 (32,370)	 (6,983)

Interest expense, net	 $  4,201	 $22,352

INTEREST (INCOME) EXPENSE 
Net interest expense is detailed below:

Gross interest expense increased approximately 25% primarily due to increased average interest rates, accompanied by an increase 
in average long-term debt. Gross interest income increased more than fourfold due to increases in average cash equivalents and 
short-term investments and, to a lesser extent, due to increases in average interest rates.

MINORITY INTERESTS 
Income attributable to minority interests increased from $80.9 million in 2004 to $110.7 million in 2005. Cash distributions 
to minority interests increased from $84.9 million in 2004 to $89.9 million in 2005.

OTHER INCOME 
In 2005, Nucor received $9.2 million in settlement of claims against third parties related to environmental matters. In 2004, 
Nucor sold equipment resulting in pre-tax gains of $1.6 million.  

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 
Nucor had an effective tax rate of 35.02% in 2005 compared with 35.22% in 2004. In both 2005 and 2004, Nucor recorded 
refundable state income tax credits of $10.4 million. 

NET EARNINGS AND RETURN ON EQUITY 
Net earnings and earnings per share for 2005 increased 17% and 18%, respectively, to a record $1.31 billion and $4.13 per 
diluted share, compared with $1.12 billion and $3.51 per diluted share in 2004. Net earnings as a percent of net sales were 
10.3% in 2005 compared with 9.9% in 2004. The 18% increase in earnings per share also reflects the effect of repurchasing 
approximately 11.1 million shares of outstanding common stock during 2005. Return on average stockholders’ equity was 
33.9% and 38.7% in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash flows provided by operating activities provide us with a significant source of liquidity. When needed, we also have external 
short-term financing sources available including the issuance of commercial paper and borrowings under our bank credit 
facilities. We also issue long-term debt from time to time. We have earned long-term debt ratings of A+ by Standard and Poor’s 
and A1 by Moody’s Investors Services, the highest ratings of any metals and mining company in North America. We believe 
our strong financial position and our industry-high credit rating provide us with flexibility and significant capacity to obtain 
additional capital on a cost-effective basis.

We anticipate that cash flows from operations and our existing borrowing capacity will be sufficient to fund expected normal 
operating costs, working capital, dividends and capital expenditures for our existing facilities. Any future significant acquisitions 
could require additional financing from external sources.

During 2006, cash and cash equivalents decreased 20% to $785.7 million, short-term investments increased 65% to $1.41 
billion, and working capital increased 15% to $3.23 billion. Short-term investments consist solely of variable rate demand notes 
(“VRDN’s”), which are variable rate bonds tied to short-term interest rates, but with stated maturities on the face of the bonds 
that exceed 90 days. All VRDN’s in which Nucor invests are secured by direct-pay letters of credit issued by high-credit quality 
financial institutions. This credit enhancement provides a high degree of security and liquidity to the VRDN’s. Nucor is able  
to receive a cash payment in the amount of its principal invested and interest accrued on the VRDN’s no later than seven days 
after notifying the financial institution that it has elected to tender the VRDN’s. 

(in thousands)
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The current ratio remained flat at 3.2 at December 31, 2006 when compared to December 31, 2005. Approximately $199.6  
million and $144.1 million of the cash and cash equivalents position at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively, 
was held by our 51%-owned joint venture, Nucor-Yamato Steel Company. We have a simple capital structure with no off-balance 
sheet arrangements or relationships with unconsolidated special purpose entities. Nucor uses derivative financial instruments 
from time-to-time primarily to manage the exposure to price risk related to natural gas purchases used in the production process 
and to manage exposure to changes in interest rates on outstanding debt instruments.

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Nucor generated cash provided by operating activities of a record $2.25 
billion in 2006 compared with $2.14 billion in 2005, an increase of 5%. 
This increase was the result of the 34% increase in net earnings and the 
98% increase in minority interests, partially offset by changes in operating 
assets and liabilities (exclusive of acquisitions) that used cash of $84.0 
million in 2006 compared with providing cash of $340.8 million in 2005. 
Inventories increased in 2006 primarily due to higher quantities to support 
increased sales levels and higher purchase costs. Inventories decreased 
in 2005 due to reduced inventory levels accompanied by purchase costs 
declining from the record highs experienced in the fourth quarter of 2004.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Our business is capital intensive; therefore, cash used in investing 
activities represents capital expenditures for new facilities, the expansion 
and upgrading of existing facilities, and the acquisition of the assets 
of other companies. Additionally, the cash used in investing activities 
includes investments in joint ventures and purchases of and proceeds 
from the sale of short-term investments. Cash used in investing activities 
decreased to $1.15 billion in 2006 compared with $1.38 billion in 2005, 
primarily due to a reduction in the net purchases of short-term investments 
($553.3 million in 2006 compared with $857.4 million in 2005). Nucor invested $338.4 million in new facilities (exclusive  
of acquisitions) and expansion or upgrading of existing facilities in 2006 compared with $331.5 million in 2005.

Existing cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments funded the acquisitions of assets of Connecticut Steel and 
Verco in 2006 and Fort Howard Steel and Marion Steel in 2005. Nucor expects to continue to pursue profitable growth through 
acquisitions. In January 2007, Nucor commenced a cash tender offer for all of the shares of Harris Steel Group, Inc. for 
approximately $1.07 billion, which we will fund at closing from existing cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments.  
We do not expect to incur any additional debt to complete this tender offer. We believe we have the financial ability, however,  
to borrow significant additional funds to finance future acquisitions and still maintain reasonable leverage.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Cash used in financing activities increased to $1.30 billion in 2006 compared with $550.7 million in 2005. In 2006, Nucor 
increased its base dividend and paid a quarterly supplemental dividend, resulting in dividend payments increasing from $209.8 
million in 2005 to $577.8 million in 2006. 

During 2006, Nucor repurchased approximately 11.7 million shares of Nucor’s common stock at a cost of approximately $599.4 
million under the stock repurchase program. A total of approximately 14.1 million shares remain authorized for repurchase 
under the current program. 
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December 31,	 2006	 2005

Cash and cash equivalents	 $785,651	 $980,150

Short-term investments 	 1,410,633	 857,360

Working capital	 3,225,008	 2,815,854

Current ratio	 3.2	 3.2

(in thousands)
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			  Payments Due By Period

Contractual Obligations	 Total	 2007	   2008 - 2009	 2010 - 2011	 2012 and thereafter

Long-term debt 	 $   922,300	 $           —	 $   180,400	 $         —	 $   741,900

Estimated interest on long-term debt(1)	 482,270	 42,431	 74,279	 63,462	 302,098

Operating leases	 11,990	 2,289	 1,764	 809	 7,128

Raw material purchase commitments(2)	 2,574,150	 788,644	 639,420	 599,236	 546,850

Utility purchase commitments(2)	 1,100,995	 239,393	 197,911	 107,055	 556,636

Other unconditional purchase obligations(3)	 245,845	 155,010	 90,828	 7  	 —

Other long-term obligations(4) 	 188,759	 77,416	 26,884	 2,447	 82,012

Total contractual obligations	 $5,526,309	 $1,305,183	 $1,211,486	 $773,016	 $2,236,624

(in thousands)

The percentage of long-term debt to total capital (long-term debt plus minority interests plus stockholders’ equity) was 15%  
and 17% at year-end 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

In 2005, Nucor entered into a five-year unsecured revolving credit facility maturing in June 2010 that provides for up to $700.0 
million in revolving loans. Up to the equivalent of $600.0 million of the credit facility will be available for foreign currency loans, 
and up to $450.0 million is available for the issuance of letters of credit. The credit facility may be increased by up to $300.0 
million at the election of the Company in accordance with the terms set forth in the credit agreement. No borrowings were 
outstanding under the credit facility as of December 31, 2006.

MARKET RISK 
All of Nucor’s industrial revenue bonds have variable interest rates that are adjusted weekly or annually. These industrial revenue 
bonds represent 43% of Nucor’s long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2006. The remaining 57% of Nucor’s long-term 
debt is at fixed rates. Future changes in interest rates are not expected to significantly impact earnings. From time to time, 
Nucor makes use of interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk. As of December 31, 2006, there were no such contracts 
outstanding. Nucor’s current investment practice is to invest in securities that are highly liquid with short maturities. As a result,  
we do not expect changes in interest rates to have a significant impact on the value of our investment securities.

Nucor also uses derivative financial instruments from time to time primarily to manage its exposure to price risk related to natural 
gas purchases used in the production process. Nucor, generally, does not enter into derivative instruments for any purpose other  
than hedging the cash flows associated with specific volumes of commodities that will be purchased and processed in future periods 
and hedging the exposures related to changes in the fair value of outstanding fixed rate debt instruments. Nucor recognizes all 
derivative instruments in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value.

Nucor has ventures in Brazil and Australia that are in the early stages of operations and owns the DRI facility in Trinidad. 
Accordingly, Nucor is exposed to the effects of currency fluctuations in those countries. As a result of the pending acquisition  
of Harris Steel, in 2007 Nucor has exposure to Canadian currency fluctuations. Nucor hedged a portion of this exposure  
in January 2007 in anticipation of the closing of this transaction in the first quarter. Nucor has not hedged any other foreign 
currency exposures.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS  
The following table sets forth our contractual obligations and other commercial commitments as of December 31, 2006  
for the periods presented.

(1) Interest is estimated using applicable rates at December 31, 2006 for Nucor’s outstanding fixed and variable rate debt.
(2) Nucor enters into contracts for the purchase of scrap and scrap substitutes, iron-ore, electricity, natural gas and other raw materials and  
     related services. These contracts include multi-year commitments and minimum annual purchase requirements and are valued at prices  
     in effect on December 31, 2006, or according to the contract language. These contracts are part of normal operations and are reflected  
     in historical operating cash flow trends. We do not believe such commitments will adversely affect our liquidity position. Approximately  
     $985.7 million of these agreements are with an entity that is the majority investor in one of Nucor's equity investments.
(3) Purchase obligations include commitments for capital expenditures on operating machinery and equipment. 

(4) Other long-term obligations include amounts associated with Nucor’s early retiree medical benefits and management compensation.
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DIVIDENDS 
Nucor has increased its cash dividend every year since it began paying dividends in 1973. In 2006, in addition to raising the 
base dividend by 33%, the board of directors doubled the supplemental dividend based on Nucor’s continued strong performance. 
Nucor paid dividends of $1.88 per share in 2006 compared with $0.67 per share in 2005. In February 2007, the board of directors 
announced a 10% increase in the base dividend to $0.11 per share and announced the continuation of the $0.50 per share 
supplemental dividend, resulting in an annualized dividend rate of $2.44 per share. The supplemental dividend of $0.50 per share 
represents a portion of a total supplemental dividend estimated to be $2.00 per share to be paid over the next four quarterly 
dividend payments. The payment of any future supplemental dividends will depend upon many factors, including Nucor’s earnings, 
cash flows and financial position. Nucor’s dividends paid to stockholders have increased more than nine-fold since 2003:  
$62 million paid in 2003, $70 million paid in 2004, $210 million paid in 2005, and $578 million paid in 2006.

OUTLOOK 
Our objective is to maintain a strong balance sheet while pursuing profitable growth. We expect to expand Nucor's platform  
for generating earnings through greenfield construction utilizing advantageous new technologies, expansions at our existing  
steel mills, future acquisitions and global growth through joint ventures that leverage new technologies. 

Capital expenditures are currently projected to be approximately $940 million in 2007, more than two-and-a-half times our 
capital expenditures in 2006. Nucor continues to invest capital in our core operations to keep them state-of-the-art and globally 
competitive. 

In the steel mills segment, total steel production is anticipated to increase over the next several years from the record 
22,382,000 tons produced in 2006. Our current estimated annual capacity is approximately 25,300,000 tons, and additional 
capacity may be obtained through upgrading existing facilities as well as through acquisitions. Approximately $500 million of 
the 2007 capital spending is allocated to our greenfield projects, including significant projects in the steel mills segment such 
as the SBQ steel mill in Memphis, Tennessee; the Castrip facility in Blytheville, Arkansas; and the sheet steel galvanizing facility 
at our mill in Decatur, Alabama.

Our growth strategy has also expanded our participation in attractive downstream steel products businesses. Our value-added 
steel products provide a valuable base load of volume for our steel mills and are less vulnerable to competition from imports.  
We anticipate that the continued improvement in non-residential building will increase sales and the volume guaranteed  
by Vulcraft and Nucor Building Systems in 2007. With the 2005 purchase of our Wisconsin cold finished bar plant, Nucor 
became the largest U.S. producer of cold finished bars. Our acquisition of Verco has enhanced our market leadership in the  
steel decking market. The addition of our fourth metal building systems plant in Brigham City, Utah, gives us a national 
presence as we execute our strategy to grow profitable market share in this industry.

The acquisition of Harris Steel, which will be Nucor’s largest acquisition to date, is expected to close in the first quarter  
of 2007, upon acceptance by the shareholders of Harris Steel and satisfactory resolution of regulatory approvals. Harris Steel, 
which will operate as a subsidiary of Nucor, manufactures and places reinforcing products, and manufactures industrial products 
principally in the United States and Canada. Harris Steel also participates in steel trading on a worldwide basis, and in the 
distribution of reinforcing steel and related products to U.S. customers. This acquisition will be a major step in advancing 
Nucor’s vertical integration strategy. Nucor is the largest producer of rebar in North America. With this acquisition, Nucor will 
become the third largest rebar fabricator in North America. Under Nucor’s ownership, Harris Steel will be able to accelerate 
its highly successful growth strategy in rebar fabrication through acquisitions and greenfield facilities. In addition to rebar 
fabrication, this acquisition will enable us to grow our cold finished bar market leadership position and bring us greater 
geographic reach into Canada.

We expect that demand in non-residential construction will remain healthy in 2007. Nucor continues to benefit from product line 
diversification. We have recently announced price increases for many of our products. Excess inventory levels at service centers 
and OEM’s should continue to decline. We expect steel inventories to be at more normal levels by the end of the first quarter; 
however, this change will depend on continued strong end-use demand and a decrease in imports from the record levels of 2006. 

We recognize that uncertainty in external factors such as raw materials costs, availability and cost of electricity and natural  
gas, the growth rate of the economy, the level of imports and consolidation in the industry will have a significant impact on our  
results. In 2007, we will continue working towards our goal of controlling approximately six to seven million tons of our supply of 
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high-quality scrap substitutes. Our raw materials strategy is driven by Nucor’s ongoing expansion of our steel product portfolio  
into higher quality grades. We will continue our defense of fair trade and will continue to point out examples of unfair trade 
policies and practices until they are fixed. We will continue to pursue strategic acquisitions that expand our platform for generating 
earnings and attractive returns on our stockholders’ capital. While we cannot control these outside forces, Nucor will continue  
to be at the forefront of anticipating and addressing the issues that this uncertainty in external factors raises for us and other 
steel producers. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial 
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States  
of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at year end, and the reported 
amount of revenues and expenses during the year. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related 
to the valuation allowances for receivables; the carrying value of property, plant and equipment; reserves for environmental 
obligations; and income taxes. Our estimates are based on historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe  
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values  
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Accordingly, actual costs could differ materially from 
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation  
of our consolidated financial statements.

REVENUE RECOGNITION 
We recognize revenue when products are shipped, which represents when title and risk of loss have passed to the customer.

ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 
We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make required 
payments. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make 
payments, additional allowances may be required.

INVENTORIES 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The cost of most inventories is measured on the last in, first out (“LIFO”) 
method of accounting. The LIFO method allocates the most recent costs to cost of products sold, thereby recognizing into 
operating results fluctuations in raw material, energy and other capitalizable costs more quickly than other methods. The cost  
of other inventories is determined on the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method.

ASSET IMPAIRMENTS 
We evaluate the impairment of our property, plant and equipment on an individual asset basis or by logical groupings of assets. 
Asset impairments are recognized whenever changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of those productive 
assets exceed their projected undiscounted cash flows. When it is determined that an impairment exists, the related assets  
are written down to estimated fair market value.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES 
Goodwill is the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill, which is included in other assets,  
is not amortized but is evaluated annually for impairment or if circumstances indicate a possible impairment may exist. Intangible 
assets that do not have indefinite lives are amortized over their useful lives and are annually reviewed for impairment.

ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION 
We are subject to environmental laws and regulations established by federal, state and local authorities, and make provision 
for the estimated costs related to compliance. Undiscounted remediation liabilities are accrued based on estimates of known 
environmental exposures. The accruals are reviewed periodically and, as investigations and remediation proceed, adjustments 
are made as we believe are necessary. The accruals are not reduced by possible recoveries from insurance carriers or other third 
parties. Our measurement of environmental liabilities is based on currently available facts, present laws and regulations,  
and current technology.
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INCOME TAXES 
We account for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, “Accounting 
for Income Taxes.” We estimate our actual current tax expense and assess temporary differences that exist due to differing 
treatments of items for tax and financial statement purposes. These differences result in the recognition of deferred tax assets  
and liabilities. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the  
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities 
of a change in tax rates is recognized in the period in which the change is enacted. We assess the realizability of deferred tax 
assets on an ongoing basis by considering whether it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will  
not be realized. If it is more likely than not, in our judgment, that the deferred tax assets will not be realized, we provide  
a valuation allowance.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) has issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”),“Accounting for 
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,” which clarifies the accounting of uncertainty  
in income taxes recognized in financial statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting of Income Taxes.” 
FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement  
of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The provisions of this Interpretation are effective for Nucor 
beginning on January 1, 2007. Management does not expect the adoption of FIN 48 to have a material impact on Nucor’s 
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

The FASB has issued Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”), which defines fair value, establishes  
a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about 
fair value measurements. The provisions of SFAS No. 157 are effective for Nucor in 2008. Management is currently evaluating 
the impact, if any, of this statement.

The FASB has issued FASB Staff Position AUG AIR-1, “Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Activities,” which is effective 
for Nucor beginning on January 1, 2007. This position statement eliminates Nucor’s current policy, which is the accrue-in-advance 
method of accounting for planned major maintenance activities. In accordance with this position statement, Nucor will use the 
deferral method of accounting for planned major maintenance activities. Although management continues to analyze the impact 
of this position statement, we do not expect the adoption of this statement to have a material impact on Nucor’s consolidated 
financial position and results of operations.
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(dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

	 2006	 2005	 2004	 2003	 2002	 2001

FOR THE YEAR

Net sales	 $14,751,270	 $12,700,999	 $11,376,828	 $6,265,823	 $4,801,777	 $4,333,707

Costs, expenses and other:

   Cost of products sold	 11,283,123	 10,119,496	 9,169,172	 5,996,547	 4,332,277	 3,914,278

   Marketing, administrative 
      and other expenses	 592,473	 459,460	 374,730	 165,369	 175,589	 150,666

   Interest (income) expense, net	 (37,365)	 4,201	 22,352	 24,627	 14,286	 6,525

   Minority interests	 219,221	 110,674	 80,894	 23,950	 79,472	 103,069

   Other income	 —	 (9,200)	 (1,596)	 (11,547)	 (29,900)	 (20,200)

	 12,057,452	 10,684,631	 9,645,552	 6,198,946	 4,571,724	 4,154,338
Earnings before 
   income taxes	 2,693,818	 2,016,368	 1,731,276	 66,877	 230,053	 179,369

Provision for income taxes	 936,137	 706,084	 609,791	 4,096	 67,973	 66,408

Net earnings	 1,757,681	 1,310,284	 1,121,485	 62,781	 162,080	 112,961

Net earnings per share:
   Basic(1)	 5.73	 4.17	 3.54	 0.20	 0.52	 0.37
   Diluted(1)	 5.68	 4.13	 3.51	 0.20	 0.52	 0.37

Dividends declared per share(1)	 2.15	 0.93	 0.24	 0.20	 0.19	 0.17

Percentage of net
   earnings to net sales	 11.9%	 10.3%	 9.9%	 1.0%	 3.4%	 2.6%

Return on average equity	 38.6%	 33.9%	 38.7%	 2.7%	 7.2%	 5.2%

Capital expenditures	 338,404	 331,466	 285,925	 215,408	 243,598	 261,146

Depreciation	 363,936	 375,054	 383,305	 364,112	 307,101	 289,063

Sales per employee	 1,273	 1,159	 1,107	 637	 528	 531

AT YEAR END

Current assets	 $4,675,036	 $4,071,553	 $3,174,948	 $1,620,560	 $1,415,362	 $1,373,666

Current liabilities	 1,450,028	 1,255,699	 1,065,790	 629,595	 591,536	 484,159

Working capital	 3,225,008	 2,815,854	 2,109,158	 990,965	 823,826	 889,507

Cash provided by 
   operating activities	 2,251,233	 2,136,615	 1,024,756	 493,801	 497,220	 495,115

Current ratio	 3.2	 3.2	 3.0	 2.6	 2.4	 2.8

Property, plant and 
   equipment, net	 2,856,415	 2,855,717	 2,818,307	 2,817,135	 2,932,058	 2,365,655

Total assets	 7,884,989	 7,138,787	 6,133,207	 4,492,353	 4,381,001	 3,759,348
	
Long-term debt	 922,300	 923,550	 923,550	 903,550	 894,550	 460,450
	
Percentage of debt to capital	 15.4%	 17.1%	 20.3%	 26.4%	 26.0%	 15.6%

Stockholders’ equity	 4,825,989	 4,279,788	 3,455,985	 2,342,077	 2,322,990	 2,201,461

   Per share	 16.04	 13.80	 10.83	 7.45	 7.43	 7.07

Shares outstanding	 300,949	 310,220	 319,024	 314,361	 312,720	 311,258

Employees	 11,900	 11,300	 10,600	 9,900	 9,800	 8,400

Six-year financial review

(1) Per share and shares outstanding amounts have been adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split effective May 2006.



  

   We are accomplishing this by being the 

					   

“take care of our customers.” 

We are succeeding by working together. 
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company in the world.
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live and work.

and most profitable steel and steel products 

We are committed to doing this while being 
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Management ’s  Report on internal control over financial reporting

Nucor’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such 
term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of Nucor’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006.  
In making this assessment, management used criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the  
Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework.

Based on its assessment, management concluded that Nucor’s internal control over financial reporting was effective  
as of December 31, 2006. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited 
management’s assessment of Nucor’s internal control over financial reporting as stated in their report which is included herein.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
Nucor Corporation:

We have completed integrated audits of Nucor Corporation’s consolidated financial statements and of its internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of earnings, stockholders’ 
equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Nucor Corporation and its subsidiaries 
at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express  
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with 
the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT AND REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
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Internal control over financial reporting
Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over 
Financial Reporting, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 
based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations  
of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, 
the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, 
based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management  
is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness  
of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal 
control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective 
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial 
reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures  
as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company  
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Charlotte, North Carolina
February 27, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS 				                          (in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,	 2006	 2005	 2004

NET SALES	 $14,751,270	 $12,700,999	 $11,376,828

COSTS, EXPENSES AND OTHER:

	 Cost of products sold	 11,283,123	 10,119,496	 9,169,172

	 Marketing, administrative and other expenses	 592,473	 459,460	 374,730

	 Interest (income) expense, net (Note 14)	 (37,365)	 4,201	 22,352

	 Minority interests	 219,221	 110,674	 80,894

	 Other income (Note 15)	 —	 (9,200)	 (1,596)

			   12,057,452	 10,684,631	 9,645,552

EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME TAXES	 2,693,818	 2,016,368	 1,731,276

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES (Note 16)	 936,137	 706,084	 609,791

NET EARNINGS	 $  1,757,681	 $   1,310,284	 $  1,121,485

NET EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 17):

	 Basic(1)	 $5.73	 $4.17	 $3.54

	 Diluted(1)	 $5.68	 $4.13	 $3.51

(1) Adjusted for the stock split effective May 2006. See Note 1.  

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGs
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY				                (in thousands, except per share data)

BALANCES, December 31, 2003	 91,067	 $36,427	 $117,399		 $2,641,708		 $             —	 $     —		  12,477	 	$(453,457)	 $2,342,077

Comprehensive income: 
	 Net earnings in 2004					    1,121,485					                                        1,121,485
	 Net unrealized loss on hedging
	     derivitives, net of income taxes								                  (1,177)						     (1,177)

Total comprehensive income													         1,120,308

Stock options excercised	 1,333	 533	 54,685							     55,218

Issuance of stock under award plans, 
	 net of forfeitures			   11,915			  (592)			   (43)		 1,497	 12,820

Amortization of unearned compensation							      200					     200

2-for-1 stock split	 91,983	 36,793	 (36,793)						      12,437			   —

Cash dividends ($0.24(1) per share)					    (74,638)									     (74,638)

BALANCES, December 31, 2004	 184,383	 73,753	 147,206		 3,688,555	 (392)		  (1,177)		  24,871		 (451,960)		  3,455,985

Comprehensive income: 
	 Net earnings in 2005					    1,310,284								     1,310,284
	 Net unrealized gain on hedging 
	     derivatives, net of income taxes							      55,842						    55,842
	 Reclassification adjustment for gain 
	     on settlement of hedging
	     derivatives included in net income,
	     net of income taxes							      (8,065)				  (8,065)

Total comprehensive income													         1,358,061

Stock options exercised	 916	 367	 26,709										      27,076

Issuance of stock under award plans, 
	 net of forfeitures			   17,935				   (5,095)		  (249)		 4,598		 17,438

Amortization of unearned compensation							      2,200						    2,200

Treasury stock acquired										        5,567	 (291,244)	 (291,244)

Cash dividends ($0.93(1) per share)					    (289,728)								     (289,728)

BALANCES, December 31, 2005	 185,299	 74,120	 191,850		 4,709,111		  (3,287)		  46,600	 30,189		 (738,606)		  4,279,788

Comprehensive income: 
	 Net earnings in 2006					    1,757,681								     1,757,681
	 Net unrealized loss on hedging 
	     derivatives, net of income taxes							      (57,900)					   (57,900)
	 Reclassification adjustment for loss 
	     on settlement of hedging
	     derivatives included in net income,
	     net of income taxes							      4,400				  4,400
	 Foreign currency translation gain,
	     net of income taxes									       11,370				  11,370

Total comprehensive income													         1,715,551

Stock options exercised	 1,253	 500	 36,731										      37,231

Issuance of stock under award plans, 
	 net of forfeitures	 15	 6	 37,442				   3,287			   (262)	 6,317		 47,052

Amortization of unearned compensation			   3,900										       3,900

Treasury stock acquired									        11,248	 (599,446)		 (599,446)

2-for-1 stock split	 185,949	 74,380	 (74,380)						     30,392			   —

Cash dividends ($2.15(1) per share)					    (658,087)									     (658,087) 

BALANCES, December 31, 2006	 372,516	 $149,006	 $195,543		 $5,808,705	 $            —	 $4,470	 71,567	 $(1,331,735)		 $4,825,989

(1) Adjusted for stock split effective May 2006. See Note 1.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Additional 
Paid-In 
Capital

Retained 
Earnings

unearned
compensation

Accumulated other 
comprehensive 
income (Loss)

Total 
Stockholders’ 

equity

Treasury Stock 
(at cost)

AmountShares

Common Stock

Shares Amount

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 						      (in thousands)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,		  2006	 2005

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

	 Cash and cash equivalents		  $   785,651	 $   980,150

	 Short-term investments (Note 2)		  1,410,633	 857,360

	 Accounts receivable, net (Note 3)		  1,067,322	 1,000,629

	 Inventories (Note 4)		  1,141,194	 945,054

	 Other current assets (Notes 11, 16 and 19)		  270,236	 288,360

	 	 Total current assets		  4,675,036	 4,071,553

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET (Note 5)		  2,856,415	 2,855,717

OTHER ASSETS (Notes 1, 6, 11 and 19)		  353,538	 211,517

TOTAL ASSETS		  $7,884,989	 $7,138,787

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

	 Long-term debt due within one year (Note 8)		    $            —	 $      1,250

	 Accounts payable (Note 7)		  516,640	 501,624

	 Salaries, wages and related accruals (Notes 9 and 13)		  455,051	 368,568

	 Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (Notes 7, 11 and 12)		  478,337	 384,257

	 	 Total current liabilities		  1,450,028	 1,255,699

LONG-TERM DEBT DUE AFTER ONE YEAR (Note 8)		  922,300	 922,300

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Notes 9, 11, 12, 13 and 16)		  448,084	 486,910

MINORITY INTERESTS		  238,588	 194,090 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 4 and 12)		

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Note 9):

	 Common stock		  149,006	 74,120

	 Additional paid-in capital		  195,543	 191,850

	 Retained earnings		  5,808,705	 4,709,111

	 Unearned compensation		  —	 (3,287)

	 Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of income taxes (Note 11)		  4,470	 46,600

				    6,157,724	 5,018,394

	 Treasury stock		  (1,331,735)	 (738,606)

		  Total stockholders’ equity		  4,825,989	 4,279,788

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY		  $7,884,989	 $7,138,787

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,	 2006	 2005	 2004

OPERATING ACTIVITIES			 

Net earnings	 $1,757,681	 $1,310,284	 $1,121,485

Adjustments:			 

	 Depreciation	 363,936	 375,054	 383,305

	 Impairment of assets	 —	 —	 13,200

	 Stock-based compensation	 40,106	 16,791	 18,581

	 Deferred income taxes	 (38,910)	 (29,379)	 6,693

	 Minority interests	 219,207 	 110,663 	 80,892

	 Settlement of natural gas hedges	 (6,793)	 12,365	 —

	 Changes in assests and liabilities (exclusive of acquisitions):

		  Accounts receivable	 (33,878)	 (19,425)	 (354,897)

 		  Inventories	 (143,971)	 337,862	 (635,641)

 		  Accounts payable	 (8,517)	 17,259	 130,604

 		  Federal income taxes	 (7,233)	 (68,331)	 35,403

 		  Salaries, wages and related accruals	 86,475	 39,869	 219,885

 		  Other	 23,130	 33,603  	 5,246

Cash provided by operating activities	 2,251,233	 2,136,615	 1,024,756

INVESTING ACTIVITIES			 

Capital expenditures	 (338,404)	 (331,466)	 (285,925)

Investment in affiliates	 (34,324)	 (41,903)	 (82,458)

Disposition of plant and equipment	 2,177	 752	 3,094

Acquisitions (net of cash acquired)	 (223,920)	 (154,864)	 (169,646)

Purchases of short-term investments	 (1,082,378)	 (919,950)	 —

Proceeds from the sale of short-term investments	 529,105	 62,590	 —

Cash used in investing activities	 (1,147,744)	 (1,384,841)	 (534,935)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES	

Proceeds from long-term debt	 —	 —	 20,000

Repayment of long-term debt	 (1,250)	 —	 —

Issuance of common stock	 37,233	 40,209	 68,630

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation	 18,000	 —	 —

Distributions to minority interests	 (174,709)	 (89,886)	 (84,858)

Cash dividends	 (577,816)	 (209,752)	 (69,676)

Acquisition of treasury stock	 (599,446)	 (291,244)	 —

Termination of interest rate swap agreement	 —	 —	 4,800

Cash used in financing activities	 (1,297,988)	 (550,673)	 (61,104) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	 (194,499)	 201,101	 428,717

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – BEGINNING OF YEAR	  980,150	  779,049	  350,332

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – END OF YEAR	  $   785,651	 $   980,150	 $   779,049

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 						     (in thousands)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWs
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YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Nature of Operations Nucor is principally a domestic manufacturer of steel and steel products whose customers are located 
primarily in the United States of America. 

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include Nucor and its controlled subsidiaries, including 
Nucor-Yamato Steel Company, a limited partnership of which Nucor owns 51%. Investments in joint ventures in which Nucor 
shares control over the financial and operating decisions but in which Nucor is not the primary beneficiary are accounted for 
under the equity method. All significant intercompany transactions are eliminated. 

Distributions are made to minority interest partners in Nucor-Yamato Steel Company in accordance with the limited partnership 
agreement by mutual agreement of the general partners. At a minimum, sufficient cash is distributed so that each partner may 
pay applicable U.S. federal and state income taxes payable.

Other assets includes $184.5 million at December 31, 2006 ($161.0 million at December 31, 2005) of equity investments  
in less than 50%-owned domestic and foreign affiliated companies. The results of these investments are included in marketing, 
administrative and other expenses and are immaterial for all periods presented. Nucor periodically evaluates its equity investments 
for potential impairment resulting from declines in value considered to be other than temporary.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents are recorded at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates market, 
and have original maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase. Cash and cash equivalents are maintained primarily 
with a few high-credit quality financial institutions.

Short-term Investments Short-term investments are recorded at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates market. 
Unrealized gains and losses on investments classified as available-for-sale are recorded as a component of accumulated other 
comprehensive income. Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time of purchase and  
reevaluates such determination at each balance sheet date. The Company periodically reviews its investments for impairment  
and adjusts these investments to their fair value when a decline in market value is deemed to be other than temporary. 

Inventories Valuation Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined principally using the last-in, first-
out (LIFO) method of accounting. Cost of other inventories is determined on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.

Property, Plant and Equipment Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line  
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Repairs and maintenance for planned major maintenance activities are accrued 
on a pro-rata basis prior to the next scheduled major maintenance activity (see RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS). All other  
repairs and maintenance activities are expensed when incurred. Impairments of long-lived assets are recognized whenever 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of those productive assets exceeds their projected undiscounted 
cash flows. When it is determined that an impairment exists, the related assets are written down to estimated fair market value.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles Goodwill is the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill,  
which is included in other assets, is not amortized but is evaluated annually for impairment or if circumstances indicate a possible 
impairment may exist. Intangible assets that do not have indefinite lives are amortized over their useful lives and are annually 
reviewed for impairment.

Derivative Financial Instruments Nucor uses derivative financial instruments from time-to-time primarily to partially manage 
its exposure to price risk related to natural gas purchases used in the production process and to partially manage its exposure  
to changes in interest rates on outstanding debt instruments. Nucor, generally, does not enter into derivative instruments for any  
purpose other than hedging the cash flows associated with specific volumes of commodities that will be purchased and processed 
in future periods, and hedging the exposure related to changes in the fair value of outstanding fixed rate debt instruments.

Revenue Recognition Nucor recognizes revenue when products are shipped, which represents when title and risk of loss have 
passed to the customer. 

Freight Costs Internal fleet and some common carrier costs are included in marketing, administrative and other expenses. 
These costs included in marketing, administrative and other expenses were $73.7 million in 2006 ($67.1 million in 2005  
and $55.6 million in 2004). All other freight costs are included in cost of products sold.

Income Taxes Deferred taxes are provided on temporary differences between assets and liabilities for financial reporting and tax 
purposes as measured by enacted tax rates expected to apply when temporary differences are settled or realized. A valuation 
allowance is established for deferred tax assets for which realization is not likely.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year Ended December 31,		  2005	 2004	

Net earnings – as reported		  $1,310,284	 $1,121,485	

Add: Stock-based employee 
	 compensation expense included  
	 in reported net earnings, 
	 net of income taxes		  12,717	 12,017

Deduct: Total stock-based employee 
	 compensation expense determined 
	 under fair value based method for 
	 all awards, net of income taxes		  (21,305)	 (18,296)	

Net earnings – pro forma		  $1,301,696	 $1,115,206	

Net earnings per share – as reported: 
	 Basic		  $4.17	 $3.54		
	 Diluted		  4.13	 3.51	

Net earnings per share – pro forma: 
	 Basic		  4.14	 3.52	  
	 Diluted		  4.10	 3.49

(in thousands, except per share data)

Stock Split In May 2006, Nucor’s board of directors approved a two-for-one stock split of common stock. As a result, stockholders  
of record received one additional share on May 31, 2006 for each share held as of the record date of May 19, 2006. The post- 
split par value of a share of Nucor’s common stock remains $0.40 per share. All share and per share amounts have been restated  
to reflect the two-for-one stock split, except for the statements of stockholders’ equity, which reflect the stock split by reclassifying  
from additional paid-in capital to common stock an amount equal to the par value of the additional shares issued to effect the 
stock split as of the date of the stock split.

Stock-Based Compensation Effective January 1, 2006, Nucor adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 
No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” applying the modified prospective approach. As a result, the Company began to recognize 
the cost of stock-based compensation as an expense using fair value measurement methods.

Through 2005, Nucor accounted for stock-based compensation plans under the recognition and measurement provisions 
of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related Interpretations. 
Accordingly, no compensation expense was recorded, other than for restricted stock grants, since the exercise price of the stock 
options was equal to the market price of Nucor’s common stock on the grant date. The following presents pro-forma net earnings 
and per share data as if a fair value based method had been used to account for stock-based compensation in 2005 and 2004:

The assumptions used to calculate the fair value of options granted are evaluated and revised, as necessary, to reflect market 
conditions and experience.

Comprehensive Income (Loss) Nucor reports comprehensive income (loss) in its consolidated statement of stockholders’ equity. 
Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income and other gains and losses affecting stockholders’ equity that, under United 
States generally accepted accounting principles, are excluded from net income, such as gains and losses related to certain 
derivative instruments, which are presented net of tax. Additionally, the translation effect of foreign currency assets and liabilities 
of non-U.S. entities are presented net of tax as earnings of foreign operations are not considered indefinitely reinvested.

Foreign Currency Translation For Nucor’s legal entities where the functional currency is other than the U.S. dollar, assets and 
liabilities have been translated at year-end exchange rates, and income and expenses translated using average exchange rates for 
the respective periods. Adjustments resulting from the process of translating an entity’s financial statements into the U.S. dollar 
have been recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income and are included in net earnings only upon sale or liquidation  
of the underlying investments. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are included in operations in the period they occur.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB 
Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,” 
which clarifies the accounting of uncertainty in income taxes recognized in financial statements in accordance with FASB 
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Statement No. 109, “Accounting of Income Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the 
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The provisions 
of this Interpretation are effective for Nucor beginning on January 1, 2007. Management does not expect the adoption of FIN 48 
to have a material impact on Nucor's consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”), which defines fair 
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and expands 
disclosures about fair value measurements. The provisions of SFAS No. 157 are effective for Nucor in 2008. Management  
is currently evaluating the impact, if any, of this statement.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position AUG AIR-1, “Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Activities,” 
which is effective for Nucor beginning on January 1, 2007. This position statement eliminates Nucor’s current policy, which 
is the accrue-in-advance method of accounting for planned major maintenance activities. In accordance with this position 
statement, Nucor will use the deferral method of accounting for planned maintenance activities. Although management continues 
to analyze the impact of this position statement, we do not expect the adoption of this statement to have a material impact  
on Nucor’s consolidated financial position and results of operations.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Reclassifications Certain amounts for prior years have been reclassified to conform to the 2006 presentation.

2.	 Short-term Investments:

As of December 31, 2006, short-term investments consisted entirely of variable rate demand notes (“VRDN’s”), which are variable 
rate bonds tied to short-term interest rates, but with stated maturities on the face of the bonds that exceed 90 days. All of the 
VRDN’s in which Nucor invests are secured by a direct-pay letter of credit issued by a high-credit quality financial institution. 
Nucor is able to receive the principal invested and interest accrued thereon no later than seven days after notifying the financial 
institution that Nucor has elected to tender the VRDN’s. VRDN’s trade at par value; therefore, no realized or unrealized gains  
or losses were incurred. Aggregate contractual maturities of the Company’s short-term investments are $17.8 million in 2009, 
$102.7 million in 2015 and $1.29 billion in 2021 and thereafter.

3.	 Accounts Receivable:

An allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make 
required payments. Accounts receivable are stated net of the allowance for doubtful accounts of $38.0 million at December 31, 
2006 ($39.2 million at December 31, 2005 and $40.4 million at December 31, 2004).

4.	 Inventories:

Inventories consist of approximately 48% raw materials and supplies and 52% finished and semi-finished products at December 
31, 2006 (50% and 50%, respectively, at December 31, 2005). Nucor’s manufacturing process consists of a continuous, 
vertically integrated process from which products are sold to customers at various stages throughout the process. Since most 
steel products can be classified as either finished or semi-finished products, these two categories of inventory are combined. 

Inventories valued using the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method of accounting represent approximately 63% of total inventories 
at December 31, 2006 (68% at December 31, 2005). If the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method of accounting had been used, 
inventories would have been $387.2 million higher at December 31, 2006 ($381.9 million higher at December 31, 2005). Use 
of the lower of cost or market reduced inventories by $0.4 million at December 31, 2006 ($1.2 million at December 31, 2005).

Nucor has entered into supply agreements for certain raw materials, utilities and other items in the ordinary course of business. 
These agreements extend into 2028 and total approximately $3.68 billion at December 31, 2006. Approximately $985.7 million 
of these agreements are with an entity that is the majority investor in one of Nucor’s equity investments.
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	 Steel Mills	S teel Products	 Total

Balances, December 31, 2004	 $     —	 $   6,599	 $    6,599
Acquisitions	 2,007	 8,414	 10,421
Balances, December 31, 2005	 2,007	 15,013	 17,020
Acquisitions	 —	 126,245	 126,245
Balances, December 31, 2006	 $2,007	 $141,258	 $143,265

(in thousands)

December 31,		  2006	 2005

Land and improvements		  $   170,259	 $   146,471
Buildings and improvements		  520,930	 500,526
Machinery and equipment		  5,592,077	 5,183,241
Construction in process and equipment deposits		  110,190	 226,698
		  6,393,456	 6,056,936
Less accumulated depreciation		  3,537,041	 3,201,219
		
		  $2,856,415	 $2,855,717

(in thousands)

(in thousands)

December 31,		  2006	 2005

Industrial revenue bonds:
   3.71% to 3.90%, variable, due from 2009 to 2038		  $397,300	 $398,550
Notes, 6%, due 2009		  175,000	 175,000
Notes, 4.875%, due 2012		  350,000	 350,000
		  922,300	 923,550
Less current maturities		  —	 (1,250)
		  $922,300	 $922,300

5. Property, Plant and Equipment:

The estimated useful lives range from 10 to 20 years for buildings and land improvements and range from 3 to 12 years  
for machinery and equipment.

6. Goodwill:

The change in the net carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 by segment  
is as follows:

Goodwill resulting from the acquisition of Verco Manufacturing Company accounts for the majority of the increase in goodwill  
in the current year and is presented based upon Nucor’s preliminary purchase price allocation.

7. Current Liabilities: 

Drafts payable, included in accounts payable in the balance sheet, was $74.7 million at December 31, 2006 ($76.3 million  
at December 31, 2005).

Dividends payable, included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the balance sheet, was $181.2 million  
at December 31, 2006 ($100.9 million at December 31, 2005).

8. Long-Term Debt and Financing Arrangements:
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(shares in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,		

Number of shares under option:	
   Outstanding at beginning of year	  4,366 	 $19.93 	  4,672 	 $14.68 	  6,847 	 $12.02 
   Granted	  — 	  — 	  1,553 	  29.75 	  2,367 	 17.82 
   Exercised	  (1,903)	  19.56 	  (1,833)	  14.77 	  (4,499)	 12.27 
   Canceled	  (2)	 28.86 	  (26)	 27.71 	  (43)	 15.63 
   Outstanding at end of year	 2,461 	 $20.21 	  4,366	 $19.93 	  4,672 	 $14.68 
 	
Options exercisable at end of year 	 2,461 	 $20.21 	  3,562 	 $17.91 	  3,574 	 $13.15
 
Shares reserved for future grants 		  	 19,068 		  20,596	  

Shares
Weighted Average 

Exercise Price
Shares

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price

Shares
Weighted Average 

Exercise Price

2006 2005 2004

In 2005, Nucor entered into a five-year unsecured revolving credit facility maturing in June 2010 that provides for up to $700.0 
million in revolving loans. Up to the equivalent of $600.0 million of the credit facility is available for foreign currency loans, and 
up to $450.0 million is available for the issuance of letters of credit. The credit facility may be increased by up to $300.0 million 
at the election of the Company in accordance with the terms set forth in the credit agreement. No borrowings were outstanding 
under the credit facility as of December 31, 2006. The credit facility provides for grid-based interest pricing based upon the 
credit rating of Nucor’s senior unsecured long-term debt and, alternatively, interest rates quoted by lenders in connection with 
competitive bidding. The credit facility includes customary financial and other covenants, including a limit on the ratio of debt  
to total capital of 60%, a limit on Nucor’s ability to pledge the Company’s assets, and a limit on consolidations, mergers and 
sales of assets.

Annual aggregate long-term debt maturities are: none in 2007; none in 2008; $180.4 million in 2009; none in 2010;  
and $741.9 million thereafter.

The fair value of Nucor’s long-term debt approximates the carrying value.

9. Capital Stock:

In May 2006, Nucor’s stockholders approved an amendment to Nucor’s Articles of Incorporation, increasing the number of shares 
of common stock that Nucor is authorized to issue to 800 million. The par value of Nucor’s common stock remains $0.40 per 
share. In addition, 250,000 shares of preferred stock, par value of $4.00 per share, are authorized, with preferences, rights  
and restrictions as may be fixed by Nucor’s board of directors. There are no shares of preferred stock issued or outstanding.

Stock Options Nucor’s stock option plans provide that common stock options may be granted to key employees, officers and 
non-employee directors with exercise prices at 100% of the market value on the date of the grant. Outstanding options are 
exercisable six months after grant date and have a term of seven years. Nucor did not grant any options during 2006 and does  
not expect to grant options to its employees, officers or non-employee directors in future periods. 

A summary of activity under Nucor’s stock option plans is as follows:

Since Nucor began granting restricted stock units in 2006 in lieu of stock options, the shares reserved for future grants as of 
December 31, 2006 are reflected in the restricted stock units table located at the end of this note. The total intrinsic value 
of options (the amount by which the stock price exceeded the exercise price of the option on the date of exercise) that were 
exercised during 2006 was $56.1 million ($28.9 million in 2005 and $31.7 million in 2004).
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	 $  9.01 –  $16.00	 846	 2.6 years			  $12.17		  808	 $24.35
	 16.01 –    23.00	 744	 4.4 years			   18.22		  621	 36.21
	  23.01 –    30.00	 476	 5.6 years			   28.86		  —	 —
	  30.01 –    30.73	 395	 5.1 years			   30.73		  352	 61.46	  			 
	 9.01 –    30.73	 2,461	 4.1 years			   20.21		  1,781	 35.83

Number Outstanding
and Exercisable

Weighted
Average Remaining  

Contractual Life

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price

Number Exercisable
Weighted Average 

Exercise Price

Options Outstanding and Exercisable Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices

Year Ended December 31,	 2005	 2004	 2003

Expected dividend yield	 0.98% – 1.04%	 1.30% – 1.32%	 1.56% – 1.92%
Expected stock price volatility	 38.42% – 38.43%	 29.18% – 31.08%	 43.37% – 46.51%
Risk-free interest rate	 3.76% – 3.80%	 2.15% – 2.74%	 1.91% – 2.62%
Expected life of options (in years)	 3.5	 3.5	 3.5

(shares in thousands)

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006:

The total aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and options exercisable as of December 31, 2006 was $84.8 million.

The weighted-average per share fair value of options granted was $9.08 in 2005 and $4.05 in 2004 (none granted in 2006). 
The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the 
following assumptions (expected volatilities are based on historical experience):

 

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) in the first quarter of 2006, $2.5 million of compensation expense was recorded over  
the remaining vesting period for the unvested portion of previously issued awards that were outstanding at January 1, 2006. 
Since Nucor did not grant any options in 2006 and since as of March 1, 2006, all outstanding options were vested, no additional 
compensation expense related to stock options was recorded throughout the remainder of the year.

The amount of cash received from the exercise of stock options totaled $37.2 million in 2006.

Restricted Stock Awards Nucor’s Senior Officers Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “LTIP”) and Annual Incentive Plan (the “AIP”) 
authorize the award of shares of common stock to officers subject to certain conditions and restrictions. 

The LTIP provides for the award of shares of restricted common stock at the end of each LTIP performance measurement period 
at no cost to officers if certain financial performance goals are met during the period. One-third of the LTIP restricted stock award 
vests upon each of the first three anniversaries of the award date or, if earlier, upon the officer’s attainment of age fifty-five while 
employed by Nucor. Although participants are entitled to cash dividends and may vote such awarded shares, the sale or transfer 
of such shares is limited during the restricted period. 

The AIP provides for the payment of annual cash incentive awards. An AIP participant may elect, however, to defer payment  
of up to one-half of an annual incentive award. In such event, the deferred AIP award is converted into common stock units and 
credited with a deferral incentive, in the form of additional common stock units, equal to 25% of the number of common stock 
units attributable to the deferred AIP award. Common stock units attributable to deferred AIP awards are fully vested. Common 
stock units credited as a deferral incentive vest upon the AIP participant’s attainment of age fifty-five while employed by Nucor. 
Vested common stock units are paid to AIP participants in the form of shares of common stock following their termination  
of employment with Nucor.
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Restricted stock units:	
   Unvested at beginning of year	  — 	 $     — 	  76	 $14.03 	 —	 $     —	
   Granted	  769	  52.64 	  585 	 28.83	 103	 14.03
   Vested	  (159)	  52.64 	  (253)	 26.79	 (27)	 14.03
   Canceled 	 (13)	 52.64 	  —	 —	 —	 —
   Unvested at end of year	 597 	 $52.64 	 408 	 $27.33	 76	 $14.03 
	
Shares reserved for future grants 	 18,314	 	 3,312 		  3,897	  

Shares
Grant Date 
Fair Value

Shares
Grant Date 
Fair Value

Shares

 2006 2005   2004

Grant Date 
Fair Value

(shares in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,		

Restricted stock awards and units:	
   Unvested at beginning of year	  408 	 $27.33 	  76	 $14.03 	 —	 $     —	
   Granted	  588	  47.54 	  585 	 28.83	 103	 14.03
   Vested	  (436)	  39.26 	  (253)	 26.79	 (27)	 14.03
   Canceled 	 (7)	 47.54 	  —	 —	 —	 —
   Unvested at end of year	 553 	 $39.14 	 408 	 $27.33	 76	 $14.03 
	
Shares reserved for future grants 	 2,731	 	 3,312 		  3,897	  

Shares
Grant Date 
Fair Value

Shares
Grant Date 
Fair Value

Shares

 2006 2005   2004
(shares in thousands)

Grant Date 
Fair Value

Year Ended December 31,

A summary of Nucor’s restricted stock activity under the AIP and LTIP is as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Compensation expense for common stock and common stock units awarded under the AIP and LTIP is recorded over the performance  
measurement and vesting periods based on the anticipated number and market value of shares of common stock and common 
stock units to be awarded. Compensation expense for anticipated awards based upon Nucor’s financial performance, exclusive  
of amounts payable in cash, was $23.1 million in 2006 ($16.8 million in 2005 and $18.6 million in 2004). The total fair value 
of shares vested during 2006 was $20.3 million ($7.5 million in 2005 and $0.5 million in 2004). As of December 31, 2006, 
unrecognized compensation expense related to non-vested restricted stock was $4.6 million, which is expected to be recognized 
over a weighted-average period of 1.7 years.

Restricted Stock Units In June 2006, Nucor granted restricted stock units (“RSU’s”) to key employees, officers and non-employee  
directors for the first time. The RSU’s typically vest and are converted to common stock in three equal installments on each of the  
first three anniversaries of the grant date. A portion of the RSU’s awarded to senior officers vest upon the officer’s retirement. 
Retirement, for purposes of vesting in these units only, means termination of employment with approval of the Compensation and 
Executive Development Committee after satisfying age and years of service requirements. RSU’s granted to non-employee directors 
are fully vested on the grant date and are payable to the non-employee director in the form of commons stock after the termination 
of the director’s service on the board of directors.

RSU’s granted to employees who are eligible for retirement on the date of grant or will become retirement-eligible prior to the  
end of the vesting term are expensed over the period through which the employee will become retirement-eligible since the awards 
vest upon retirement from the Company. Compensation expense for RSU’s granted to employees who are not retirement-eligible  
is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. 

Cash dividend equivalents are paid to participants each quarter. Dividend equivalents paid on units expected to vest are recognized 
as a reduction in retained earnings.

The fair value of the RSU’s is determined based on the closing stock price of Nucor’s common stock on the day before the grant.  
A summary of Nucor’s restricted stock unit activity for 2006 is as follows:
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Restricted stock units:	
   Unvested at beginning of year	  — 	 $     — 	  76	 $14.03 	 —	 $     —	
   Granted	  769	  52.64 	  585 	 28.83	 103	 14.03
   Vested	  (159)	  52.64 	  (253)	 26.79	 (27)	 14.03
   Canceled 	 (13)	 52.64 	  —	 —	 —	 —
   Unvested at end of year	 597 	 $52.64 	 408 	 $27.33	 76	 $14.03 
	
Shares reserved for future grants 	 18,314	 	 3,312 		  3,897	  

Shares
Grant Date 
Fair Value

Shares
Grant Date 
Fair Value

Shares

 2006 2005   2004

Grant Date 
Fair Value

(shares in thousands)

Compensation expense for RSU’s was $14.5 million in 2006 (none in 2005 and 2004). The total fair value of shares vested during  
2006 was $8.4 million in 2006 (none in 2005 and 2004). As of December 31, 2006, unrecognized compensation expense 
related to non-vested RSU’s was $24.4 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.0 years.

10. Stockholder Rights Plan:

In 2001, the board of directors adopted a Stockholder Rights Plan (“Plan”) in which one right (“Right”) was distributed  
as a dividend for each Nucor common share outstanding. The Plan was amended in 2006 to adjust the purchase price of the 
Rights for stock splits effected since adoption of the Plan. Each Right entitles Nucor common stockholders to purchase, under 
certain conditions, one five-thousandth of a share of newly authorized Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock (“Preferred 
Stock”), with one five-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock intended to be the economic equivalent of one share of Nucor 
common stock. Until the occurrence of certain events, the Rights are represented by and traded in tandem with Nucor common 
stock. Rights will be exercisable only if a person or group acquires beneficial ownership of 15 percent (15%) or more of the 
Nucor common shares or commences a tender or exchange offer, upon the consummation of which such person or group would 
beneficially own 15 percent (15%) or more of the common shares. Upon such an event, the Rights enable dilution of the acquiring 
person’s or group’s interest by providing that other holders of Nucor common stock may purchase, at an exercise price of $150, 
Nucor common stock, or in the discretion of the board of directors, Preferred Stock, having double the value of such exercise 
price. Nucor will be entitled to redeem the Rights at $0.001 per Right under certain circumstances set forth in the Plan.  
The Rights themselves have no voting power and will expire on March 8, 2011, unless earlier exercised, redeemed or exchanged. 
Each one five-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock has the same voting rights as one share of Nucor common stock, and 
each share of Preferred Stock has 5,000 times the voting power of one share of Nucor common stock. 

11. Derivative Financial Instruments:

In accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 138,  
“Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities,” and SFAS 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 
on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” Nucor recognizes all derivative instruments, such as natural gas forward 
purchase contracts and interest rate swaps, in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value. Amounts included in accumulated 
other comprehensive income related to cash flow hedges are reclassified into earnings when the related derivative instruments 
settle. Changes in fair value hedges are reported currently in earnings along with changes in the fair value of the hedged items. 
When cash flow and fair value hedges affect net earnings, they are included on the same line as the underlying transaction  
(cost of products sold or interest expense).

During 2006, accumulated other comprehensive income decreased by $57.9 million, net of deferred taxes of $31.2 million, 
due to unrealized losses on cash flow hedges on natural gas forward purchase contracts. The remaining change in accumulated 
other comprehensive income attributable to cash flow hedges on natural gas forward purchase contracts was due to the 
reclassification of net losses of approximately $4.4 million, net of deferred taxes of approximately $2.4 million, into earnings  
due to the settlement of transactions. During 2005, accumulated other comprehensive income increased by $55.8 million,  
net of deferred taxes of $30.0 million, due to unrealized gains on cash flow hedges on natural gas forward purchase contracts. 
The remaining change in accumulated other comprehensive income was due to the reclassification of net gains of approximately 
$8.1 million, net of deferred taxes of approximately $4.3 million, into earnings due to the settlement of transactions. During 
2004, accumulated other comprehensive loss increased by $1.2 million, net of taxes of $0.6 million, due to unrealized losses 
on cash flow hedges on natural gas forward purchase contracts issued during the year.

Of the total $10.6 million fair value of cash flow hedges on natural gas forward purchase contracts at December 31, 2006, 
$12.6 million is included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities and $2.0 is included in other assets. Of the total 
$71.7 million fair value of cash flow hedges on natural gas forward purchase contracts at December 31, 2005, $53.6 million 
is included in other current assets and $18.1 million is included in other assets. At December 31, 2006, $8.2 million of net 
deferred losses on cash flow hedges on natural gas forward purchase contracts included in accumulated other comprehensive 
income are expected to be reclassified into earnings, due to the settlement of forecasted transactions, during the next twelve  
months assuming no change in the forward commodity prices from December 31, 2006. Nucor is hedging a portion of its exposure  
to the variability of future cash flows for forecasted natural gas purchases over various time periods not exceeding four years.

Nucor has also entered into various natural gas purchase contracts, which meet the normal purchase normal sale exclusion 
under SFAS No. 133. These instruments effectively commit Nucor to purchase $144.9 million, $45.3 million and $27.4 
million of natural gas for production in 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively, and $563.4 million between 2010 and 2028. 
These natural gas purchase contracts will primarily supply our direct reduced iron facility in Trinidad.
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Year Ended December 31,	 2006	 2005	 2004

	 Interest income	 $(77,716)	 $(32,370)		  $ (6,983)
	 Interest expense	 40,351	 36,571		  29,335
	 Interest (income) expense, net	 $(37,365)	 $   4,201		  $22,352

(in thousands)

During 2004, Nucor entered into, and subsequently terminated, an interest rate swap agreement of $175.0 million that  
was accounted for as a fair value hedge. Under the agreement, Nucor paid a variable rate of interest and received a fixed rate  
of interest over the term of the interest rate swap agreement. The interest rate swap agreement converted the $175.0 million 
note payable from a 6% fixed rate obligation to a variable rate obligation. The change in the fair value of this agreement was 
recorded in earnings as an equal offset to the change in fair value of the underlying debt obligation. Since the fair value hedge 
was 100% effective, there was no impact to net earnings. The variable interest rate was the six-month LIBOR rate in arrears 
plus 1.25%. Nucor terminated this interest rate swap agreement in 2004, resulting in a gain of $4.8 million. 

At December 31, 2006, there was an aggregate credit of $3.1 million related to this and previous interest rate swaps included  
in deferred credits and other liabilities in the balance sheet, all of which are amortized over the remaining life of the debt  
as adjustments to interest expense.

Nucor does not anticipate non-performance by the counterparties in any of these derivative instruments given their high credit 
ratings, and no material loss is expected from non-performance by any one of such counterparties.

12. Contingencies:

Nucor is subject to environmental laws and regulations established by federal, state and local authorities, and, accordingly, 
makes provision for the estimated costs of compliance. Of the undiscounted total $23.0 million of accrued environmental costs 
at December 31, 2006 ($24.0 million at December 31, 2005), $19.7 million was classified in accrued expenses and other 
current liabilities ($20.0 million at December 31, 2005) and $3.3 million was classified in deferred credits and other liabilities 
($4.0 million at December 31, 2005). Inherent uncertainties exist in these estimates primarily due to unknown conditions, 
evolving remediation technology, and changing governmental regulations and legal standards regarding liability. During 2006 
Nucor revised estimates as additional information was obtained and projects were completed, increasing environmental reserves 
by $2.9 million (reducing reserves by $9.4 million in 2005 and $10.0 million in 2004). The revisions are included in cost 
of products sold. In December 2000, the United States Environmental Protection Agency and the Department of Justice 
announced an agreement with Nucor and certain states that resolved alleged violations of environmental laws and regulations. 
Nucor continues to implement the various components of the consent decree, which involve air and water pollution control 
technology demonstrations along with other environmental management practices. The accrued environmental costs include  
the expenses that Nucor expects to incur as a result of the consent decree.

Other contingent liabilities with respect to product warranties, legal proceedings and other matters arise in the normal course  
of business. Nucor maintains liability insurance for certain risks that arise that are also subject to certain self-insurance limits. 
In the opinion of management, no such matters exist which, in the event of an unfavorable outcome, would have a material 
effect on the consolidated financial statements.

13. Employee Benefit Plans:

Nucor makes contributions to a Profit Sharing and Retirement Savings Plan for qualified employees based on the profitability  
of the company. Nucor’s expense for these benefits totaled $272.6 million in 2006 ($206.0 million in 2005 and $172.3 
million in 2004). The related liability for these benefits is included in salaries, wages and related accruals at each year-end. 
Nucor also has a medical plan covering certain eligible early retirees. The unfunded obligation, included in deferred credits  
and other liabilities in the balance sheet, totaled $51.8 million at December 31, 2006 ($48.0 million at December 31, 2005). 
Expense associated with this plan totaled $4.6 million in 2006 ($2.9 million in 2005 and $3.0 million in 2004). The discount 
rate used was 5.75% in 2006 (5.50% in 2005 and 5.75% in 2004). The health care cost increase trend rate used was 8%  
in 2006 (9% in 2005 and 10% in 2004). The health care cost increase in the trend rate is projected to decline gradually  
to 5% by 2011.

14. Interest (Income) Expense:

Net interest (income) expense consists of the following:

Interest paid was $41.5 million in 2006 ($37.2 million in 2005 and $32.4 million in 2004).
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Year Ended December 31,	  2006	 2005	 2004

Taxes computed at statutory rate	 35.00%	 35.00%		 35.00%
State income taxes, net of
   federal income tax benefit	 1.76				  1.57		  1.07
Resolution of prior year contingencies	 (0.26)		  —		  (0.65)
Federal research credit	 (0.05)		  (0.07)		  (0.12)
Domestic manufacturing deduction	 (1.03)		  (1.04)		  —
Other, net	 (0.67)		  (0.44)		  (0.08)

Provision for income taxes 	 34.75%	 35.02%		 35.22%

Year Ended December 31,	 2006	 2005	 2004

Current:
	 Federal	 $902,110	 $685,479		  $574,107
	 State	 72,937	 49,984		  28,991
		  Total current	 975,047	 735,463		  603,098

Deferred:	
	 Federal	 (38,910)	 (28,179)	 7,193
	 State	 —	 (1,200)	 (500)
		  Total deferred	 (38,910)	 (29,379)	 6,693

Total provision for income taxes	 $936,137	 $706,084	 $609,791

(in thousands)

15.	Other Income:

In 2005, Nucor received $9.2 million in settlement of claims against third parties related to environmental matters. Nucor has 
made claims for reimbursement of additional amounts. No amounts have been recorded for such reimbursements, if any, that 
may be received. In 2004, Nucor sold equipment resulting in a pre-tax gain of $1.6 million. 

16. Income Taxes:

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

A reconciliation of the federal statutory tax rate (35%) to the total provision is as follows:
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December 31,	 2006	 2005

Deferred tax assets:
    Accrued liabilities and reserves	 $ 93,542	 $   85,629
    Allowance for doubtful accounts	 11,617	 12,142
    Inventory	 138,642	 137,587
    Post retirement benefits	 19,855	 18,753
    Natural gas hedges	 4,495	 —
       Total deferred tax assets	 268,151	 254,111

Deferred tax liabilities:
    Cumulative translation adjustment	 (6,345)	 —
    Natural gas hedges	 —	 (25,541)
    Property, plant and equipment	 (323,106)	 (370,170)
       Total deferred tax liabilities	 (329,451)	 (395,711)

Total net deferred tax liabilities	 $(61,300)	 $(141,600)

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,	 2006	 2005	 2004	

Basic earnings per share:
    Basic net earnings	 $1,757,681	 $1,310,284	 $1,121,485

    Average shares outstanding	 306,621	 314,256	 316,766

    Basic net earnings per share	 $5.73	 $4.17	 $3.54

Diluted earnings per share:
    Diluted net earnings	 $1,757,681	 $1,310,284	 $1,121,485

    Diluted average shares outstanding:
       Basic shares outstanding	 306,621	 314,256	 316,766
       Dilutive effect of stock options 
          and other	 2,760	 2,874	 2,742
	 309,381	 317,130	 319,508

    Diluted net earnings per share	 $5.68	 $4.13	 $3.51

(in thousands, except per share data)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities resulted from the following:

Current deferred tax assets were $187.7 million at December 31, 2006 ($153.0 million at December 31, 2005). Non-current 
deferred tax liabilities were $249.0 million at December 31, 2006 ($294.6 million at December 31, 2005). Nucor paid $971.0 
million in net federal and state income taxes in 2006 ($806.7 million in 2005 and $550.1 million in 2004). 

In 2006, the Internal Revenue Service substantially completed its examination of tax years 2002 through 2004. The 2006 tax 
rate reflects an approximately 0.26% reduction to the federal statutory tax rate as a result of the reevaluation of our liabilities 
and contingencies in light of the completion of the examination.

17.	Earnings Per Share:

The computations of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows:
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18. Segments:

Nucor reports its results in two segments: steel mills and steel products. The steel mills segment includes carbon and alloy steel 
in sheet, bar, structural and plate. The steel products segment includes steel joists and joist girders, steel deck, cold finished 
steel, steel fasteners, metal building systems and light gauge steel framing. The segments are consistent with the way Nucor 
manages its business, which is primarily based upon the similarity of the types of products produced and sold by each segment. 

Management evaluates the operating performance of each of its segments based upon division contribution. The accounting 
policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. Nucor 
accounts for intercompany sales at prices approximating current market value. Interest expense, minority interests, other income, 
profit sharing expense and changes in the LIFO reserve and environmental accruals are shown under Corporate/eliminations/
other. Corporate assets primarily include cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, deferred income tax assets and 
investments in affiliates.  
 
Nucor’s segment results are as follows: 

Year Ended December 31,	 2006	 2005	 2004	

Net sales to external customers:
    Steel mills	 $13,025,123	 $11,063,681	 $10,109,430
    Steel products	 1,726,147	 1,637,318	 1,267,398
	 $14,751,270	 $12,700,999	 $11,376,828

Intercompany sales:
    Steel mills	 $     990,382	 $     896,432	 $     852,897
    Steel products	 21,560	 36,246	 9,857
    Corporate/eliminations/other	 (1,011,942)	 (932,678)	 (862,754)
	 $              —	 $              —	 $              —

Depreciation expense:
    Steel mills	 $     345,165	 $     355,887	 $     366,023
    Steel products	 18,438	 19,167	 17,282
    Corporate/other	 333	 —	 —
	 $     363,936	 $     375,054	 $     383,305

Earnings before income taxes:
    Steel mills	 $ 3,194,660	 $   2,207,621	 $   2,191,335
    Steel products	 191,514	 180,756	 149,610
    Corporate/eliminations/other	 (692,356)	 (372,009)	 (609,669)
	 $ 2,693,818	 $ 2,016,368	 $  1,731,276

Assets:
    Steel mills	 $ 4,709,705	 $  4,623,462	 $  4,978,616
    Steel products	  751,858	 519,562	 488,571
    Corporate/eliminations/other	  2,423,426	 1,995,763	 666,020
	 $ 7,884,989	 $   7,138,787	 $  6,133,207

Capital expenditures:
    Steel mills	 $    195,548	 $      216,047	 $     242,486
    Steel products	 18,039	 18,378	 7,253
     Corporate/other	 124,817	 97,041	 36,186
	 $   338,404	 $       331,466	 $     285,925

(in thousands)
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Year Ended December 31,

Year Ended December 31,	 2006	 2005	 2004

Net sales to external customers:
   Sheet	 $  5,362,178	 $  4,805,391	 $  4,856,469
   Bar	 3,702,609	 3,061,326	 2,632,966
   Structural	 2,205,303	 1,702,720	 1,500,878
   Plate	 1,755,033	 1,494,244	 1,119,117
   Steel products	 1,726,147	 1,637,318	 1,267,398
	 $14,751,270	 $12,700,999	 $11,376,828

(in thousands)

Net sales by product were as follows. Further product group breakdown is impracticable.

19. Investments and Acquisitions:

In November 2006, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Verco Decking, Inc., purchased substantially all of the assets of Verco 
Manufacturing Company (“Verco”), a producer of steel floor and roof decking in three locations in the western United States.  
The cash purchase price of approximately $180.0 million includes approximately $126.2 million of goodwill that has been 
allocated to the steel products segment. 

In May 2006, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nucor Steel Connecticut, Inc., purchased substantially all of the assets 
Connecticut Steel Corporation for a cash purchase price of approximately $43.9 million. This facility produces wire rod,  
rebar, wire mesh and structural mesh products.

These acquisitions in 2006 were not material to the consolidated financial statements.

In June 2005, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nucor Steel Marion, Inc., purchased substantially all of the assets of Marion 
Steel Company for a cash purchase price of approximately $110.7 million. This facility produces angles, flats, rebar, rounds  
and signposts.

In February 2005, Nucor purchased the assets of Fort Howard Steel, Inc.’s operations in Oak Creek, Wisconsin, for a cash 
purchase price of approximately $44.1 million. This facility produces cold finish bar products.

In August 2004, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC, purchased certain assets of the Worthington 
Industries, Inc. cold rolling mill in Decatur, Alabama, for a cash purchase price of approximately $80.3 million. The assets 
include all of the buildings, the pickle line, four-stand tandem cold mill, temper mill and annealing furnaces adjacent  
to the existing Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC steel plant. 

In July 2004, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nucor Steel Tuscaloosa, Inc., purchased substantially all of the steelmaking 
assets of Corus Tuscaloosa for a price of approximately $89.4 million. The facility is a coiled plate mill that manufactures 
pressure vessel steel coil, discrete plate and cut-to-length plate products.

In February 2004, Nucor purchased a one-half interest in Harris Steel, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Harris Steel Group, 
Inc. (“Harris Steel”), for a cash purchase price of approximately $21.0 million. At December 31, 2006, Nucor held a note 
receivable from Harris Steel, Inc. in the amount of $10.0 million. This note receivable bears interest, payable upon maturity,  
at a rate of LIBOR plus 100 basis points. The note was classified in other current assets. In both 2005 and 2006, Nucor  
paid Harris Steel Group, Inc. $1.2 million based upon the achievement of certain operating results. Harris Steel may receive  
up to an additional $3.6 million upon the achievement of certain operating results of the venture through 2008. 

In 2004, Nucor recognized an impairment charge of $13.2 million on the assets purchased from North Star Steel in 2003.  
The impairment of this steel facility located in Kingman, Arizona, was incurred in 2004 when Nucor decided not to restart  
the melt shop. The charge has been reflected in cost of products sold.

Non-cash investing and financing activities included the assumption of $26.1 million of liabilities with the acquisitions in 2006 
($17.8 million in 2005 and $27.2 million in 2004).
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20. Subsequent Event:

In January 2007, Nucor made a cash tender offer for all of the shares of Harris Steel at Cdn$46.25 per share. The offer places 
an approximate value of Cdn$1.25 billion (US$1.07 billion) on the equity of Harris Steel. The acquisition is expected to close in 
the first quarter, upon acceptance by the shareholders of Harris Steel and satisfactory resolution of regulatory approvals. Harris 
Steel, which will operate as a subsidiary of Nucor, manufactures and places reinforcing products, and manufactures industrial 
products principally in the United States and Canada. Harris Steel also participates in steel trading on a worldwide basis, and in 
the distribution of reinforcing steel and related products to U.S. customers.

21.	Quarterly Information (Unaudited):

 

(1) Nucor incurred LIFO charges of $9.0 million, $15.5 million and $20.5 million in the first, second and third quarters of 2006,  

     respectively; and incurred a LIFO credit of $39.6 million in the fourth quarter of 2006. 

(2) Nucor incurred LIFO credits of $26.1 million, $69.9 million, $52.0 million and $3.6 million in the first, second, third and fourth quarters  

     of 2005, respectively. 

(3) The first quarter of 2005 includes $9.2 million for the settlement of claims against third parties related to environmental matters.

I

       2006
      Net sales	 $3,545,097	 $3,806,350	 $3,931,233	 $3,468,590
      Gross margin(1)	 766,055	 880,375	 1,004,652	 817,065
      Net earnings	 379,161	 452,783	 517,578	 408,159
      Net earnings per share:
          Basic	 1.22	 1.46	 1.70	 1.36
          Diluted	 1.21	 1.45	 1.68	 1.35

       2005
      Net sales	 $3,322,621	 $3,145,003	 $3,025,911	 $3,207,464
      Gross margin(2)	 694,193	 620,111	 580,235	 686,964
      Net earnings (3)	 354,666	 322,707	 291,877	 341,034
      Net earnings per share:
          Basic	 1.11	 1.02	 0.94	 1.10
          Diluted	 1.10	 1.01	 0.93	 1.09

Fourth QuarterFirst Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
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Vulcraft Division 
Florence, South Carolina

A. Jay Bowcutt 
Vice President, General Manager 
Bar Mill Division 
Plymouth, Utah

Mark M. Brandon 
General Manager 
Nucor Steel Connecticut, Inc 
Wallingford, Connecticut

Jeffrey B. Carmean 
General Manager 
Building Systems Division 
Swansea, South Carolina

Samuel E. Commella, Jr. 
Vice President, General Manager 
Sheet Mill Division 
Hickman, Arkansas

James R. Darsey 
Vice President, General Manager 
Bar Mill Division 
Jewett, Texas

Giffin F. Daughtridge 
Vice President, General Manager 
Plate Mill Division 
Hertford County, North Carolina

Ronald L. Dickerson 
Vice President, General Manager 
Sheet Mill Division 
Crawfordsville, Indiana

John C. Farris 
Vice President, General Manager 
Nucor Steel Marion, Inc. 
Marion, Ohio

Francis W. Griggs 
Vice President, General Manager 
Nucor Steel Birmingham, Inc 
Birmingham, Alabama

Michael S. Gurley 
Vice President, General Manager 
Bar Mill Division, Cold Finish Division 
Darlington, South Carolina

Ladd R. Hall 
Vice President, General Manager 
Sheet Mill Division, Beam Mill Division 
Berkeley County, South Carolina

Lester L. Hart 
General Manager 
Nu-Iron Unlimited 
Point Lisas, Trinidad

Douglas J. Jellison 
Vice President, General Manager 
Nucor Steel Seattle, Inc. 
Seattle, Washington

Ronald K. Kuenkler 
General Manager 
Building Systems Division 
Waterloo, Indiana

James R. Landrum 
Vice President, General Manager 
Vulcraft Division 
Grapeland, Texas

Michael D. Lee 
Vice President, General Manager 
Bar Mill Division 
Norfolk, Nebraska

Harry R. Lowe 
Vice President  
Building Systems

Mark Miller 
General Manager 
Verco Decking, Inc. 
Phoenix, Arizona

Tomas A. Miller 
General Manager 
Fastener Division 
St. Joe, Indiana

Executive management
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Donald R. Moody 
General Manager 
Nucon Steel

Raymond S. Napolitan, Jr. 
General Manager  
Building Systems Division 
Terrell, Texas

John R. Ohm 
Vice President, General Manager 
Nucor Steel Kankakee, Inc. 
Kankakee, Illinois

Dirk A. Petersen 
Vice President, General Manager 
Vulcraft Division, Cold Finish Division 
Norfolk, Nebraska

Shannon L. Phillips 
Vice President, General Manager 
Vulcraft Division 
St. Joe, Indiana

Robert M. Proia 
Vice President, General Manager 
Vulcraft of New York, Inc. 
Chemung, New York

K. Rex Query 
Vice President, General Manager 
Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC 
Decatur, Alabama

D. Edward Ryan 
General Manager 
Vulcraft Division 
Fort Payne, Alabama

James A. Sheble 
Vice President, General Manager 
Nucor Steel Jackson, Inc. 
Jackson, Mississippi

Randy C. Skagen 
Vice President, General Manager 
Nucor Steel Tuscaloosa, Inc. 
Tuscaloosa, Alabama

David R. Smith 
Vice President, General Manager 
Nucor Steel Auburn, Inc. 
Auburn, New York

B. Thad Solomon 
General Manager 
Nucor Steel Memphis, Inc. 
Memphis, Tennessee

R. Joseph Stratman 
Vice President, General Manager 
Nucor-Yamato Steel Company 
Blytheville, Arkansas

Stanley L. Walker 
Vice President, General Manager 
Vulcraft Division, Cold Finish Division 
Brigham City, Utah
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STOCK PERFORMANCE

CORPORATE Offices

1915 Rexford Road
Charlotte, North Carolina 28211
Phone 704/366-7000
Fax 704/362-4208

Stock Transfers 
Dividend Disbursing 
Dividend Reinvestment

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane
New York, New York 10038
Phone 800/937-5449
Fax 718/236-2641

Annual Meeting

The 2007 annual meeting of stockholders will be held at 
10:00 a.m. on Thursday, May 10, 2007, at the Charlotte 
Marriott SouthPark, 2200 Rexford Road, Charlotte, NC.

Stock Listing

Nucor's common stock is traded on the New York Stock 
Exchange under the symbol NUE. As of February 7, 2007, 
there were approximately 19,000 stockholders of record.

FORM 10-K

A copy of Nucor’s 2006 annual report filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on Form 10-K is available 
without charge to stockholders on request.

The certifications of Nucor’s Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer regarding the quality of Nucor’s public 
disclosure that are required by Section 302 of The Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 are included as exhibits to Nucor’s annual 
report on Form 10-K. In addition, in 2006, Nucor’s Chief 
Executive Officer provided to the New York Stock Exchange 
(“NYSE”) the Annual CEO Certification regarding Nucor’s 
compliance with the NYSE’s corporate governance standards.

Internet access

Nucor’s annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on  
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments 
to these reports, are available without charge through Nucor’s 
website, www.nucor.com, as soon as reasonably practicable 
after Nucor files these reports electronically with or furnishes 
them to the SEC. Additional information available on our 
website includes our Corporate Governance Principles, Board 
of Directors Committee Charters, Standards of Business 
Conduct and Ethics, and Code of Ethics for Senior Financial 
Professionals as well as various other financial and statistical 
data. Written copies are available to stockholders on request.

Stock Price and Dividends Paid

		  First	S econd	T hird	F ourth
		  Quarter	 Quarter	 Quarter	 Quarter

2006
Stock price:
	 High	 $54.90	 $60.30	 $55.94	 $67.55	
   Low	 33.64	 44.80	 45.12	  47.50
Dividends paid	 0.325	 0.35	 0.60	 0.60

2005
Stock price:
	 High	 $32.77	 $29.68	 $30.70	 $35.11
	 Low	 23.53	 22.78	 23.15	 25.92
Dividends paid	 0.065	 0.20	 0.20	 0.20

Stock performance

This graphic camparison assumes the investment of $100 
in Nucor Corporation common stock, $100 in the S&P 500 
Index and $100 in the S&P Steel Group Index, all at year-end 
2001. The resulting cumulative total return assumes that cash 
dividends were reinvested. Nucor common stock comprised 
48% of the S&P Steel Group Index at year-end 2006 (50% at 
year-end 2001).

This Annual Report has been printed on recycled paper.

Corporate and Stock data

Nucor Corporation
S&P 500 Index
S&P Steel Group Index
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After all, the employees are the real story of Nucor.  

      And that’s why they are featured on our cover.

In a single generation, 

All by following a simple plan.

to one of the nation’s most admired and imitated corporations. 

we grew from a small nuclear instruments company 

Optimize existing operations.

3	    Develop greenfield projects that 

	 capitalize on competitive advantages. 

5
And run the business on the basic principles of 	            			 

lean management,  

and a commitment to our employees. 
innovation, environmental stewardship, 

Pursue strategic acquisitions.

4leverage new technologies.
Grow globally through joint ventures that
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RICHARD RUNIONS   HERBERT L RUNNELS   CHRISTIAN M RUOFF   KENNETH RUPIL   DEAN M RUPP   JOSHUA M RUPPERT   MICHAEL L RUPPERT   RODNEY L RUPPERT   JEANNE F RUSH   WILLIE R RUSH   O'NEAL RUSH JR   BEN T RUSHING   
JERRY D RUSHING   LINDSEY D RUSHING   WESLEY RUSHING   PAUL D RUSSEL   BRIAN K RUSSELL   CHARLES E RUSSELL   EDWARD RUSSELL   GENE DILLARD RUSSELL   JIM RUSSELL   JOEL RUSSELL   PAULA N RUSSELL   ROBERT RUSSELL   
ROMAN L RUSSELL   SCOTT A RUSSELL   SHARON L RUSSELL   WILLIAM R RUSSELL   MICHAEL STEVE RUSSELL JR   LYNN R RUSTIGIAN   NICHOLAS Q RUTH   JOSEPH A RUTKOWSKI   JASON S RUTLAND   WILBERT E RUTLAND   GREGORY A RUTLEDGE   
NICKIE J RUTLEDGE   WESLEY RAY RUTLEDGE   CHARLES E RYAN   CRAIG LEWIS RYAN   DAN W RYAN   DAVID M RYAN   D EDWARD RYAN   EDWARD J RYAN   JAMES RODNEY RYAN   MICHAEL J RYAN   RICHARD H RYAN   RICHARD P RYAN   
STEVEN M RYAN   LEON MARSHALL RYAN III   MARK S RYDELL   STEVEN J RYNEARSON   DEORAJ SABINATH   JOHN P SACCO   KEVIN J SACKETT   CLEMMON SADLER   PETER A SADOSKI   JEFFREY A SAENZ DE VITERI   LAOHER SAEYANG   
JERRY SAGER   BRAULIO SAGRERO   KYLE P SAKOS   ISAIAH SALAZAR   JOSE A SALAZAR   AURELIO SALCEDO   JAMES K SALE II   TIMOTHY D SALHEISER   JO SALMON   WILLIAM SALMON   JAY DEE SALVESEN   CHERYL A SALVO   MICHAEL J SALVO   
JASON L SAMPLE   DEREK A SAMPSON   JENNIFER H SAMPSON   LEO SAMPSON   BILLY JOE SAMUEL   JENNIFER L SAMUELS   DAVID L SAMUELSON   ALEJANDRO J SANCHEZ   CESAR SANCHEZ   JOSE SANCHEZ   ONOFRE SANCHEZ   
STEPHANIE D SANCHEZ   CHRISTOPHER SANDERS   CHRISTOPHER A SANDERS   ERIC D SANDERS   GEORGE SANDERS   HERMAN SANDERS   HERSCHEL L SANDERS   JOHNNY F SANDERS   KEVIN SANDERS   LARRY D SANDERS   
LARRY E SANDERS   MACK SANDERS   NOEL G SANDERS   PAUL M SANDERS   RICHARD N SANDERS   RONALD SANDERS   RYAN B SANDERS   MICHAEL T SANDLIN   PAUL D SANDLIN   KIRK G SANDMAN   KENNETH R SANDS   RACHAL SANDS   
TERRY L SANDUSKY   RINA N SANE   BRIAN KEITH SANFORD   KEVIN G SANFORD   ROBERT O SANFORD   JAMES A SANFORD JR   FREDERICK O SANGUINETTI   LEVERN SANSBURY JR   ROBERT CLAY SANSING   ISMAEL SANTOS   JOSE L SANTOYO   
AMBER L SAPP   RONALD S SARDEN   KIM J SARIEGO   STEPHEN C SARINE   PETER L SARNO   JASON SARRATT   JAMES C SARTIN JR   ROBERT SATTERFIELD   BRYAN SAULIS   MAURICE L SAUNDERS   PAUL K SAUNDERS   WILLIAM J SAUTER   
WILLIAM J SAVOIR JR   DERRICK L SAWYER   JODY S SAWYER   MEGAN E SAWYER   WILLIAM B SAWYER   MARTHA L SAXENMEYER   GAYLAND C SAYLES   JOHNATON P SAYLES   JAMES MICHAEL SAYRE   JAMES S SCALISE   SCOTT D SCARBERRY   
JUSTIN SCARBOROUGH   DOUGLAS A SCHAAD   JASON W SCHAAF   JOHN J SCHACHTNER   KEITH L SCHAECHER   PATRICK J SCHAECHER   CHRISTIAN SCHAEFER   MARK JEFF SCHAFER   GARETT M SCHAFFER   JOHN A SCHAFFER   
MORTON S SCHAFFER   STEVEN A SCHAMP   ADAM D SCHANBACHER   BERNARD H SCHARR   BRIAN T SCHART   WALTER B SCHATT   MATTHEW S SCHEBLER   MICHAEL C SCHEDLER   LEROY H SCHEIWE   WENDELL A SCHELL   
DANITA M SCHELLPEPER   RODNEY A SCHENCK   KIMBERLY M SCHENK   JACK B SCHERER   RICHENA C SCHEU   SCOTT A SCHIEL   JAMES J SCHIFFLI   DIANE MARIE SCHILLAWSKI   JOHN ROBERT SCHILLAWSKI   JOSEPH A SCHILPP   
DAYMON W SCHINBECKLER   ROBERT B SCHINDLEDECKER   ALISON N SCHLABACH   LYNETTE L SCHLEMMER   MARK R SCHLICHTING   THOMAS R SCHLICKBERND   CHAD M SCHLIE   MICHAEL J SCHLIEWE   CAROLYN E SCHLOTE   
ANDREA DEE SCHMIDT   CASEY C SCHMIDT   CHARLES A SCHMIDT   JONATHAN R SCHMIDT   JOSEPH A SCHMIDT   MARK J SCHMIDT   JEFFREY A SCHMITT   JOHN K SCHMITZ   ROBERT KURT SCHMITZ   JAVEN P SCHMUCKER   RANDEL S SCHNEBEL   
BRENDA C SCHNELL   CHAD M SCHNOOR   GARY D SCHNOOR   JASON D SCHNOOR   RICKY D SCHNOOR   SHAWN J SCHNOOR   ROMAN A SCHOCK   JAMES L SCHOEN   JOHN W SCHOENAUER   JO DEE SCHOMAKER   MURRAY K SCHOMAKER   
PERI S SCHOMAKER   ROBERT SCHONDEL   JASON R SCHOOLEY   MATTHEW PATRICK SCHOOLEY   WILLIAM B SCHOPPE   TONY R SCHRADER   RYAN SCHRAEDER   VERNON J SCHREMMER   CHRISTOPHER J SCHRIMP   PATRICIA A SCHROEDER   
RYAN W SCHROEDER   THOMAS J SCHROEDER   DONNA SCHROUF   MICHAEL A SCHUEREN   WILLIAM S SCHULKE   MICHAEL SCHULLER II   DALE M SCHULTE   BECKY J SCHULTZ   DAVID E SCHULTZ   MICHAEL SCHULTZ   NICHOLAS O SCHULTZ   
NORMAN W SCHULTZ   WALTER E SCHULTZ   BRENDA R SCHULZ   BRIAN R SCHULZ   JAMES L SCHULZ   LOUIS E SCHULZ   MICHAEL DAVID SCHULZ   FRED S SCHUMACHER   TRACEY L SCHUMACHER   TRACY L SCHUTZ   TRENT T SCHUTZA   
CHRISTOPHER SCHWAB   KENNETH EDWIN SCHWAB   CARL R SCHWABE   JAMES G SCHWADER   CHRISTOPHER V SCHWARTZ   MARK RJ SCHWARTZ   ROBERT E SCHWARTZ   RODNEY L SCHWARTZ   RUBEN L SCHWARTZ   TIMOTHY M SCHWARTZ   
TONY M SCHWARTZ   WILLIAM L SCHWARTZ   DAVID W SCHWEHN   JOHN H SCHWEINSBERG JR   NICOLE A SCHWEIZER   SCOTT SCOBEE   CASEY R SCOBIE   PHILLIP R SCOFIELD   JASON D SCOGGINS   ADAM D SCOTT   ADAM E SCOTT   
BOBBY D SCOTT   BRIAN J SCOTT   CHARLES SCOTT   DANIEL A SCOTT   DAVID A SCOTT   DAVID J SCOTT   DENISE C SCOTT   DENNIS SCOTT   EDWARD G SCOTT   GREGGORY SCOTT   HAROLD G SCOTT   HAZEL M SCOTT   IDA SCOTT   
JAMES E SCOTT   JIM A SCOTT   JOE C SCOTT   JOHN T SCOTT   KENNETH SCOTT   KENT D SCOTT   KYLE D SCOTT   LAWRENCE SCOTT   MICHAEL B SCOTT   MICHAEL L SCOTT   MICHEAL NEIL SCOTT   MITCHEL F SCOTT   QUENTIN O SCOTT   
RICKEY LEVON SCOTT   RUSSELL L SCOTT   TROY C SCOTT   WILLIAM E SCOTT   WILLIE L SCOTT   MACELLA SCOTT DAVIS   CHARLES E SCOTT SR   GARY R SCOTT SR   MARK A SCOUTEN   BENJAMIN ROSS SCOVEL   LANA S SCRIVNER   
KENNETH E SCRUDDER II   KENNETH W SCRUGGS   GREGORY E SEAGLE   BRENT A SEALS   WILLIE SEALS   MICHAEL A SEAMANS   SETH D SEAMONS   GREGORY A SEARING   ALAN B SEARS   CHAD B SEARS   DAVID MICHAEL SEARS   
RICHARD A SEARS   EVERETTE M SEASE   JOEY W SEATS   JUSTIN SAMUEL SEBRING   LAWRENCE NELSON SECOR   KRISHNA SEEGOOLAM   MICHAEL L SEELMEYER   THOMAS G SEEMEYER   GREG A SEGARS   STEVE R SEGARS   DUANE I SEGER   
GARY W SEGER   ABRAHAM M SEGOVIA   LARRY W SEIBERT   RONALD A SEIBERT   JOSEPH P SEKOT   MICHAEL SHAWN SELBY   SCOTT E SELF   BOBBY D SELLARS   ANTONIO D SELLERS   BILLY RAY SELLERS   MICHELLE SELLERS   NELDA 
D SELLERS   PERRY B SELLERS III   CLAYTON R SELLIN   TODD M SELLIN   KEVIN SELLS   RANDALL L SELMAN   PHILLIP M SEMRICK   WALTER SENENKO   DELBERT L SENSABAUGH   CARLOS SEPULVEDA   SAMUEL P SERATT   WILLIAM C SERES   
CHRISTOPHER D SERING   JOSEPH SERNA-PIRO   VICTOR SERRANO   PANDIAN SETHURAJ   ROBERT B SEVERANCE   NICHOLAS L SEVERNS   JEREMY SEWARDS   JUSTIN B SEXTON   SCOTT E SEXTON   DUANE L SEYL   THAD D SEYL   
CHRISTOPHER G SEYMOUR   JOSHUA SEYMOUR   ROY L SEYMOUR   WAYNE MICHAEL SEYMOUR   ROY SHACKELFORD   SHELDON J SHADY   STANLEY H SHADY   PATRICIA A SHAFER   ROBERT A SHAFER   MARK D SHAFFER   MONA L SHAFFER   
RICKY J SHAFFER   KARL J SHAMLEE   ROBERT K SHANKLES   JOHN M SHANNON   NASIR A SHARIEFF   RIDGELY W SHARIETT   DHARAM SHARMA   DANIEL SHARP   EMMA K SHARP   QUINTIN F SHARP   ROBERT SHARP   CRAIG E SHARPE   
MICHAEL D SHARRAR   BRIAN SHARROCK   KURT A SHATTO   JANET L SHAVER   FREDRICK R SHAVERS   AARON D SHAW   DIANE SHAW   HAROLD D SHAW   JAMES SHAW   JAMIE R SHAW   JIMMY E SHAW   SHAUN SHAW   CHARLES W SHAY   
CHARLES E SHAY III   SEAN SHEAD   ANTHONY A SHEARER   HARRY B SHEARIN III   JAMES A SHEBLE   PAUL A SHECKELL   DOUGLAS R SHEFFER   JUSTIN M SHELBY   JAMES BURTON SHELL   ISHMAEL J SHELLEY JR   BUSTER E SHELTON   
J TRAVIS SHELTON   JAMES SHELTON   JOHN D SHELTON   JONATHAN B SHELTON   JOSHUA W SHELTON   KEITH SHELTON   LOYD G SHELTON   MICHAEL R SHELTON   MITCHELL SHELTON   NATHAN SHELTON   DANIAL D SHEPHERD   
DAVID W SHEPHERD   EDWARD SHEPHERD   KENNETH W SHEPHERD   MARK J SHEPHERD   WILLIE SHEPHERD   ALVIN SHEPPARD   RICKY W SHEPPARD   WILLIAM F SHEPPARD   MICHEL R SHERIDAN   BRANDON SHERMAN   CARL J SHERMAN   
FORREST MAJOR SHERMAN   KEVIN SHERMAN   MARK FREDERICK SHERMAN   RAVON SHERMAN   DALE SHERRILL   RICKY SHERROD   PATRICK C SHERWIN   PHILLIP L SHERWIN   MAX T SHERWOOD   WILLIAM D SHERWOOD   DAVID SHIELDS   
EDWARD M SHILLEY   CHRISTOPHER M SHINSTOCK   DAVID S SHIPLEY   ANDREW J SHIPMAN   LAURIE S SHIPMAN   KEVIN C SHIPMAN SR   PATRICK S SHIPP   DAVID P SHIREMAN   CRAIG O SHIREY   LARRY D SHIREY   JAMES D SHIRKS   
LANCE EUGENE SHIRLEY   LONNIE E SHIRLEY   CARLA S SHISLER   BRIAN L SHIVELY   KIM S SHIVERS   TOM LEE SHIVERS   WILLIAM H SHIVERS   CURTIS R SHOAF   STEVEN S SHOEMAKER   PERRY R SHOEMAKER III   CURTIS DALE SHOEMAKER JR   
DARRELL SHOFFNER   DANIEL C SHOLES   ANTHONY V SHOLL   ANTHONY SHORES   CHRISTOPHER D SHORT   DIANNE E SHORT   JAMES SHORT   KEVIN M SHORT   ROBERT D SHORT   SCOTT SHORTRIDGE   SHARON SHOULDERS   TOMMY E SHOUP   
WILLIAM SHOUSE   LORALEE A SHOWALTER   NATALIE M R SHOWERS   KEVIN W SHRADER   BRIAN J SHREFFLER   DOUGLAS SHRIMPLIN   JAMES R SHUBURTE   MICHAEL L SHUEY   DERRICK J SHULER   ROBERT SCOTT SHULER   
GREGORY W SHULL   JOHNATHON D SHULL   JUSTIN SHULL   RICHARD L SHULL   BRIAN B SHULTZ   CLAY S SHULTZ   JEFF L SHULTZ   KENNETH EDWARD SHUMAN   TIMOTHY A SHUMAN   DAVID SHUMATE   JAMES W SHUMPERT   SCOTT A SHUMPERT   
BRIAN SHUPAK   AARON SHURTS   CHESTER SHUSTER   MARK ANTHONY SHUTTLESWORTH III   ADAM J SHUTTS   ROBERT SHY   DOUGLAS EWAN SIDDALL   JEFF A SIDES   ROBERT E SIDES   JOHN W SIDES JR   JUSTIN G SIEBRANDT   
RICK G SIEFERT   PAUL SIEG   LOREN L SIEVERS   JONATHAN M SIGMON   RUSSELL L SILA JR   MARC SILBERBERG   BRIAN J SILHACEK   CAROL J SILHACEK   KEITH D SILHACEK   JOSE SILVA   ROMAO C SILVINO   JOHN F SIMEONE   
ALVIN V SIMMONS   GARY W SIMMONS   JAMES L SIMMONS   JASON M SIMMONS   JASON S SIMMONS   JESSE S SIMMONS   JOSEPH R SIMMONS   KENT ALLAN SIMMONS   MARK A SIMMONS   PATRICIA A SIMMONS   ROSS CRAFFORD SIMMONS   
WENDELL A SIMMONS   WILLIAM J SIMMONS   YANCEY DEWAYNE SIMMONS   ALEX K SIMMONS JR   VIRGIL SIMMONS JR   DAMION ALGERNOD SIMON   MELVIN SIMON   BOB P SIMONSEN   BRAD A SIMONSEN   ERIC SIMONSEN   KENNETH E SIMPER   
CHARLES A SIMPKINS   AUNDREA SIMPSON   BERT M SIMPSON   CLIFFTON D SIMPSON   DAVID N SIMPSON   ELIJAH E SIMPSON   HENRY M SIMPSON   JAMES R SIMPSON   JEROME SIMPSON   MICHAEL K SIMPSON   RANDALL J SIMPSON   
RICHARD S SIMPSON   ROBERT P SIMPSON   SETH K SIMPSON   STEVEN K SIMPSON   TIMOTHY G SIMPSON   TONJA D SIMPSON   WAYLON K SIMPSON   CHAD D SIMS   DAVID M SIMS   DEWEY SIMS   J R SIMS   ROBBIE J SIMS   SCOTT EDWARD SIMS   
SHANE T SIMS   WILLIAM R SIMS   JOHN L SIMS III   JOHN HOWARD SINCERBEAUX   JAMES J SINEATH III   CARL BRANDON SING   MARCUS SINGH   VITRA SINGH   RICHARD J SINGLETARY   RICHARD L SINGLETARY   TERRY J SINGLETARY   
JEFFREY A SINGLETON   LEROY D SINGLETON   ROBERT L SINGLETON   WILLIAM SINGLETON   WYVONIA SINGLETON   LEAH B SINNET   G THOMAS SINNET II   JOHN F SIPPEL   TEOFLIO JR SIPRIANO   MELANIE M SISK   ROBIN N SISK   
ROBERT W SISTRUNK   JAMES DAWAYNE SITTON   AARON R SIZEMORE   ARVIS R SIZEMORE   TERRA C SIZEMORE   JAMES OLEN SIZEMORE II   RANDY C SKAGEN   Frank ANDREW SKARDINSKI   RUSSELL R SKEEM   MARK T SKELCHER   
FOY E SKELTON   THOMAS ANDREW SKELTON   ROBERT SKENANDORE   DAVID W SKERRITT   JOHN F SKERRITT IV   BIRCH K SKINNER   BRAD S SKINNER   BROCK S SKINNER   HEATHER SKINNER   JAMES T SKINNER   MARSHA A SKINNER   
MICHAEL SKINNER   STACEY T SKINNER   JOHNNIE SKIPPER   STEVEN E SKROBISZEWSKI   LESZEK E SKULSKI   BOBBY SLABAUGH   MARY EMILY SLATE   NATHANAEL W SLATE   ADAM R SLATEN   TIMOTHY J SLATER   IVAN W SLATTER   
GARY T SLAUGHTER   JASON T SLAUGHTER   MARVIN Q SLAUGHTER   JESSE D SLAUTER   CATHARINE A SLAVENS   CHAD M SLAVENS   NATHAN T SLAVENS   RYAN DAVID SLAVENS   THOMAS J SLAVENS   RICK L SLAWSON   JAMES FLOYD SLEDGE   
KRISTIN P SLEDGE   NICHOLAS A SLEGR   STEPHEN R SLESINSKI   CATHY D SLIGER   JOSEPH JOHN SLIWKA   MONTEVILLE L SLOAN JR   SHANE P SLOCUM   HERSHEL SLONE   DERRICK U SMALL   MICHAEL S SMALL   RENEE C SMALL   
KEITH W SMALLEY   MICHAEL A SMALLEY   CURTIS SMALLS   MICHAEL SMALLS   TIMOTHY A SMALLWOOD   ROBERT WAYNE SMELLEY   STEPHEN C SMELLEY   KAREN M SMID   ROBERT W SMID   TERRY L SMILEY   HERBERT SMILING   
ALLAN M SMILLIE   AARON N SMITH   ALAN R SMITH   ANDREW S SMITH   ANNA M SMITH   ANTHONY L SMITH   BARRY E SMITH   BENJAMIN SMITH   BETTY SMITH   BILLY J SMITH   BRAD L SMITH   BRANDON K SMITH   BRETT SMITH   
BRIAN SMITH   BRIAN W SMITH   BRYAN L SMITH   BRYAN O SMITH   BUCK B SMITH   CAMERON B SMITH   CAROLYN D SMITH   CAROLYN H SMITH   CHARLES SMITH   CHARLES JASON SMITH   CHIP J SMITH   CHRIS SMITH   CHRIS T SMITH   
CHRISTOPHER G SMITH   CLAINE SMITH   CLAYTON C SMITH   CLINT T SMITH   CODY SMITH   CONNIE S SMITH   CORY A SMITH   CRAIG A SMITH   DANIEL L SMITH   DAVID ALVIN SMITH   DAVID L SMITH   DAVID R SMITH   DELMAR L SMITH   
DERRICK SMITH   DEWAYNE SMITH   DONALD D SMITH   DONNA JEAN SMITH   DONZELL A SMITH   DUSTIN E SMITH   EVAN ANDREW SMITH   FRANK SMITH   FRED SMITH   FREIDA M SMITH   GARY LEE SMITH   GEORGE W SMITH   
HOWARD M SMITH   IEON SMITH   JAMES E SMITH   JAMES E SMITH   JAMES G SMITH   JAMIE CRAIG SMITH   JAMISON R SMITH   JANICE G SMITH   JASON A SMITH   JASON C SMITH   JASON D SMITH   JASON R SMITH   JAY C SMITH   JEFFREY SMITH   
JEFFREY ALLEN SMITH   JERRY J SMITH   JERRY W SMITH   JIMMIE SMITH   JIMMY F SMITH   JODY E SMITH   JOEY D SMITH   JOHN A SMITH   JOHN D SMITH   JOHNATHAN BLAKE SMITH   JUSTIN CLAY SMITH   KAREN SMITH   KAY F SMITH   
KEVIN R SMITH   LARRY J SMITH   LARRY BRUCE SMITH   LEONA SMITH   LUCAS SMITH   MARK A SMITH   MARK H SMITH   MARVIN L SMITH   MARY C SMITH   MATTHEW T SMITH   MATTHEW W SMITH   MEGAN C SMITH   MICHAEL A SMITH   
MICHAEL D SMITH   MICHAEL J SMITH   MICHAEL P SMITH   MICHAEL S SMITH   MICHAEL T SMITH   MICHAEL W SMITH   NEOMA RENEA SMITH   NORMAN L SMITH   PATRICK SMITH   PAUL L SMITH   PAUL W SMITH   RANDALL C SMITH   RAY E SMITH   
RAYMOND R SMITH   REGGIE A SMITH   RICHARD CHARLES SMITH   RICKEY SMITH   RICKY G SMITH   RITA L SMITH   ROBERT A SMITH   RODNEY C SMITH   ROGER SMITH   ROGER A SMITH   ROGER P SMITH   RONALD B SMITH   RONDA K SMITH   
RONNIE T SMITH   RUSSELL G SMITH   RYAN M SMITH   SAMMY L SMITH   SCOTT SMITH   SHAWN SMITH   SHELBY D SMITH   SHERRY D SMITH   SUSAN SMITH   TED C SMITH   THOMAS SMITH   THOMAS R SMITH   THOMAS R SMITH   
TIM SMITH   TIMOTHY J SMITH   TIMOTHY A SMITH   TIMOTHY D SMITH   TIMOTHY W SMITH   TONY W SMITH   TROY T SMITH   UNTON LUMONT SMITH   WALTER H SMITH   WALTER S SMITH   WILLIAM D SMITH   WILLIE SMITH   ARTHUR W SMITH III   
LEWIS H SMITH III   LEONARD A SMITH JR   RICHARD L SMITH SR   BRIAN ALAN SMITHART   ASHLEY NICOLE SMITHERMAN   BRIAN S SMITHWICK   DONALD B SMITHWICK   DOUGLAS E SMITHWICK   JAMES H SMOAK   DEDRICK SMOTHERMAN   
SCOTTY L SMOTHERS   ROBERT SMUIN   RICK L SMUTNY   CONSTANCE R SNAPP   ADAM D SNAY   JIMMY SNELL   DAVID A SNELLENBARGER   CASPAR M SNELLING   MICHAEL A SNELLING   TYLER R SNELLING   FETIMA G SNIDER   
BRADLEY E SNODDY   JAMIE J SNODGRASS   STEVEN P SNODGRASS   ROBERT E SNOOK   KEVIN SNOW   WILLIAM J SNOW   STEPHEN B SNOWDEN   BRIAN K SNYDER   EDWARD S SNYDER   JEFFREY A SNYDER   JOSEPH J SNYDER   
MELISSA P SNYDER   REX A SNYDER   ROBIN SNYDER   STEVEN P SNYDER   TODD SNYDER   WALTER SNYDER   EMILE L SOFFNER   DAVID DONG-SOO SOHN   THOMAS J SOJKA   CAROL E SOKOL   KEVIN J SOKOL   ALFONSO SOLIS   
FERNANDO SOLIS   JOHNNY L SOLIS   PEDRO SOLIS   RAFAEL F SOLIS   ELIAS SOLIS-GOMEZ   B THAD SOLOMON   JOSEPH ALEXANDER SOLOMON   MELVIN D SOLOMON   TIMOTHY J SOLOS   ANDREW J SOMMER   ANTHONY J SOMMER   
JOEL D SOMMER   NICHOLE L SONCK   TIMOTHY SONNENBERG   BRANDON S SONNENFELT   LAWRENCE H SONSEL   ANIL SOORIM   JEFFREY J SOPO   CARY SORENSEN   DEBRA SORENSEN   JARED L SORENSEN   JOSEY SORENSEN   
LAYNE C SORENSEN   LYNN C SORENSEN   MISTY M SORENSEN   WILL D SORENSEN   BRENT SORENSON   DARIN L SORENSON   ROMMEL SORIANO   RONALD J SORTERS JR   DONALD D SORTOR   DAVID B SOSH   DAVID J SOSINSKY   
PEGGY L SOSSAMON   BONIFACIO SOTO   JOSE SOTO   ANDREW L SOULIGNE   JERED D SOUTH   STEVE SOUTHARD   WILLIAM B SOUTHER   WILLIAM R SOUTHERLAND   ANNA SOUTHERN   JAMES M SOUTHERN   JOE C SOUTHWOOD   
AARON E SOVEREIGN   COLLEEN K SOWDERS   DAVID G SOWELL   JESS SOWERS   EDWARD A SOWLES   DENNIS J SPADER   ROBYN A SPANN   SHAWN T SPANO   RICHARD K SPARGER JR   JEFFREY A SPARGO   DUANE SPARKMAN   
JASON HARWOOD SPARKS   KIRK SPARKS   OAKLEY SPARKS   WILLIAM J SPARKS   ROBERT D SPARKS JR   CHRISTY D SPEARS   MARK G SPECHT   DAVID L SPEED   JEFFREY S SPEER   PAMELA J SPEIDEL   MICHAEL D SPEIGHTS   MARK J SPELLAR   
CASEY B SPENCE   M L SPENCE   ROBERT E SPENCE   SANDRA L SPENCE   BRYAN H SPENCER   DONALD R SPENCER   DOUGLAS A SPENCER   KELLEY B SPENCER   MICHAEL W SPENCER   KEVIN L SPETH   DANNY R SPICER   
RANDY JOSEPH SPICER   TIMOTHY A SPIEGEL   DONNIE L SPIGNER   KELLY D SPIKES   WILLIAM L SPINKS III   STEVEN T SPIRES   JAMIE R SPIVEY   VIOLA P SPORTS   FARRON E SPRABARY   LARRY G SPRAGUE   TODD SPRAGUE   
GREGORY L SPRAYBERRY   WAYNE V SPREITZER   JOHN SPRING   WILLIAM L SPRINGBORG   CLARENCE P SPRINGER   JEFFREY L SPRINGER   LARRY J SPRINGER   JAMES T SPRINGS   WANDA E SPRINGS   RICKY STEVEN SPRINKLE   
WILLIE SPURLOCK   PHILLIP SQUYRES   CHRIS X L ST AMAND   JACQUES ST DON   BRANDON C STABBS   DAVID L STACKHOUSE   BONITA L STACY   DOUGLAS W STACY   MARSHALL R STADLER   VANESSA K STADLER   ANTHONY H STAFFORD   
BRIAN E STAFFORD   CASEY A STAFFORD   CASEY G STAFFORD   JAMES L STAFFORD   RONALD W STAFFORD   THOMAS F STAFFORD   THOMAS M STAFFORD   KIM R STAGGS   BRIAN STAHL   KEITH A STAHLE   DAVID R STALCUP   TERRELL STALEY   
MICHELLE F STALLARD   BILLY R STALLINGS   LYNN SUZANNE STALLINGS   RONALD E STALLINGS   WALTER MALONE STALLINGS   BRETT T STALNECKER   DARRIN L STALNECKER   DUSTIN L STAMER   ROGER D STAMEY   FLOYD E STANDRIDGE   
KAREN E STANEK   BILLY R STANLEY   DONALD K STANLEY   JAMES H STANLEY   JAMES C STANLEY JR   MICHAEL L STANPHILL   EARL D STANSBURY   JAMES R STANTON   SHIRRI S STANTZ   JARED STANWORTH   ROGER W STAPLES   
GENORA L STAPLETON   MARK STAPLETON   PAUL THOMAS STAPLETON   ALAN J STARK   CASEY R STARK   RAYMOND H STARK   BERNARD JOE STARK JR   SHAWNA M STARKS   TODD L STARKS   TRAVIS LEVEL STARKS   MARK A STARNES   
MICHAEL W STARNES   JAMES STARR   LINDA M STARR   MARIA L STARR   WAYNE R STARRETT   PETER J STARSZAK   ROBERT W STAUB   ALLEN E STAUFFER   DAVID A STAUFFER   DIRK A STAUFFER   ROBERT STAYNER   JAMES R STEARMAN   
DOUGLAS F STEBBING   RYAN R STECKELBERG   ORAL A STEED   CYNTHIA ROWLAND STEEL   CHARLES W STEELE   JOSHUA C STEELE   SILAS P STEELE   WILLIAM M STEEN   CHARLES BRADLEY STEGALL   CURTIS W STEGER   LANCE J STEIGER   
LAURENCE F STEIGER   AARON DALE STEIN   ASHLEY D STEIN   CARSTEN STEINER   JOHN D STEINKAMP   ELMER STEINLICHT   DAVID P STEINMETZ   JOHN C STEMANN   RAYMOND R STENDER   ROGER F STENDER   SHAWN DALE STENNETT   
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WENDELL A SIMMONS   WILLIAM J SIMMONS   YANCEY DEWAYNE SIMMONS   ALEX K SIMMONS JR   VIRGIL SIMMONS JR   DAMION ALGERNOD SIMON   MELVIN SIMON   BOB P SIMONSEN   BRAD A SIMONSEN   ERIC SIMONSEN   KENNETH E SIMPER   
CHARLES A SIMPKINS   AUNDREA SIMPSON   BERT M SIMPSON   CLIFFTON D SIMPSON   DAVID N SIMPSON   ELIJAH E SIMPSON   HENRY M SIMPSON   JAMES R SIMPSON   JEROME SIMPSON   MICHAEL K SIMPSON   RANDALL J SIMPSON   
RICHARD S SIMPSON   ROBERT P SIMPSON   SETH K SIMPSON   STEVEN K SIMPSON   TIMOTHY G SIMPSON   TONJA D SIMPSON   WAYLON K SIMPSON   CHAD D SIMS   DAVID M SIMS   DEWEY SIMS   J R SIMS   ROBBIE J SIMS   SCOTT EDWARD SIMS   
SHANE T SIMS   WILLIAM R SIMS   JOHN L SIMS III   JOHN HOWARD SINCERBEAUX   JAMES J SINEATH III   CARL BRANDON SING   MARCUS SINGH   VITRA SINGH   RICHARD J SINGLETARY   RICHARD L SINGLETARY   TERRY J SINGLETARY   
JEFFREY A SINGLETON   LEROY D SINGLETON   ROBERT L SINGLETON   WILLIAM SINGLETON   WYVONIA SINGLETON   LEAH B SINNET   G THOMAS SINNET II   JOHN F SIPPEL   TEOFLIO JR SIPRIANO   MELANIE M SISK   ROBIN N SISK   
ROBERT W SISTRUNK   JAMES DAWAYNE SITTON   AARON R SIZEMORE   ARVIS R SIZEMORE   TERRA C SIZEMORE   JAMES OLEN SIZEMORE II   RANDY C SKAGEN   Frank ANDREW SKARDINSKI   RUSSELL R SKEEM   MARK T SKELCHER   
FOY E SKELTON   THOMAS ANDREW SKELTON   ROBERT SKENANDORE   DAVID W SKERRITT   JOHN F SKERRITT IV   BIRCH K SKINNER   BRAD S SKINNER   BROCK S SKINNER   HEATHER SKINNER   JAMES T SKINNER   MARSHA A SKINNER   
MICHAEL SKINNER   STACEY T SKINNER   JOHNNIE SKIPPER   STEVEN E SKROBISZEWSKI   LESZEK E SKULSKI   BOBBY SLABAUGH   MARY EMILY SLATE   NATHANAEL W SLATE   ADAM R SLATEN   TIMOTHY J SLATER   IVAN W SLATTER   
GARY T SLAUGHTER   JASON T SLAUGHTER   MARVIN Q SLAUGHTER   JESSE D SLAUTER   CATHARINE A SLAVENS   CHAD M SLAVENS   NATHAN T SLAVENS   RYAN DAVID SLAVENS   THOMAS J SLAVENS   RICK L SLAWSON   JAMES FLOYD SLEDGE   
KRISTIN P SLEDGE   NICHOLAS A SLEGR   STEPHEN R SLESINSKI   CATHY D SLIGER   JOSEPH JOHN SLIWKA   MONTEVILLE L SLOAN JR   SHANE P SLOCUM   HERSHEL SLONE   DERRICK U SMALL   MICHAEL S SMALL   RENEE C SMALL   
KEITH W SMALLEY   MICHAEL A SMALLEY   CURTIS SMALLS   MICHAEL SMALLS   TIMOTHY A SMALLWOOD   ROBERT WAYNE SMELLEY   STEPHEN C SMELLEY   KAREN M SMID   ROBERT W SMID   TERRY L SMILEY   HERBERT SMILING   
ALLAN M SMILLIE   AARON N SMITH   ALAN R SMITH   ANDREW S SMITH   ANNA M SMITH   ANTHONY L SMITH   BARRY E SMITH   BENJAMIN SMITH   BETTY SMITH   BILLY J SMITH   BRAD L SMITH   BRANDON K SMITH   BRETT SMITH   
BRIAN SMITH   BRIAN W SMITH   BRYAN L SMITH   BRYAN O SMITH   BUCK B SMITH   CAMERON B SMITH   CAROLYN D SMITH   CAROLYN H SMITH   CHARLES SMITH   CHARLES JASON SMITH   CHIP J SMITH   CHRIS SMITH   CHRIS T SMITH   
CHRISTOPHER G SMITH   CLAINE SMITH   CLAYTON C SMITH   CLINT T SMITH   CODY SMITH   CONNIE S SMITH   CORY A SMITH   CRAIG A SMITH   DANIEL L SMITH   DAVID ALVIN SMITH   DAVID L SMITH   DAVID R SMITH   DELMAR L SMITH   
DERRICK SMITH   DEWAYNE SMITH   DONALD D SMITH   DONNA JEAN SMITH   DONZELL A SMITH   DUSTIN E SMITH   EVAN ANDREW SMITH   FRANK SMITH   FRED SMITH   FREIDA M SMITH   GARY LEE SMITH   GEORGE W SMITH   
HOWARD M SMITH   IEON SMITH   JAMES E SMITH   JAMES E SMITH   JAMES G SMITH   JAMIE CRAIG SMITH   JAMISON R SMITH   JANICE G SMITH   JASON A SMITH   JASON C SMITH   JASON D SMITH   JASON R SMITH   JAY C SMITH   JEFFREY SMITH   
JEFFREY ALLEN SMITH   JERRY J SMITH   JERRY W SMITH   JIMMIE SMITH   JIMMY F SMITH   JODY E SMITH   JOEY D SMITH   JOHN A SMITH   JOHN D SMITH   JOHNATHAN BLAKE SMITH   JUSTIN CLAY SMITH   KAREN SMITH   KAY F SMITH   
KEVIN R SMITH   LARRY J SMITH   LARRY BRUCE SMITH   LEONA SMITH   LUCAS SMITH   MARK A SMITH   MARK H SMITH   MARVIN L SMITH   MARY C SMITH   MATTHEW T SMITH   MATTHEW W SMITH   MEGAN C SMITH   MICHAEL A SMITH   
MICHAEL D SMITH   MICHAEL J SMITH   MICHAEL P SMITH   MICHAEL S SMITH   MICHAEL T SMITH   MICHAEL W SMITH   NEOMA RENEA SMITH   NORMAN L SMITH   PATRICK SMITH   PAUL L SMITH   PAUL W SMITH   RANDALL C SMITH   RAY E SMITH   
RAYMOND R SMITH   REGGIE A SMITH   RICHARD CHARLES SMITH   RICKEY SMITH   RICKY G SMITH   RITA L SMITH   ROBERT A SMITH   RODNEY C SMITH   ROGER SMITH   ROGER A SMITH   ROGER P SMITH   RONALD B SMITH   RONDA K SMITH   
RONNIE T SMITH   RUSSELL G SMITH   RYAN M SMITH   SAMMY L SMITH   SCOTT SMITH   SHAWN SMITH   SHELBY D SMITH   SHERRY D SMITH   SUSAN SMITH   TED C SMITH   THOMAS SMITH   THOMAS R SMITH   THOMAS R SMITH   
TIM SMITH   TIMOTHY J SMITH   TIMOTHY A SMITH   TIMOTHY D SMITH   TIMOTHY W SMITH   TONY W SMITH   TROY T SMITH   UNTON LUMONT SMITH   WALTER H SMITH   WALTER S SMITH   WILLIAM D SMITH   WILLIE SMITH   ARTHUR W SMITH III   
LEWIS H SMITH III   LEONARD A SMITH JR   RICHARD L SMITH SR   BRIAN ALAN SMITHART   ASHLEY NICOLE SMITHERMAN   BRIAN S SMITHWICK   DONALD B SMITHWICK   DOUGLAS E SMITHWICK   JAMES H SMOAK   DEDRICK SMOTHERMAN   
SCOTTY L SMOTHERS   ROBERT SMUIN   RICK L SMUTNY   CONSTANCE R SNAPP   ADAM D SNAY   JIMMY SNELL   DAVID A SNELLENBARGER   CASPAR M SNELLING   MICHAEL A SNELLING   TYLER R SNELLING   FETIMA G SNIDER   
BRADLEY E SNODDY   JAMIE J SNODGRASS   STEVEN P SNODGRASS   ROBERT E SNOOK   KEVIN SNOW   WILLIAM J SNOW   STEPHEN B SNOWDEN   BRIAN K SNYDER   EDWARD S SNYDER   JEFFREY A SNYDER   JOSEPH J SNYDER   
MELISSA P SNYDER   REX A SNYDER   ROBIN SNYDER   STEVEN P SNYDER   TODD SNYDER   WALTER SNYDER   EMILE L SOFFNER   DAVID DONG-SOO SOHN   THOMAS J SOJKA   CAROL E SOKOL   KEVIN J SOKOL   ALFONSO SOLIS   
FERNANDO SOLIS   JOHNNY L SOLIS   PEDRO SOLIS   RAFAEL F SOLIS   ELIAS SOLIS-GOMEZ   B THAD SOLOMON   JOSEPH ALEXANDER SOLOMON   MELVIN D SOLOMON   TIMOTHY J SOLOS   ANDREW J SOMMER   ANTHONY J SOMMER   
JOEL D SOMMER   NICHOLE L SONCK   TIMOTHY SONNENBERG   BRANDON S SONNENFELT   LAWRENCE H SONSEL   ANIL SOORIM   JEFFREY J SOPO   CARY SORENSEN   DEBRA SORENSEN   JARED L SORENSEN   JOSEY SORENSEN   
LAYNE C SORENSEN   LYNN C SORENSEN   MISTY M SORENSEN   WILL D SORENSEN   BRENT SORENSON   DARIN L SORENSON   ROMMEL SORIANO   RONALD J SORTERS JR   DONALD D SORTOR   DAVID B SOSH   DAVID J SOSINSKY   
PEGGY L SOSSAMON   BONIFACIO SOTO   JOSE SOTO   ANDREW L SOULIGNE   JERED D SOUTH   STEVE SOUTHARD   WILLIAM B SOUTHER   WILLIAM R SOUTHERLAND   ANNA SOUTHERN   JAMES M SOUTHERN   JOE C SOUTHWOOD   
AARON E SOVEREIGN   COLLEEN K SOWDERS   DAVID G SOWELL   JESS SOWERS   EDWARD A SOWLES   DENNIS J SPADER   ROBYN A SPANN   SHAWN T SPANO   RICHARD K SPARGER JR   JEFFREY A SPARGO   DUANE SPARKMAN   
JASON HARWOOD SPARKS   KIRK SPARKS   OAKLEY SPARKS   WILLIAM J SPARKS   ROBERT D SPARKS JR   CHRISTY D SPEARS   MARK G SPECHT   DAVID L SPEED   JEFFREY S SPEER   PAMELA J SPEIDEL   MICHAEL D SPEIGHTS   MARK J SPELLAR   
CASEY B SPENCE   M L SPENCE   ROBERT E SPENCE   SANDRA L SPENCE   BRYAN H SPENCER   DONALD R SPENCER   DOUGLAS A SPENCER   KELLEY B SPENCER   MICHAEL W SPENCER   KEVIN L SPETH   DANNY R SPICER   
RANDY JOSEPH SPICER   TIMOTHY A SPIEGEL   DONNIE L SPIGNER   KELLY D SPIKES   WILLIAM L SPINKS III   STEVEN T SPIRES   JAMIE R SPIVEY   VIOLA P SPORTS   FARRON E SPRABARY   LARRY G SPRAGUE   TODD SPRAGUE   
GREGORY L SPRAYBERRY   WAYNE V SPREITZER   JOHN SPRING   WILLIAM L SPRINGBORG   CLARENCE P SPRINGER   JEFFREY L SPRINGER   LARRY J SPRINGER   JAMES T SPRINGS   WANDA E SPRINGS   RICKY STEVEN SPRINKLE   
WILLIE SPURLOCK   PHILLIP SQUYRES   CHRIS X L ST AMAND   JACQUES ST DON   BRANDON C STABBS   DAVID L STACKHOUSE   BONITA L STACY   DOUGLAS W STACY   MARSHALL R STADLER   VANESSA K STADLER   ANTHONY H STAFFORD   
BRIAN E STAFFORD   CASEY A STAFFORD   CASEY G STAFFORD   JAMES L STAFFORD   RONALD W STAFFORD   THOMAS F STAFFORD   THOMAS M STAFFORD   KIM R STAGGS   BRIAN STAHL   KEITH A STAHLE   DAVID R STALCUP   TERRELL STALEY   
MICHELLE F STALLARD   BILLY R STALLINGS   LYNN SUZANNE STALLINGS   RONALD E STALLINGS   WALTER MALONE STALLINGS   BRETT T STALNECKER   DARRIN L STALNECKER   DUSTIN L STAMER   ROGER D STAMEY   FLOYD E STANDRIDGE   
KAREN E STANEK   BILLY R STANLEY   DONALD K STANLEY   JAMES H STANLEY   JAMES C STANLEY JR   MICHAEL L STANPHILL   EARL D STANSBURY   JAMES R STANTON   SHIRRI S STANTZ   JARED STANWORTH   ROGER W STAPLES   
GENORA L STAPLETON   MARK STAPLETON   PAUL THOMAS STAPLETON   ALAN J STARK   CASEY R STARK   RAYMOND H STARK   BERNARD JOE STARK JR   SHAWNA M STARKS   TODD L STARKS   TRAVIS LEVEL STARKS   MARK A STARNES   
MICHAEL W STARNES   JAMES STARR   LINDA M STARR   MARIA L STARR   WAYNE R STARRETT   PETER J STARSZAK   ROBERT W STAUB   ALLEN E STAUFFER   DAVID A STAUFFER   DIRK A STAUFFER   ROBERT STAYNER   JAMES R STEARMAN   
DOUGLAS F STEBBING   RYAN R STECKELBERG   ORAL A STEED   CYNTHIA ROWLAND STEEL   CHARLES W STEELE   JOSHUA C STEELE   SILAS P STEELE   WILLIAM M STEEN   CHARLES BRADLEY STEGALL   CURTIS W STEGER   LANCE J STEIGER   
LAURENCE F STEIGER   AARON DALE STEIN   ASHLEY D STEIN   CARSTEN STEINER   JOHN D STEINKAMP   ELMER STEINLICHT   DAVID P STEINMETZ   JOHN C STEMANN   RAYMOND R STENDER   ROGER F STENDER   SHAWN DALE STENNETT   
ROBERT STEPAN   CHAROLETT D STEPHENS   CURTIS L STEPHENS   DONALD L STEPHENS   GARY D STEPHENS   GERALD T STEPHENS   JOE STEPHENS   JOSEPH D STEPHENS   LINDA L STEPHENS   RICKY A STEPHENS   SETH O STEPHENS   
SHAY D STEPHENS   SHERRY D STEPHENS   TIMOTHY S STEPHENS   KENNETH C STEPHENSEN   GEORGE STEPHENSON   TIMOTHY D STEPHENSON   WILLIAM D STEPHENSON   BRIAN STEVENS   JASON DEWAYNE STEVENS   MARK STEVENS   
MICHAEL C STEVENS   RHONDA M STEVENS   ROBERT K STEVENS   STABBY L STEVENS   TODD STEVENS   HAROLD V STEVENS JR   CARLOS L STEVENSON   GARY D STEWARD   RODERICK STEWARD   V LANCE STEWARD   EDWARD RANDALL STEWART   
GARY R STEWART   JAMES STEWART   JAMES B STEWART   JAMES NATHAN STEWART   JOHN W STEWART   JOSEPH H STEWART   LONNIE D STEWART   REGINALD STEWART   RICKY L STEWART   RITA A STEWART   SHAWN P STEWART   
STEVEN A STEWART   THOMAS A STEWART   TY D STEWART   WALTER STEWART   WILLIAM JASON STEWART   RICHARD STEWART JR   DANIEL L STIDHAM   TOMMY H STILES   CLAUDIA R STILL   JONATHAN R STILL   SHARRON L STILLMAN   
RONALD STILTNER   WILLIAM A STILWELL   JAY E STIMPSON   TIMOTHY W STINNEFORD   C W STINNETT   RAY F STINNETT   BRIAN T STITES   RICK A STIVER   JEFFREY L STOBAUGH   WILLIAM JOSEPH STOCK   KENNETH J STOCKS   
DOUG J STODDARD   DONALD STOFFEL   CHRISTOPHER LD STOKES   GEORGE D STOKES   JOHN G STOKES   LORIANN STOKES   MICHAEL STOKES   DAVID R STOLP   KENNETH G STOLP   RYAN W STOLP   JAY A STOLPA   J DEREK STOLTZFUS   
ALVIN STONE   CALVIN STONE   CLINTON R STONE   DENNIS L STONE   DENNIS W STONE   ERIC M STONE   HAROLD O STONE   JEFFERY STONE   JEFFREY STONE   JEREMY STONE   LOIS E STONE   MICHAEL I STONE   ROBERT J STONE   
TIMOTHY A STONE   WILLIAM B STONE   NEAL C STONEBACK   ARTHUR STONEY III   LARRY W STOOKSBERRY   DAVID A STOOPS   GARY L STOOPS   PAUL W STOOPS   DAVID S STOREY   JIMMIE L STOREY   MICHAEL K STOREY   ROBERT R STOREY   
JERILYN K STORM   MARK T STORNELLI   ROGER D STORY   PHILLIP N STOTT   VICTOR M STOUDEMIRE   KENNETH STOUT   RODNEY T STOUT   STEPHEN D STOUT   DAVID CRAIG STOVALL   RONALD L STOVALL   STEVEN A STOVER   
CHRISTOPHER A STOW   CHRISTIAN M STRABALA   ROY D STRACENER   ADAM J STRAHAN   ROBERT STRANG JR   J V STRANGE   MARK E STRATHERN   SUSAN D STRATHMAN   ROBERT J STRATMAN   ROGER E STRAUBINGER   ROSS E STRAUBINGER   
MICHAEL R STRAUGHN   BOB L STRAWN   CAMERON S STRAWN   JEFFREY L STRAWN   JEFFREY LLOYD STRAWN JR   NICHOLAS L STRBA   LEELAND STRBAN   DEREK W STRECKER   SHAUN D STREETER   GLEN STREETMAN   EDWARD B STREETT   
SARAH JANE STREICH   BURL A STRICKLAND   DAVID R STRICKLAND   GENE STRICKLAND   PATRISE STRICKLAND   RON B STRICKLAND   WILLIAM E STRICKLAND   MICHAEL LEE STRICKLIN   RANDOLPH STRINGER   CLINTORICE STRINGFELLOW   
RANDY STUART STROADE   BRENT STROCK   DANA C STROCK   LYNN E STROCK   GARY E STRODTMAN   RONALD L STROHKORB JR   CHRIS G STROHM   JEREMY C STROHM   DONALD F STROM   WAYLON L STROM   CORNELIUS M STRONG   
JOHNNY B STRONG   KENT D STRONG   LEON L STRONG   MICHAEL B STRONG   PATRICIA D STRONG   RYAN G STRONG   ARTHUR D STRONG JR   GREGORY L STROUD   R C STROUD   BRYAN J STROZIER   VALORIE L STRUNK   MICHAEL R STUART   
GARY STUBBLEFIELD   DONALD E STUCKEY   JAMES STUCKEY   MICHAEL R STUCKEY   RODNEY P STUDDARD   DANIEL R STUDLEY   BARRY L STUEVE   JUDITH STUFFLEBEAM   LILLIAN C STUHLMAN   STEVEN D STULLER   CHRISTOPHER A STULTZ   
CHRIS A STURGEON   WARREN L STUTHMAN   BARRY K STUTTS   DANNY W STUTTS   JARED A STUTTS   MARK A STYMIEST   JOSEPH R STYONS   JIMMY S SUAREZ   JOHN G SUAREZ   MARVIN SUBER   DANIEL SUCKOO   GARY L SUCKSTORF   
SHANE SUDA   W D SUDDARTH   STEVE A SUEHL   JACK S SUELL   RUSSELL W SUGGS   WILLIAM L SUKUP   DAVID A SULC   JASON A SULC   STEVE SULIMAN   PAUL SULLINS   BENTLEY SULLIVAN   GLENN DORAN SULLIVAN   GORDON MICHAEL SULLIVAN   
JIM A SULLIVAN   PATRICK M SULLIVAN   ROBERT DOUGLAS SULLIVAN   THOMAS R SULLIVAN   JAMES E SULLIVAN JR   KYLE R SUMMER   THOMAS W SUMMERFORD   KENNETH S SUMMERFORD JR   BRANDON T SUMMERS   EDWIN D SUMMERS   
JEREMY S SUMMERS   THANE ELDEN SUMMERS   J RONNIE SUMMERVILLE   JAMES LEON SUMNER JR   DAVID A SUMOSKI   WEIPING SUN   CODY JOE SUNDAY   JILL SURFACE   ROBERT W SURFACE   SCOTT A SURFACE   ANTHONY CHARLES SUSLIK   
KEVIN L SUTHERLIN   GEORGE D SUTTER   CANDACE L SUTTON   GARY WAYNE SUTTON   MARCUS L SUTTON   RONALD C SUTTON   WILLIAM LEE SUTTON   JENNIFER SVEC   JERRY SVEC JR   TERRY J SVIK   DIANE L SVITAK   DONALD G SVITAK   
JULIE K SVOBODA   KEVIN D SVOBODA   GERALD L SWAIN   MICHAEL RAY SWALLOW   STEVEN SWAN   DUSTIN L SWANK   MICHAEL A SWANK   EDWARD ANDREW SWANN II   CHRISTY O SWANNER   PAUL A SWEARINGEN   NOAH J SWEAT   
GARY SWEATMAN   MARTA J SWEEK   TRADD L SWEENEY   JOHNNY SWEET   STEPHEN J SWEET   RICHARD E SWEETMAN JR   COLLEEN ANN SWENSON   BRIAN L SWICK   JOSEPH M SWICK   ROBERT G SWICK   KYLE J SWIM   



WILLIAM C ROBERSON   STUART ROBERT   BOBBY C ROBERTS   CHARLES A ROBERTS   DANIEL ROBERTS   DONANNA J ROBERTS   FREDERICK CHARLES ROBERTS   GEORGE J ROBERTS   HERBERT A ROBERTS   JAMES ROBERTS   
JAMES M ROBERTS   JOHN ALLAN ROBERTS   JOSEPH ANDREW ROBERTS   KATHRYN ROBERTS   KEISHA ROBERTS   KEVIN L ROBERTS   MICHAEL S ROBERTS   PAUL D ROBERTS   SHELDON ROBERTS   STEPHEN J ROBERTS   TIMOTHY S ROBERTS   
WILLIAM D ROBERTS JR   COLLEN W ROBERTSON   DARRELL J ROBERTSON   JERRY L ROBERTSON   JOHN B ROBERTSON   MARTIN DARIAN ROBERTSON   RANDY L ROBERTSON   REID ROBERTSON   CLIFFORD M ROBERTSON JR   
RUSSELL E ROBILLARD   TAMI ROBINETTE   DELORIS R ROBINSON   FRANK ROBINSON   GERALD ROBINSON   HEZEKIAH ROBINSON   JAMES T ROBINSON   JEFFREY D ROBINSON   JOHN C ROBINSON   KENNETH D ROBINSON   KEVIN ROBINSON   
PATRICK ROBINSON   PATRICK G ROBINSON   ROGER D ROBINSON   RONNIE ROBINSON   SHADD D ROBINSON   THOMAS E ROBINSON   VONZELL J ROBINSON   THOMAS ROBINSON JR   JOHN M ROBINSON III   JAMES ROBINSON JR   
MARLOW ROBINSON JR   JAYSON N ROBISON   MICHAEL E ROBISON   MILFORD D ROBISON   SHELLEY ROBISON   CHARLES W ROBSON   MARY LOUISE ROCHA   BRIAN ROCHE   DARRIN M ROCHE   DAVID ROCHE   JASON P ROCHE   
CRAIG S ROCKWELL   DAVID L ROCKWOOD JR   LARRY BROCK RODDEY   RICHARD N RODEN   LUIS RODENAS   RICK L RODENBECK   BARY J RODERICK   KENNETH A RODES   GREG A RODGERS   JAMES C RODGERS   RACHELLE L RODGERS   
ROGER B RODGERS   BURTON L RODMAN   MARK RODMAN   ANTONIO RODRIGUEZ   BENJAMIN RODRIGUEZ   JOSE L RODRIGUEZ   JUAN J RODRIGUEZ   RALPH RODRIGUEZ   RANDY RODRIGUEZ   VICTOR M RODRIGUEZ   ADRIAN E RODRIQUEZ   
ESTIVEN RODRIQUEZ   FELIX RODRIGUEZ ROSAS      GARY ROE   PATRICIA K ROE   CHARLES ROEBUCK   CHRISTOPHER T ROEHM   ROGER ROEMEN   WILLIAM R ROENFELDT   CODY P ROEWERT   GEORGE E ROFE   ASHLEY C ROGERS   
BRIAN L ROGERS   CHRIS ROGERS   CHRISTOPHER ROGERS   DONNA A ROGERS   DOUGLAS N ROGERS   DUSTIN B ROGERS   DUSTIN M ROGERS   GREGORY P ROGERS   JAMES A ROGERS   JEFFREY S ROGERS   MARK A ROGERS   
MICHAEL L ROGERS   SHARON G ROGERS   SIDNEY L ROGERS   SYLVESTER ROGERS   TONY L ROGERS   CHARLES H ROGERS JR   SHANNON D ROGERSON   ROBERT F ROHLEDER   MARSHA L ROHRS   DAVID T ROKER   TRAVIS S ROLAND   
WILLIAM D ROLAND   WESLEY S ROLLINGS   JOSEPH M ROLLINS   PEGGY C ROLLINS   PHILLIP M ROLLINS   ROBERT ANDY ROLLINS   JAMES E ROLOSON   JON M ROMANOVICH   BENJAMIN ROMERO   JOSE ROMERO   DENNIS F ROMICH   
MICHAEL D ROMICH   DARRELL WADE ROMINE   JUAN J RONCANCIO   STEPHEN J RONCSKEVITZ   JIM RONNER   PATRICK A RONSPIES   JUDITH D ROOD   RICHARD W ROOF   ROSS D ROOT   GREGORY B ROPER   THEODORE ROPER   
DAVID W ROSBERG   BARBARA ROSE   DAVID ROSE   DONALD S ROSE   JASON M ROSE   JOHN M ROSE   MICHAEL ROSE   RANDY J ROSE JR   TODD WILLIAM ROSEBROUGH   WALTER D ROSENBAUM   BRUCE O ROSENBROCK   DENNIS A ROSENBROCK   
AARON G ROSENDARY   RONALD A ROSET   RUDI J ROSINSKI   CHRISTOPHE ROSS   DARREN A ROSS   DONALD ROSS   ERIC MATTHEW ROSS   JEVON D ROSS   KRISTIN L ROSS   MICHAEL L ROSS   RANDY ROSS   RUSSELL S ROSS   
JARED L ROSSMAN   DEREK B ROTH   FRED ROTH   MICHAEL R ROTH   TYLER L ROTH   RICHARD R ROTHERHAM   TERRY L ROTHERHAM   MITCHEL J ROUGHT   ROGER A ROUNDS   C TED ROUNDY   BRIAN K ROUNTREE   MICHAEL RAY ROUNTREE   
ANTONIO MAYNARD ROUSE   ERICK S ROUSE   LYNDON ROUSE   STEVEN D ROUSE   JAMES C ROVITO   JOHN ROWDEN   MICHAEL D ROWE   WILLIE F ROWE   RICKY E ROWELL   DAVID E ROWELL JR   STEVEN J ROWLAN   DANIEL ROWLAND   
JENNIFER ROWLAND   HERBERT D ROWLAND JR   KENNETH W ROWLETT   JON D ROWLEY   KITTY ROYCROFT   RICHARD Y ROYER   DALE W RUARK   JOSHUA D RUARK   ROBERT G RUARK   EUGENE A RUARK JR   CHRISTOPHER ALFONSO RUBIO   
CHRISTOPHER N RUCCO   CARLOS RUCKER   KENNETH MICHAEL RUCKER   LAVEIL RUCKER   ANGELA M RUCKMAN   JEFFREY N RUCKMAN   KERRY RUCKMAN   KEVIN J RUCKMAN   MARVIN RAY RUDD   TIMOTHY RUDDICK   BRYAN C RUDLOFF   
CHARLES L RUFFING   TIMOTHY G RUGE   BRETT A RUGG   ALBINO RUIZ   ALFONSO S RUIZ   GERARDO RUIZ   JEREMY A RUIZ   JOSE G RUIZ   SALVADOR D RUIZ   SARAH J RUMPFF   HARRY L RUMPH IV   SCOTT J RUMSEY   MARK A RUNDLES   
RICHARD RUNIONS   HERBERT L RUNNELS   CHRISTIAN M RUOFF   KENNETH RUPIL   DEAN M RUPP   JOSHUA M RUPPERT   MICHAEL L RUPPERT   RODNEY L RUPPERT   JEANNE F RUSH   WILLIE R RUSH   O'NEAL RUSH JR   BEN T RUSHING   
JERRY D RUSHING   LINDSEY D RUSHING   WESLEY RUSHING   PAUL D RUSSEL   BRIAN K RUSSELL   CHARLES E RUSSELL   EDWARD RUSSELL   GENE DILLARD RUSSELL   JIM RUSSELL   JOEL RUSSELL   PAULA N RUSSELL   ROBERT RUSSELL   
ROMAN L RUSSELL   SCOTT A RUSSELL   SHARON L RUSSELL   WILLIAM R RUSSELL   MICHAEL STEVE RUSSELL JR   LYNN R RUSTIGIAN   NICHOLAS Q RUTH   JOSEPH A RUTKOWSKI   JASON S RUTLAND   WILBERT E RUTLAND   GREGORY A RUTLEDGE   
NICKIE J RUTLEDGE   WESLEY RAY RUTLEDGE   CHARLES E RYAN   CRAIG LEWIS RYAN   DAN W RYAN   DAVID M RYAN   D EDWARD RYAN   EDWARD J RYAN   JAMES RODNEY RYAN   MICHAEL J RYAN   RICHARD H RYAN   RICHARD P RYAN   
STEVEN M RYAN   LEON MARSHALL RYAN III   MARK S RYDELL   STEVEN J RYNEARSON   DEORAJ SABINATH   JOHN P SACCO   KEVIN J SACKETT   CLEMMON SADLER   PETER A SADOSKI   JEFFREY A SAENZ DE VITERI   LAOHER SAEYANG   
JERRY SAGER   BRAULIO SAGRERO   KYLE P SAKOS   ISAIAH SALAZAR   JOSE A SALAZAR   AURELIO SALCEDO   JAMES K SALE II   TIMOTHY D SALHEISER   JO SALMON   WILLIAM SALMON   JAY DEE SALVESEN   CHERYL A SALVO   MICHAEL J SALVO   
JASON L SAMPLE   DEREK A SAMPSON   JENNIFER H SAMPSON   LEO SAMPSON   BILLY JOE SAMUEL   JENNIFER L SAMUELS   DAVID L SAMUELSON   ALEJANDRO J SANCHEZ   CESAR SANCHEZ   JOSE SANCHEZ   ONOFRE SANCHEZ   
STEPHANIE D SANCHEZ   CHRISTOPHER SANDERS   CHRISTOPHER A SANDERS   ERIC D SANDERS   GEORGE SANDERS   HERMAN SANDERS   HERSCHEL L SANDERS   JOHNNY F SANDERS   KEVIN SANDERS   LARRY D SANDERS   
LARRY E SANDERS   MACK SANDERS   NOEL G SANDERS   PAUL M SANDERS   RICHARD N SANDERS   RONALD SANDERS   RYAN B SANDERS   MICHAEL T SANDLIN   PAUL D SANDLIN   KIRK G SANDMAN   KENNETH R SANDS   RACHAL SANDS   
TERRY L SANDUSKY   RINA N SANE   BRIAN KEITH SANFORD   KEVIN G SANFORD   ROBERT O SANFORD   JAMES A SANFORD JR   FREDERICK O SANGUINETTI   LEVERN SANSBURY JR   ROBERT CLAY SANSING   ISMAEL SANTOS   JOSE L SANTOYO   
AMBER L SAPP   RONALD S SARDEN   KIM J SARIEGO   STEPHEN C SARINE   PETER L SARNO   JASON SARRATT   JAMES C SARTIN JR   ROBERT SATTERFIELD   BRYAN SAULIS   MAURICE L SAUNDERS   PAUL K SAUNDERS   WILLIAM J SAUTER   
WILLIAM J SAVOIR JR   DERRICK L SAWYER   JODY S SAWYER   MEGAN E SAWYER   WILLIAM B SAWYER   MARTHA L SAXENMEYER   GAYLAND C SAYLES   JOHNATON P SAYLES   JAMES MICHAEL SAYRE   JAMES S SCALISE   SCOTT D SCARBERRY   
JUSTIN SCARBOROUGH   DOUGLAS A SCHAAD   JASON W SCHAAF   JOHN J SCHACHTNER   KEITH L SCHAECHER   PATRICK J SCHAECHER   CHRISTIAN SCHAEFER   MARK JEFF SCHAFER   GARETT M SCHAFFER   JOHN A SCHAFFER   
MORTON S SCHAFFER   STEVEN A SCHAMP   ADAM D SCHANBACHER   BERNARD H SCHARR   BRIAN T SCHART   WALTER B SCHATT   MATTHEW S SCHEBLER   MICHAEL C SCHEDLER   LEROY H SCHEIWE   WENDELL A SCHELL   
DANITA M SCHELLPEPER   RODNEY A SCHENCK   KIMBERLY M SCHENK   JACK B SCHERER   RICHENA C SCHEU   SCOTT A SCHIEL   JAMES J SCHIFFLI   DIANE MARIE SCHILLAWSKI   JOHN ROBERT SCHILLAWSKI   JOSEPH A SCHILPP   
DAYMON W SCHINBECKLER   ROBERT B SCHINDLEDECKER   ALISON N SCHLABACH   LYNETTE L SCHLEMMER   MARK R SCHLICHTING   THOMAS R SCHLICKBERND   CHAD M SCHLIE   MICHAEL J SCHLIEWE   CAROLYN E SCHLOTE   
ANDREA DEE SCHMIDT   CASEY C SCHMIDT   CHARLES A SCHMIDT   JONATHAN R SCHMIDT   JOSEPH A SCHMIDT   MARK J SCHMIDT   JEFFREY A SCHMITT   JOHN K SCHMITZ   ROBERT KURT SCHMITZ   JAVEN P SCHMUCKER   RANDEL S SCHNEBEL   
BRENDA C SCHNELL   CHAD M SCHNOOR   GARY D SCHNOOR   JASON D SCHNOOR   RICKY D SCHNOOR   SHAWN J SCHNOOR   ROMAN A SCHOCK   JAMES L SCHOEN   JOHN W SCHOENAUER   JO DEE SCHOMAKER   MURRAY K SCHOMAKER   
PERI S SCHOMAKER   ROBERT SCHONDEL   JASON R SCHOOLEY   MATTHEW PATRICK SCHOOLEY   WILLIAM B SCHOPPE   TONY R SCHRADER   RYAN SCHRAEDER   VERNON J SCHREMMER   CHRISTOPHER J SCHRIMP   PATRICIA A SCHROEDER   
RYAN W SCHROEDER   THOMAS J SCHROEDER   DONNA SCHROUF   MICHAEL A SCHUEREN   WILLIAM S SCHULKE   MICHAEL SCHULLER II   DALE M SCHULTE   BECKY J SCHULTZ   DAVID E SCHULTZ   MICHAEL SCHULTZ   NICHOLAS O SCHULTZ   
NORMAN W SCHULTZ   WALTER E SCHULTZ   BRENDA R SCHULZ   BRIAN R SCHULZ   JAMES L SCHULZ   LOUIS E SCHULZ   MICHAEL DAVID SCHULZ   FRED S SCHUMACHER   TRACEY L SCHUMACHER   TRACY L SCHUTZ   TRENT T SCHUTZA   
CHRISTOPHER SCHWAB   KENNETH EDWIN SCHWAB   CARL R SCHWABE   JAMES G SCHWADER   CHRISTOPHER V SCHWARTZ   MARK RJ SCHWARTZ   ROBERT E SCHWARTZ   RODNEY L SCHWARTZ   RUBEN L SCHWARTZ   TIMOTHY M SCHWARTZ   
TONY M SCHWARTZ   WILLIAM L SCHWARTZ   DAVID W SCHWEHN   JOHN H SCHWEINSBERG JR   NICOLE A SCHWEIZER   SCOTT SCOBEE   CASEY R SCOBIE   PHILLIP R SCOFIELD   JASON D SCOGGINS   ADAM D SCOTT   ADAM E SCOTT   
BOBBY D SCOTT   BRIAN J SCOTT   CHARLES SCOTT   DANIEL A SCOTT   DAVID A SCOTT   DAVID J SCOTT   DENISE C SCOTT   DENNIS SCOTT   EDWARD G SCOTT   GREGGORY SCOTT   HAROLD G SCOTT   HAZEL M SCOTT   IDA SCOTT   
JAMES E SCOTT   JIM A SCOTT   JOE C SCOTT   JOHN T SCOTT   KENNETH SCOTT   KENT D SCOTT   KYLE D SCOTT   LAWRENCE SCOTT   MICHAEL B SCOTT   MICHAEL L SCOTT   MICHEAL NEIL SCOTT   MITCHEL F SCOTT   QUENTIN O SCOTT   
RICKEY LEVON SCOTT   RUSSELL L SCOTT   TROY C SCOTT   WILLIAM E SCOTT   WILLIE L SCOTT   MACELLA SCOTT DAVIS   CHARLES E SCOTT SR   GARY R SCOTT SR   MARK A SCOUTEN   BENJAMIN ROSS SCOVEL   LANA S SCRIVNER   
KENNETH E SCRUDDER II   KENNETH W SCRUGGS   GREGORY E SEAGLE   BRENT A SEALS   WILLIE SEALS   MICHAEL A SEAMANS   SETH D SEAMONS   GREGORY A SEARING   ALAN B SEARS   CHAD B SEARS   DAVID MICHAEL SEARS   
RICHARD A SEARS   EVERETTE M SEASE   JOEY W SEATS   JUSTIN SAMUEL SEBRING   LAWRENCE NELSON SECOR   KRISHNA SEEGOOLAM   MICHAEL L SEELMEYER   THOMAS G SEEMEYER   GREG A SEGARS   STEVE R SEGARS   DUANE I SEGER   
GARY W SEGER   ABRAHAM M SEGOVIA   LARRY W SEIBERT   RONALD A SEIBERT   JOSEPH P SEKOT   MICHAEL SHAWN SELBY   SCOTT E SELF   BOBBY D SELLARS   ANTONIO D SELLERS   BILLY RAY SELLERS   MICHELLE SELLERS   NELDA 
D SELLERS   PERRY B SELLERS III   CLAYTON R SELLIN   TODD M SELLIN   KEVIN SELLS   RANDALL L SELMAN   PHILLIP M SEMRICK   WALTER SENENKO   DELBERT L SENSABAUGH   CARLOS SEPULVEDA   SAMUEL P SERATT   WILLIAM C SERES   
CHRISTOPHER D SERING   JOSEPH SERNA-PIRO   VICTOR SERRANO   PANDIAN SETHURAJ   ROBERT B SEVERANCE   NICHOLAS L SEVERNS   JEREMY SEWARDS   JUSTIN B SEXTON   SCOTT E SEXTON   DUANE L SEYL   THAD D SEYL   
CHRISTOPHER G SEYMOUR   JOSHUA SEYMOUR   ROY L SEYMOUR   WAYNE MICHAEL SEYMOUR   ROY SHACKELFORD   SHELDON J SHADY   STANLEY H SHADY   PATRICIA A SHAFER   ROBERT A SHAFER   MARK D SHAFFER   MONA L SHAFFER   
RICKY J SHAFFER   KARL J SHAMLEE   ROBERT K SHANKLES   JOHN M SHANNON   NASIR A SHARIEFF   RIDGELY W SHARIETT   DHARAM SHARMA   DANIEL SHARP   EMMA K SHARP   QUINTIN F SHARP   ROBERT SHARP   CRAIG E SHARPE   
MICHAEL D SHARRAR   BRIAN SHARROCK   KURT A SHATTO   JANET L SHAVER   FREDRICK R SHAVERS   AARON D SHAW   DIANE SHAW   HAROLD D SHAW   JAMES SHAW   JAMIE R SHAW   JIMMY E SHAW   SHAUN SHAW   CHARLES W SHAY   
CHARLES E SHAY III   SEAN SHEAD   ANTHONY A SHEARER   HARRY B SHEARIN III   JAMES A SHEBLE   PAUL A SHECKELL   DOUGLAS R SHEFFER   JUSTIN M SHELBY   JAMES BURTON SHELL   ISHMAEL J SHELLEY JR   BUSTER E SHELTON   
J TRAVIS SHELTON   JAMES SHELTON   JOHN D SHELTON   JONATHAN B SHELTON   JOSHUA W SHELTON   KEITH SHELTON   LOYD G SHELTON   MICHAEL R SHELTON   MITCHELL SHELTON   NATHAN SHELTON   DANIAL D SHEPHERD   
DAVID W SHEPHERD   EDWARD SHEPHERD   KENNETH W SHEPHERD   MARK J SHEPHERD   WILLIE SHEPHERD   ALVIN SHEPPARD   RICKY W SHEPPARD   WILLIAM F SHEPPARD   MICHEL R SHERIDAN   BRANDON SHERMAN   CARL J SHERMAN   
FORREST MAJOR SHERMAN   KEVIN SHERMAN   MARK FREDERICK SHERMAN   RAVON SHERMAN   DALE SHERRILL   RICKY SHERROD   PATRICK C SHERWIN   PHILLIP L SHERWIN   MAX T SHERWOOD   WILLIAM D SHERWOOD   DAVID SHIELDS   
EDWARD M SHILLEY   CHRISTOPHER M SHINSTOCK   DAVID S SHIPLEY   ANDREW J SHIPMAN   LAURIE S SHIPMAN   KEVIN C SHIPMAN SR   PATRICK S SHIPP   DAVID P SHIREMAN   CRAIG O SHIREY   LARRY D SHIREY   JAMES D SHIRKS   
LANCE EUGENE SHIRLEY   LONNIE E SHIRLEY   CARLA S SHISLER   BRIAN L SHIVELY   KIM S SHIVERS   TOM LEE SHIVERS   WILLIAM H SHIVERS   CURTIS R SHOAF   STEVEN S SHOEMAKER   PERRY R SHOEMAKER III   CURTIS DALE SHOEMAKER JR   
DARRELL SHOFFNER   DANIEL C SHOLES   ANTHONY V SHOLL   ANTHONY SHORES   CHRISTOPHER D SHORT   DIANNE E SHORT   JAMES SHORT   KEVIN M SHORT   ROBERT D SHORT   SCOTT SHORTRIDGE   SHARON SHOULDERS   TOMMY E SHOUP   
WILLIAM SHOUSE   LORALEE A SHOWALTER   NATALIE M R SHOWERS   KEVIN W SHRADER   BRIAN J SHREFFLER   DOUGLAS SHRIMPLIN   JAMES R SHUBURTE   MICHAEL L SHUEY   DERRICK J SHULER   ROBERT SCOTT SHULER   
GREGORY W SHULL   JOHNATHON D SHULL   JUSTIN SHULL   RICHARD L SHULL   BRIAN B SHULTZ   CLAY S SHULTZ   JEFF L SHULTZ   KENNETH EDWARD SHUMAN   TIMOTHY A SHUMAN   DAVID SHUMATE   JAMES W SHUMPERT   SCOTT A SHUMPERT   
BRIAN SHUPAK   AARON SHURTS   CHESTER SHUSTER   MARK ANTHONY SHUTTLESWORTH III   ADAM J SHUTTS   ROBERT SHY   DOUGLAS EWAN SIDDALL   JEFF A SIDES   ROBERT E SIDES   JOHN W SIDES JR   JUSTIN G SIEBRANDT   
RICK G SIEFERT   PAUL SIEG   LOREN L SIEVERS   JONATHAN M SIGMON   RUSSELL L SILA JR   MARC SILBERBERG   BRIAN J SILHACEK   CAROL J SILHACEK   KEITH D SILHACEK   JOSE SILVA   ROMAO C SILVINO   JOHN F SIMEONE   
ALVIN V SIMMONS   GARY W SIMMONS   JAMES L SIMMONS   JASON M SIMMONS   JASON S SIMMONS   JESSE S SIMMONS   JOSEPH R SIMMONS   KENT ALLAN SIMMONS   MARK A SIMMONS   PATRICIA A SIMMONS   ROSS CRAFFORD SIMMONS   
WENDELL A SIMMONS   WILLIAM J SIMMONS   YANCEY DEWAYNE SIMMONS   ALEX K SIMMONS JR   VIRGIL SIMMONS JR   DAMION ALGERNOD SIMON   MELVIN SIMON   BOB P SIMONSEN   BRAD A SIMONSEN   ERIC SIMONSEN   KENNETH E SIMPER   
CHARLES A SIMPKINS   AUNDREA SIMPSON   BERT M SIMPSON   CLIFFTON D SIMPSON   DAVID N SIMPSON   ELIJAH E SIMPSON   HENRY M SIMPSON   JAMES R SIMPSON   JEROME SIMPSON   MICHAEL K SIMPSON   RANDALL J SIMPSON   
RICHARD S SIMPSON   ROBERT P SIMPSON   SETH K SIMPSON   STEVEN K SIMPSON   TIMOTHY G SIMPSON   TONJA D SIMPSON   WAYLON K SIMPSON   CHAD D SIMS   DAVID M SIMS   DEWEY SIMS   J R SIMS   ROBBIE J SIMS   SCOTT EDWARD SIMS   
SHANE T SIMS   WILLIAM R SIMS   JOHN L SIMS III   JOHN HOWARD SINCERBEAUX   JAMES J SINEATH III   CARL BRANDON SING   MARCUS SINGH   VITRA SINGH   RICHARD J SINGLETARY   RICHARD L SINGLETARY   TERRY J SINGLETARY   
JEFFREY A SINGLETON   LEROY D SINGLETON   ROBERT L SINGLETON   WILLIAM SINGLETON   WYVONIA SINGLETON   LEAH B SINNET   G THOMAS SINNET II   JOHN F SIPPEL   TEOFLIO JR SIPRIANO   MELANIE M SISK   ROBIN N SISK   
ROBERT W SISTRUNK   JAMES DAWAYNE SITTON   AARON R SIZEMORE   ARVIS R SIZEMORE   TERRA C SIZEMORE   JAMES OLEN SIZEMORE II   RANDY C SKAGEN   Frank ANDREW SKARDINSKI   RUSSELL R SKEEM   MARK T SKELCHER   
FOY E SKELTON   THOMAS ANDREW SKELTON   ROBERT SKENANDORE   DAVID W SKERRITT   JOHN F SKERRITT IV   BIRCH K SKINNER   BRAD S SKINNER   BROCK S SKINNER   HEATHER SKINNER   JAMES T SKINNER   MARSHA A SKINNER   
MICHAEL SKINNER   STACEY T SKINNER   JOHNNIE SKIPPER   STEVEN E SKROBISZEWSKI   LESZEK E SKULSKI   BOBBY SLABAUGH   MARY EMILY SLATE   NATHANAEL W SLATE   ADAM R SLATEN   TIMOTHY J SLATER   IVAN W SLATTER   
GARY T SLAUGHTER   JASON T SLAUGHTER   MARVIN Q SLAUGHTER   JESSE D SLAUTER   CATHARINE A SLAVENS   CHAD M SLAVENS   NATHAN T SLAVENS   RYAN DAVID SLAVENS   THOMAS J SLAVENS   RICK L SLAWSON   JAMES FLOYD SLEDGE   
KRISTIN P SLEDGE   NICHOLAS A SLEGR   STEPHEN R SLESINSKI   CATHY D SLIGER   JOSEPH JOHN SLIWKA   MONTEVILLE L SLOAN JR   SHANE P SLOCUM   HERSHEL SLONE   DERRICK U SMALL   MICHAEL S SMALL   RENEE C SMALL   
KEITH W SMALLEY   MICHAEL A SMALLEY   CURTIS SMALLS   MICHAEL SMALLS   TIMOTHY A SMALLWOOD   ROBERT WAYNE SMELLEY   STEPHEN C SMELLEY   KAREN M SMID   ROBERT W SMID   TERRY L SMILEY   HERBERT SMILING   
ALLAN M SMILLIE   AARON N SMITH   ALAN R SMITH   ANDREW S SMITH   ANNA M SMITH   ANTHONY L SMITH   BARRY E SMITH   BENJAMIN SMITH   BETTY SMITH   BILLY J SMITH   BRAD L SMITH   BRANDON K SMITH   BRETT SMITH   
BRIAN SMITH   BRIAN W SMITH   BRYAN L SMITH   BRYAN O SMITH   BUCK B SMITH   CAMERON B SMITH   CAROLYN D SMITH   CAROLYN H SMITH   CHARLES SMITH   CHARLES JASON SMITH   CHIP J SMITH   CHRIS SMITH   CHRIS T SMITH   
CHRISTOPHER G SMITH   CLAINE SMITH   CLAYTON C SMITH   CLINT T SMITH   CODY SMITH   CONNIE S SMITH   CORY A SMITH   CRAIG A SMITH   DANIEL L SMITH   DAVID ALVIN SMITH   DAVID L SMITH   DAVID R SMITH   DELMAR L SMITH   
DERRICK SMITH   DEWAYNE SMITH   DONALD D SMITH   DONNA JEAN SMITH   DONZELL A SMITH   DUSTIN E SMITH   EVAN ANDREW SMITH   FRANK SMITH   FRED SMITH   FREIDA M SMITH   GARY LEE SMITH   GEORGE W SMITH   
HOWARD M SMITH   IEON SMITH   JAMES E SMITH   JAMES E SMITH   JAMES G SMITH   JAMIE CRAIG SMITH   JAMISON R SMITH   JANICE G SMITH   JASON A SMITH   JASON C SMITH   JASON D SMITH   JASON R SMITH   JAY C SMITH   JEFFREY SMITH   
JEFFREY ALLEN SMITH   JERRY J SMITH   JERRY W SMITH   JIMMIE SMITH   JIMMY F SMITH   JODY E SMITH   JOEY D SMITH   JOHN A SMITH   JOHN D SMITH   JOHNATHAN BLAKE SMITH   JUSTIN CLAY SMITH   KAREN SMITH   KAY F SMITH   
KEVIN R SMITH   LARRY J SMITH   LARRY BRUCE SMITH   LEONA SMITH   LUCAS SMITH   MARK A SMITH   MARK H SMITH   MARVIN L SMITH   MARY C SMITH   MATTHEW T SMITH   MATTHEW W SMITH   MEGAN C SMITH   MICHAEL A SMITH   
MICHAEL D SMITH   MICHAEL J SMITH   MICHAEL P SMITH   MICHAEL S SMITH   MICHAEL T SMITH   MICHAEL W SMITH   NEOMA RENEA SMITH   NORMAN L SMITH   PATRICK SMITH   PAUL L SMITH   PAUL W SMITH   RANDALL C SMITH   RAY E SMITH   
RAYMOND R SMITH   REGGIE A SMITH   RICHARD CHARLES SMITH   RICKEY SMITH   RICKY G SMITH   RITA L SMITH   ROBERT A SMITH   RODNEY C SMITH   ROGER SMITH   ROGER A SMITH   ROGER P SMITH   RONALD B SMITH   RONDA K SMITH   
RONNIE T SMITH   RUSSELL G SMITH   RYAN M SMITH   SAMMY L SMITH   SCOTT SMITH   SHAWN SMITH   SHELBY D SMITH   SHERRY D SMITH   SUSAN SMITH   TED C SMITH   THOMAS SMITH   THOMAS R SMITH   THOMAS R SMITH   
TIM SMITH   TIMOTHY J SMITH   TIMOTHY A SMITH   TIMOTHY D SMITH   TIMOTHY W SMITH   TONY W SMITH   TROY T SMITH   UNTON LUMONT SMITH   WALTER H SMITH   WALTER S SMITH   WILLIAM D SMITH   WILLIE SMITH   ARTHUR W SMITH III   
LEWIS H SMITH III   LEONARD A SMITH JR   RICHARD L SMITH SR   BRIAN ALAN SMITHART   ASHLEY NICOLE SMITHERMAN   BRIAN S SMITHWICK   DONALD B SMITHWICK   DOUGLAS E SMITHWICK   JAMES H SMOAK   DEDRICK SMOTHERMAN   
SCOTTY L SMOTHERS   ROBERT SMUIN   RICK L SMUTNY   CONSTANCE R SNAPP   ADAM D SNAY   JIMMY SNELL   DAVID A SNELLENBARGER   CASPAR M SNELLING   MICHAEL A SNELLING   TYLER R SNELLING   FETIMA G SNIDER   
BRADLEY E SNODDY   JAMIE J SNODGRASS   STEVEN P SNODGRASS   ROBERT E SNOOK   KEVIN SNOW   WILLIAM J SNOW   STEPHEN B SNOWDEN   BRIAN K SNYDER   EDWARD S SNYDER   JEFFREY A SNYDER   JOSEPH J SNYDER   
MELISSA P SNYDER   REX A SNYDER   ROBIN SNYDER   STEVEN P SNYDER   TODD SNYDER   WALTER SNYDER   EMILE L SOFFNER   DAVID DONG-SOO SOHN   THOMAS J SOJKA   CAROL E SOKOL   KEVIN J SOKOL   ALFONSO SOLIS   
FERNANDO SOLIS   JOHNNY L SOLIS   PEDRO SOLIS   RAFAEL F SOLIS   ELIAS SOLIS-GOMEZ   B THAD SOLOMON   JOSEPH ALEXANDER SOLOMON   MELVIN D SOLOMON   TIMOTHY J SOLOS   ANDREW J SOMMER   ANTHONY J SOMMER   
JOEL D SOMMER   NICHOLE L SONCK   TIMOTHY SONNENBERG   BRANDON S SONNENFELT   LAWRENCE H SONSEL   ANIL SOORIM   JEFFREY J SOPO   CARY SORENSEN   DEBRA SORENSEN   JARED L SORENSEN   JOSEY SORENSEN   
LAYNE C SORENSEN   LYNN C SORENSEN   MISTY M SORENSEN   WILL D SORENSEN   BRENT SORENSON   DARIN L SORENSON   ROMMEL SORIANO   RONALD J SORTERS JR   DONALD D SORTOR   DAVID B SOSH   DAVID J SOSINSKY   
PEGGY L SOSSAMON   BONIFACIO SOTO   JOSE SOTO   ANDREW L SOULIGNE   JERED D SOUTH   STEVE SOUTHARD   WILLIAM B SOUTHER   WILLIAM R SOUTHERLAND   ANNA SOUTHERN   JAMES M SOUTHERN   JOE C SOUTHWOOD   
AARON E SOVEREIGN   COLLEEN K SOWDERS   DAVID G SOWELL   JESS SOWERS   EDWARD A SOWLES   DENNIS J SPADER   ROBYN A SPANN   SHAWN T SPANO   RICHARD K SPARGER JR   JEFFREY A SPARGO   DUANE SPARKMAN   
JASON HARWOOD SPARKS   KIRK SPARKS   OAKLEY SPARKS   WILLIAM J SPARKS   ROBERT D SPARKS JR   CHRISTY D SPEARS   MARK G SPECHT   DAVID L SPEED   JEFFREY S SPEER   PAMELA J SPEIDEL   MICHAEL D SPEIGHTS   MARK J SPELLAR   
CASEY B SPENCE   M L SPENCE   ROBERT E SPENCE   SANDRA L SPENCE   BRYAN H SPENCER   DONALD R SPENCER   DOUGLAS A SPENCER   KELLEY B SPENCER   MICHAEL W SPENCER   KEVIN L SPETH   DANNY R SPICER   
RANDY JOSEPH SPICER   TIMOTHY A SPIEGEL   DONNIE L SPIGNER   KELLY D SPIKES   WILLIAM L SPINKS III   STEVEN T SPIRES   JAMIE R SPIVEY   VIOLA P SPORTS   FARRON E SPRABARY   LARRY G SPRAGUE   TODD SPRAGUE   
GREGORY L SPRAYBERRY   WAYNE V SPREITZER   JOHN SPRING   WILLIAM L SPRINGBORG   CLARENCE P SPRINGER   JEFFREY L SPRINGER   LARRY J SPRINGER   JAMES T SPRINGS   WANDA E SPRINGS   RICKY STEVEN SPRINKLE   
WILLIE SPURLOCK   PHILLIP SQUYRES   CHRIS X L ST AMAND   JACQUES ST DON   BRANDON C STABBS   DAVID L STACKHOUSE   BONITA L STACY   DOUGLAS W STACY   MARSHALL R STADLER   VANESSA K STADLER   ANTHONY H STAFFORD   
BRIAN E STAFFORD   CASEY A STAFFORD   CASEY G STAFFORD   JAMES L STAFFORD   RONALD W STAFFORD   THOMAS F STAFFORD   THOMAS M STAFFORD   KIM R STAGGS   BRIAN STAHL   KEITH A STAHLE   DAVID R STALCUP   TERRELL STALEY   
MICHELLE F STALLARD   BILLY R STALLINGS   LYNN SUZANNE STALLINGS   RONALD E STALLINGS   WALTER MALONE STALLINGS   BRETT T STALNECKER   DARRIN L STALNECKER   DUSTIN L STAMER   ROGER D STAMEY   FLOYD E STANDRIDGE   
KAREN E STANEK   BILLY R STANLEY   DONALD K STANLEY   JAMES H STANLEY   JAMES C STANLEY JR   MICHAEL L STANPHILL   EARL D STANSBURY   JAMES R STANTON   SHIRRI S STANTZ   JARED STANWORTH   ROGER W STAPLES   
GENORA L STAPLETON   MARK STAPLETON   PAUL THOMAS STAPLETON   ALAN J STARK   CASEY R STARK   RAYMOND H STARK   BERNARD JOE STARK JR   SHAWNA M STARKS   TODD L STARKS   TRAVIS LEVEL STARKS   MARK A STARNES   
MICHAEL W STARNES   JAMES STARR   LINDA M STARR   MARIA L STARR   WAYNE R STARRETT   PETER J STARSZAK   ROBERT W STAUB   ALLEN E STAUFFER   DAVID A STAUFFER   DIRK A STAUFFER   ROBERT STAYNER   JAMES R STEARMAN   
DOUGLAS F STEBBING   RYAN R STECKELBERG   ORAL A STEED   CYNTHIA ROWLAND STEEL   CHARLES W STEELE   JOSHUA C STEELE   SILAS P STEELE   WILLIAM M STEEN   CHARLES BRADLEY STEGALL   CURTIS W STEGER   LANCE J STEIGER   
LAURENCE F STEIGER   AARON DALE STEIN   ASHLEY D STEIN   CARSTEN STEINER   JOHN D STEINKAMP   ELMER STEINLICHT   DAVID P STEINMETZ   JOHN C STEMANN   RAYMOND R STENDER   ROGER F STENDER   SHAWN DALE STENNETT   
ROBERT STEPAN   CHAROLETT D STEPHENS   CURTIS L STEPHENS   DONALD L STEPHENS   GARY D STEPHENS   GERALD T STEPHENS   JOE STEPHENS   JOSEPH D STEPHENS   LINDA L STEPHENS   RICKY A STEPHENS   SETH O STEPHENS   
SHAY D STEPHENS   SHERRY D STEPHENS   TIMOTHY S STEPHENS   KENNETH C STEPHENSEN   GEORGE STEPHENSON   TIMOTHY D STEPHENSON   WILLIAM D STEPHENSON   BRIAN STEVENS   JASON DEWAYNE STEVENS   MARK STEVENS   
MICHAEL C STEVENS   RHONDA M STEVENS   ROBERT K STEVENS   STABBY L STEVENS   TODD STEVENS   HAROLD V STEVENS JR   CARLOS L STEVENSON   GARY D STEWARD   RODERICK STEWARD   V LANCE STEWARD   EDWARD RANDALL STEWART   
GARY R STEWART   JAMES STEWART   JAMES B STEWART   JAMES NATHAN STEWART   JOHN W STEWART   JOSEPH H STEWART   LONNIE D STEWART   REGINALD STEWART   RICKY L STEWART   RITA A STEWART   SHAWN P STEWART   
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JEFFREY A SINGLETON   LEROY D SINGLETON   ROBERT L SINGLETON   WILLIAM SINGLETON   WYVONIA SINGLETON   LEAH B SINNET   G THOMAS SINNET II   JOHN F SIPPEL   TEOFLIO JR SIPRIANO   MELANIE M SISK   ROBIN N SISK   
ROBERT W SISTRUNK   JAMES DAWAYNE SITTON   AARON R SIZEMORE   ARVIS R SIZEMORE   TERRA C SIZEMORE   JAMES OLEN SIZEMORE II   RANDY C SKAGEN   Frank ANDREW SKARDINSKI   RUSSELL R SKEEM   MARK T SKELCHER   
FOY E SKELTON   THOMAS ANDREW SKELTON   ROBERT SKENANDORE   DAVID W SKERRITT   JOHN F SKERRITT IV   BIRCH K SKINNER   BRAD S SKINNER   BROCK S SKINNER   HEATHER SKINNER   JAMES T SKINNER   MARSHA A SKINNER   
MICHAEL SKINNER   STACEY T SKINNER   JOHNNIE SKIPPER   STEVEN E SKROBISZEWSKI   LESZEK E SKULSKI   BOBBY SLABAUGH   MARY EMILY SLATE   NATHANAEL W SLATE   ADAM R SLATEN   TIMOTHY J SLATER   IVAN W SLATTER   
GARY T SLAUGHTER   JASON T SLAUGHTER   MARVIN Q SLAUGHTER   JESSE D SLAUTER   CATHARINE A SLAVENS   CHAD M SLAVENS   NATHAN T SLAVENS   RYAN DAVID SLAVENS   THOMAS J SLAVENS   RICK L SLAWSON   JAMES FLOYD SLEDGE   
KRISTIN P SLEDGE   NICHOLAS A SLEGR   STEPHEN R SLESINSKI   CATHY D SLIGER   JOSEPH JOHN SLIWKA   MONTEVILLE L SLOAN JR   SHANE P SLOCUM   HERSHEL SLONE   DERRICK U SMALL   MICHAEL S SMALL   RENEE C SMALL   
KEITH W SMALLEY   MICHAEL A SMALLEY   CURTIS SMALLS   MICHAEL SMALLS   TIMOTHY A SMALLWOOD   ROBERT WAYNE SMELLEY   STEPHEN C SMELLEY   KAREN M SMID   ROBERT W SMID   TERRY L SMILEY   HERBERT SMILING   
ALLAN M SMILLIE   AARON N SMITH   ALAN R SMITH   ANDREW S SMITH   ANNA M SMITH   ANTHONY L SMITH   BARRY E SMITH   BENJAMIN SMITH   BETTY SMITH   BILLY J SMITH   BRAD L SMITH   BRANDON K SMITH   BRETT SMITH   
BRIAN SMITH   BRIAN W SMITH   BRYAN L SMITH   BRYAN O SMITH   BUCK B SMITH   CAMERON B SMITH   CAROLYN D SMITH   CAROLYN H SMITH   CHARLES SMITH   CHARLES JASON SMITH   CHIP J SMITH   CHRIS SMITH   CHRIS T SMITH   
CHRISTOPHER G SMITH   CLAINE SMITH   CLAYTON C SMITH   CLINT T SMITH   CODY SMITH   CONNIE S SMITH   CORY A SMITH   CRAIG A SMITH   DANIEL L SMITH   DAVID ALVIN SMITH   DAVID L SMITH   DAVID R SMITH   DELMAR L SMITH   
DERRICK SMITH   DEWAYNE SMITH   DONALD D SMITH   DONNA JEAN SMITH   DONZELL A SMITH   DUSTIN E SMITH   EVAN ANDREW SMITH   FRANK SMITH   FRED SMITH   FREIDA M SMITH   GARY LEE SMITH   GEORGE W SMITH   
HOWARD M SMITH   IEON SMITH   JAMES E SMITH   JAMES E SMITH   JAMES G SMITH   JAMIE CRAIG SMITH   JAMISON R SMITH   JANICE G SMITH   JASON A SMITH   JASON C SMITH   JASON D SMITH   JASON R SMITH   JAY C SMITH   JEFFREY SMITH   
JEFFREY ALLEN SMITH   JERRY J SMITH   JERRY W SMITH   JIMMIE SMITH   JIMMY F SMITH   JODY E SMITH   JOEY D SMITH   JOHN A SMITH   JOHN D SMITH   JOHNATHAN BLAKE SMITH   JUSTIN CLAY SMITH   KAREN SMITH   KAY F SMITH   
KEVIN R SMITH   LARRY J SMITH   LARRY BRUCE SMITH   LEONA SMITH   LUCAS SMITH   MARK A SMITH   MARK H SMITH   MARVIN L SMITH   MARY C SMITH   MATTHEW T SMITH   MATTHEW W SMITH   MEGAN C SMITH   MICHAEL A SMITH   
MICHAEL D SMITH   MICHAEL J SMITH   MICHAEL P SMITH   MICHAEL S SMITH   MICHAEL T SMITH   MICHAEL W SMITH   NEOMA RENEA SMITH   NORMAN L SMITH   PATRICK SMITH   PAUL L SMITH   PAUL W SMITH   RANDALL C SMITH   RAY E SMITH   
RAYMOND R SMITH   REGGIE A SMITH   RICHARD CHARLES SMITH   RICKEY SMITH   RICKY G SMITH   RITA L SMITH   ROBERT A SMITH   RODNEY C SMITH   ROGER SMITH   ROGER A SMITH   ROGER P SMITH   RONALD B SMITH   RONDA K SMITH   
RONNIE T SMITH   RUSSELL G SMITH   RYAN M SMITH   SAMMY L SMITH   SCOTT SMITH   SHAWN SMITH   SHELBY D SMITH   SHERRY D SMITH   SUSAN SMITH   TED C SMITH   THOMAS SMITH   THOMAS R SMITH   THOMAS R SMITH   
TIM SMITH   TIMOTHY J SMITH   TIMOTHY A SMITH   TIMOTHY D SMITH   TIMOTHY W SMITH   TONY W SMITH   TROY T SMITH   UNTON LUMONT SMITH   WALTER H SMITH   WALTER S SMITH   WILLIAM D SMITH   WILLIE SMITH   ARTHUR W SMITH III   
LEWIS H SMITH III   LEONARD A SMITH JR   RICHARD L SMITH SR   BRIAN ALAN SMITHART   ASHLEY NICOLE SMITHERMAN   BRIAN S SMITHWICK   DONALD B SMITHWICK   DOUGLAS E SMITHWICK   JAMES H SMOAK   DEDRICK SMOTHERMAN   
SCOTTY L SMOTHERS   ROBERT SMUIN   RICK L SMUTNY   CONSTANCE R SNAPP   ADAM D SNAY   JIMMY SNELL   DAVID A SNELLENBARGER   CASPAR M SNELLING   MICHAEL A SNELLING   TYLER R SNELLING   FETIMA G SNIDER   
BRADLEY E SNODDY   JAMIE J SNODGRASS   STEVEN P SNODGRASS   ROBERT E SNOOK   KEVIN SNOW   WILLIAM J SNOW   STEPHEN B SNOWDEN   BRIAN K SNYDER   EDWARD S SNYDER   JEFFREY A SNYDER   JOSEPH J SNYDER   
MELISSA P SNYDER   REX A SNYDER   ROBIN SNYDER   STEVEN P SNYDER   TODD SNYDER   WALTER SNYDER   EMILE L SOFFNER   DAVID DONG-SOO SOHN   THOMAS J SOJKA   CAROL E SOKOL   KEVIN J SOKOL   ALFONSO SOLIS   
FERNANDO SOLIS   JOHNNY L SOLIS   PEDRO SOLIS   RAFAEL F SOLIS   ELIAS SOLIS-GOMEZ   B THAD SOLOMON   JOSEPH ALEXANDER SOLOMON   MELVIN D SOLOMON   TIMOTHY J SOLOS   ANDREW J SOMMER   ANTHONY J SOMMER   
JOEL D SOMMER   NICHOLE L SONCK   TIMOTHY SONNENBERG   BRANDON S SONNENFELT   LAWRENCE H SONSEL   ANIL SOORIM   JEFFREY J SOPO   CARY SORENSEN   DEBRA SORENSEN   JARED L SORENSEN   JOSEY SORENSEN   
LAYNE C SORENSEN   LYNN C SORENSEN   MISTY M SORENSEN   WILL D SORENSEN   BRENT SORENSON   DARIN L SORENSON   ROMMEL SORIANO   RONALD J SORTERS JR   DONALD D SORTOR   DAVID B SOSH   DAVID J SOSINSKY   
PEGGY L SOSSAMON   BONIFACIO SOTO   JOSE SOTO   ANDREW L SOULIGNE   JERED D SOUTH   STEVE SOUTHARD   WILLIAM B SOUTHER   WILLIAM R SOUTHERLAND   ANNA SOUTHERN   JAMES M SOUTHERN   JOE C SOUTHWOOD   
AARON E SOVEREIGN   COLLEEN K SOWDERS   DAVID G SOWELL   JESS SOWERS   EDWARD A SOWLES   DENNIS J SPADER   ROBYN A SPANN   SHAWN T SPANO   RICHARD K SPARGER JR   JEFFREY A SPARGO   DUANE SPARKMAN   
JASON HARWOOD SPARKS   KIRK SPARKS   OAKLEY SPARKS   WILLIAM J SPARKS   ROBERT D SPARKS JR   CHRISTY D SPEARS   MARK G SPECHT   DAVID L SPEED   JEFFREY S SPEER   PAMELA J SPEIDEL   MICHAEL D SPEIGHTS   MARK J SPELLAR   
CASEY B SPENCE   M L SPENCE   ROBERT E SPENCE   SANDRA L SPENCE   BRYAN H SPENCER   DONALD R SPENCER   DOUGLAS A SPENCER   KELLEY B SPENCER   MICHAEL W SPENCER   KEVIN L SPETH   DANNY R SPICER   
RANDY JOSEPH SPICER   TIMOTHY A SPIEGEL   DONNIE L SPIGNER   KELLY D SPIKES   WILLIAM L SPINKS III   STEVEN T SPIRES   JAMIE R SPIVEY   VIOLA P SPORTS   FARRON E SPRABARY   LARRY G SPRAGUE   TODD SPRAGUE   
GREGORY L SPRAYBERRY   WAYNE V SPREITZER   JOHN SPRING   WILLIAM L SPRINGBORG   CLARENCE P SPRINGER   JEFFREY L SPRINGER   LARRY J SPRINGER   JAMES T SPRINGS   WANDA E SPRINGS   RICKY STEVEN SPRINKLE   
WILLIE SPURLOCK   PHILLIP SQUYRES   CHRIS X L ST AMAND   JACQUES ST DON   BRANDON C STABBS   DAVID L STACKHOUSE   BONITA L STACY   DOUGLAS W STACY   MARSHALL R STADLER   VANESSA K STADLER   ANTHONY H STAFFORD   
BRIAN E STAFFORD   CASEY A STAFFORD   CASEY G STAFFORD   JAMES L STAFFORD   RONALD W STAFFORD   THOMAS F STAFFORD   THOMAS M STAFFORD   KIM R STAGGS   BRIAN STAHL   KEITH A STAHLE   DAVID R STALCUP   TERRELL STALEY   
MICHELLE F STALLARD   BILLY R STALLINGS   LYNN SUZANNE STALLINGS   RONALD E STALLINGS   WALTER MALONE STALLINGS   BRETT T STALNECKER   DARRIN L STALNECKER   DUSTIN L STAMER   ROGER D STAMEY   FLOYD E STANDRIDGE   
KAREN E STANEK   BILLY R STANLEY   DONALD K STANLEY   JAMES H STANLEY   JAMES C STANLEY JR   MICHAEL L STANPHILL   EARL D STANSBURY   JAMES R STANTON   SHIRRI S STANTZ   JARED STANWORTH   ROGER W STAPLES   
GENORA L STAPLETON   MARK STAPLETON   PAUL THOMAS STAPLETON   ALAN J STARK   CASEY R STARK   RAYMOND H STARK   BERNARD JOE STARK JR   SHAWNA M STARKS   TODD L STARKS   TRAVIS LEVEL STARKS   MARK A STARNES   
MICHAEL W STARNES   JAMES STARR   LINDA M STARR   MARIA L STARR   WAYNE R STARRETT   PETER J STARSZAK   ROBERT W STAUB   ALLEN E STAUFFER   DAVID A STAUFFER   DIRK A STAUFFER   ROBERT STAYNER   JAMES R STEARMAN   
DOUGLAS F STEBBING   RYAN R STECKELBERG   ORAL A STEED   CYNTHIA ROWLAND STEEL   CHARLES W STEELE   JOSHUA C STEELE   SILAS P STEELE   WILLIAM M STEEN   CHARLES BRADLEY STEGALL   CURTIS W STEGER   LANCE J STEIGER   
LAURENCE F STEIGER   AARON DALE STEIN   ASHLEY D STEIN   CARSTEN STEINER   JOHN D STEINKAMP   ELMER STEINLICHT   DAVID P STEINMETZ   JOHN C STEMANN   RAYMOND R STENDER   ROGER F STENDER   SHAWN DALE STENNETT   
ROBERT STEPAN   CHAROLETT D STEPHENS   CURTIS L STEPHENS   DONALD L STEPHENS   GARY D STEPHENS   GERALD T STEPHENS   JOE STEPHENS   JOSEPH D STEPHENS   LINDA L STEPHENS   RICKY A STEPHENS   SETH O STEPHENS   
SHAY D STEPHENS   SHERRY D STEPHENS   TIMOTHY S STEPHENS   KENNETH C STEPHENSEN   GEORGE STEPHENSON   TIMOTHY D STEPHENSON   WILLIAM D STEPHENSON   BRIAN STEVENS   JASON DEWAYNE STEVENS   MARK STEVENS   
MICHAEL C STEVENS   RHONDA M STEVENS   ROBERT K STEVENS   STABBY L STEVENS   TODD STEVENS   HAROLD V STEVENS JR   CARLOS L STEVENSON   GARY D STEWARD   RODERICK STEWARD   V LANCE STEWARD   EDWARD RANDALL STEWART   
GARY R STEWART   JAMES STEWART   JAMES B STEWART   JAMES NATHAN STEWART   JOHN W STEWART   JOSEPH H STEWART   LONNIE D STEWART   REGINALD STEWART   RICKY L STEWART   RITA A STEWART   SHAWN P STEWART   
STEVEN A STEWART   THOMAS A STEWART   TY D STEWART   WALTER STEWART   WILLIAM JASON STEWART   RICHARD STEWART JR   DANIEL L STIDHAM   TOMMY H STILES   CLAUDIA R STILL   JONATHAN R STILL   SHARRON L STILLMAN   
RONALD STILTNER   WILLIAM A STILWELL   JAY E STIMPSON   TIMOTHY W STINNEFORD   C W STINNETT   RAY F STINNETT   BRIAN T STITES   RICK A STIVER   JEFFREY L STOBAUGH   WILLIAM JOSEPH STOCK   KENNETH J STOCKS   
DOUG J STODDARD   DONALD STOFFEL   CHRISTOPHER LD STOKES   GEORGE D STOKES   JOHN G STOKES   LORIANN STOKES   MICHAEL STOKES   DAVID R STOLP   KENNETH G STOLP   RYAN W STOLP   JAY A STOLPA   J DEREK STOLTZFUS   
ALVIN STONE   CALVIN STONE   CLINTON R STONE   DENNIS L STONE   DENNIS W STONE   ERIC M STONE   HAROLD O STONE   JEFFERY STONE   JEFFREY STONE   JEREMY STONE   LOIS E STONE   MICHAEL I STONE   ROBERT J STONE   
TIMOTHY A STONE   WILLIAM B STONE   NEAL C STONEBACK   ARTHUR STONEY III   LARRY W STOOKSBERRY   DAVID A STOOPS   GARY L STOOPS   PAUL W STOOPS   DAVID S STOREY   JIMMIE L STOREY   MICHAEL K STOREY   ROBERT R STOREY   
JERILYN K STORM   MARK T STORNELLI   ROGER D STORY   PHILLIP N STOTT   VICTOR M STOUDEMIRE   KENNETH STOUT   RODNEY T STOUT   STEPHEN D STOUT   DAVID CRAIG STOVALL   RONALD L STOVALL   STEVEN A STOVER   
CHRISTOPHER A STOW   CHRISTIAN M STRABALA   ROY D STRACENER   ADAM J STRAHAN   ROBERT STRANG JR   J V STRANGE   MARK E STRATHERN   SUSAN D STRATHMAN   ROBERT J STRATMAN   ROGER E STRAUBINGER   ROSS E STRAUBINGER   
MICHAEL R STRAUGHN   BOB L STRAWN   CAMERON S STRAWN   JEFFREY L STRAWN   JEFFREY LLOYD STRAWN JR   NICHOLAS L STRBA   LEELAND STRBAN   DEREK W STRECKER   SHAUN D STREETER   GLEN STREETMAN   EDWARD B STREETT   
SARAH JANE STREICH   BURL A STRICKLAND   DAVID R STRICKLAND   GENE STRICKLAND   PATRISE STRICKLAND   RON B STRICKLAND   WILLIAM E STRICKLAND   MICHAEL LEE STRICKLIN   RANDOLPH STRINGER   CLINTORICE STRINGFELLOW   
RANDY STUART STROADE   BRENT STROCK   DANA C STROCK   LYNN E STROCK   GARY E STRODTMAN   RONALD L STROHKORB JR   CHRIS G STROHM   JEREMY C STROHM   DONALD F STROM   WAYLON L STROM   CORNELIUS M STRONG   
JOHNNY B STRONG   KENT D STRONG   LEON L STRONG   MICHAEL B STRONG   PATRICIA D STRONG   RYAN G STRONG   ARTHUR D STRONG JR   GREGORY L STROUD   R C STROUD   BRYAN J STROZIER   VALORIE L STRUNK   MICHAEL R STUART   
GARY STUBBLEFIELD   DONALD E STUCKEY   JAMES STUCKEY   MICHAEL R STUCKEY   RODNEY P STUDDARD   DANIEL R STUDLEY   BARRY L STUEVE   JUDITH STUFFLEBEAM   LILLIAN C STUHLMAN   STEVEN D STULLER   CHRISTOPHER A STULTZ   
CHRIS A STURGEON   WARREN L STUTHMAN   BARRY K STUTTS   DANNY W STUTTS   JARED A STUTTS   MARK A STYMIEST   JOSEPH R STYONS   JIMMY S SUAREZ   JOHN G SUAREZ   MARVIN SUBER   DANIEL SUCKOO   GARY L SUCKSTORF   
SHANE SUDA   W D SUDDARTH   STEVE A SUEHL   JACK S SUELL   RUSSELL W SUGGS   WILLIAM L SUKUP   DAVID A SULC   JASON A SULC   STEVE SULIMAN   PAUL SULLINS   BENTLEY SULLIVAN   GLENN DORAN SULLIVAN   GORDON MICHAEL SULLIVAN   
JIM A SULLIVAN   PATRICK M SULLIVAN   ROBERT DOUGLAS SULLIVAN   THOMAS R SULLIVAN   JAMES E SULLIVAN JR   KYLE R SUMMER   THOMAS W SUMMERFORD   KENNETH S SUMMERFORD JR   BRANDON T SUMMERS   EDWIN D SUMMERS   
JEREMY S SUMMERS   THANE ELDEN SUMMERS   J RONNIE SUMMERVILLE   JAMES LEON SUMNER JR   DAVID A SUMOSKI   WEIPING SUN   CODY JOE SUNDAY   JILL SURFACE   ROBERT W SURFACE   SCOTT A SURFACE   ANTHONY CHARLES SUSLIK   
KEVIN L SUTHERLIN   GEORGE D SUTTER   CANDACE L SUTTON   GARY WAYNE SUTTON   MARCUS L SUTTON   RONALD C SUTTON   WILLIAM LEE SUTTON   JENNIFER SVEC   JERRY SVEC JR   TERRY J SVIK   DIANE L SVITAK   DONALD G SVITAK   
JULIE K SVOBODA   KEVIN D SVOBODA   GERALD L SWAIN   MICHAEL RAY SWALLOW   STEVEN SWAN   DUSTIN L SWANK   MICHAEL A SWANK   EDWARD ANDREW SWANN II   CHRISTY O SWANNER   PAUL A SWEARINGEN   NOAH J SWEAT   
GARY SWEATMAN   MARTA J SWEEK   TRADD L SWEENEY   JOHNNY SWEET   STEPHEN J SWEET   RICHARD E SWEETMAN JR   COLLEEN ANN SWENSON   BRIAN L SWICK   JOSEPH M SWICK   ROBERT G SWICK   KYLE J SWIM   



WILLIAM H ABBEY   CURTIS ABBOTT   DONNIE L ABBOTT   SAMUEL D ABERNATHY   STEVEN CHAD ABERNATHY   DAVID J ABLER   CHRISTIAN ABRAHAM   LORENZO ABRAHAM   FREDERICK M ABRASSART   LINLEY ACHONG   DENNIS J ACKER    
DONALD E ACKER   REX ANTHONY ACKER   RICHARD K ACKERMAN   RAMONA ACKLEY   RONALD T ACKLEY   CHARLES ACKLEY JR   GLEN D ACKLIE   LEE G ACKLIE   ALEJANDRO ACOSTA   ANTONIO ACOSTA   HECTOR ACOSTA   MARIO ACOSTA   
MARTIN ACOSTA   CREST ADAIR   JASON DALTON ADAIR   ANGELO M ADAMS   BRENT W ADAMS   DANIEL B ADAMS   DOUGLAS B ADAMS   DOUGLAS E ADAMS   ERIC ADAMS   EZRA G ADAMS   GREGG T ADAMS   JAMES MICHEAL ADAMS   JEROMY W ADAMS   
JERRY M ADAMS   JON R ADAMS   KRISTINE ANN ADAMS   LORNE A ADAMS   MARY J ADAMS   MICHAEL S ADAMS   RANDALL COREY ADAMS   REBECCAH C ADAMS   ROB ADAMS   ROBERT T ADAMS   STEVE PHIL ADAMS   TERRY W ADAMS   
TIMOTHY J ADAMS   TRACY L ADAMS   WILLIAM CHASE ADAMS   DERICK A ADDISON   OLAWALE ABDUL QUADRI ADEBIYI   TYLER D ADER   WILLIAM D ADER   THOMAS WILLIAM ADESSA   HANSON MARK ADJEI-SARPONG   CHARLEY ADKINS   
RODNEY R ADKINS   RUSTY LEE ADLER   JERRY R ADRIAN   TRAVIS L AESCHLIMAN   FRANCISCO J AGBUNAG   AGUSTIN AGUIRRE   BALTAZAR AGUIRRE   MIGUEL AGUIRRE   PEDRO AGUIRRE   RAFAEL AGUIRRE   ROJELIO AGUIRRE   STEVEN R AGUIRRE   
WILLIE AGUIRRE JR   JOEL R AHRENHOLTZ   CHRISTOPHER U AINGS   DAVID A AIUTO   PAMELA A AJOLOKO   GLENN W AKER   SHAWN E AKER   NICHOLAS AKERMAN   JERRY D AKERS   RONALD L AKERS   DEAN C AKEY   JOHN EDISON AKIKI   
DARRELL C AKINS   ROBERT R AKINS   NOE ALAMBAR   RICHARD L ALANIZ   GREGORY K ALBERS   REGINA ALBERTSON   CHRISTOPHER P ALBRECHT   MICHAEL T ALBRECHT   RANDY L ALBRECHT   SCOT D ALBRECHT   TRAVIS A ALBRIGHT   
RUSSELL L ALCORN   GREGORY GENE ALDER   ROBERT A ALDER   ZANE ALDER   LYNN DAVID ALDRICH   SCOTT C ALDRICH   LAMON F ALDRIDGE   ROBERT B ALDRIDGE   ROBERT W ALDRIDGE   ANTHONY E ALEXANDER   ARLEY W ALEXANDER   
BRIAN S ALEXANDER   CHRIS ROGER ALEXANDER   JOSEPH ALEXANDER   JOSHUA J ALEXANDER   JUREK C ALEXANDER   KENNETH ALEXANDER   MATTHEW E ALEXANDER   PHILIP B ALEXANDER   ROBERT B ALEXANDER   ROBERT P ALEXANDER   
RONALD A ALEXANDER   THOMAS ALEXANDER   THOMAS A ALEXANDER   TIMOTHY L ALEXANDER   VANCE N ALEXANDER   CHERYL ALEXIS-MINGOES   JONATHAN ALFORD   JUSTIN M ALFORD   LARRY ALFORD   MONTY ALFORD   MONTY D ALFORD JR   
ROBERT D ALFORD   ROGER N ALFORD   DON D ALFORD JR   KEVIN ALFRED   DANIEL ALGAR   KICHELLE ALI   NADIA ALI   CYNTHIA E ALLBRITTON   DONALD R ALLBRITTON   BLAINE D ALLEN   BRIAN J ALLEN   BRUCE W ALLEN   CHARLES M ALLEN   
FRANCIS ALLEN   HENRY E ALLEN   JAMES ALLEN   JEFFERY D ALLEN   JEFFERY D ALLEN   JERRY MASON ALLEN   JIMMY E ALLEN   JOHN ALLEN   JOHN KENNETH ALLEN   JON E ALLEN   JOSHUA D ALLEN   KENNETH L ALLEN   KEVIN J ALLEN   
KEVIN N ALLEN   LLOYD R ALLEN   MARK L ALLEN   MARY S ALLEN   MICHAEL C ALLEN   NATHANIAL H ALLEN   NEVADA J ALLEN   PAUL M ALLEN   ROBERT L ALLEN   ROBIN D ALLEN   SCOTT ALLEN   SETH D ALLEN   TOMMY O ALLEN   TONY D ALLEN   
WILLIAM K ALLEN   DAVID E ALLEN JR   TRACY D ALLEN-SPARKS   EDMUND R ALLER   DOUGLAS E ALLEY   MARK K ALLIGOOD   LESLIE L ALLISON   MICHAEL ALLISON   SCOTT W ALLMENDINGER   JOSEPH P ALLMON   GEORGE B ALLRED   JACOB S ALLSOP   
ALBERT ALMANZA   KRISTEN M ALOUPIS   DUDLEY M ALPHA   SHANNON RAY ALSPACH   MICHAEL O ALTMAN   ALLEN L ALTSTADT   ERIC M ALTWINE   ROBERT J ALTWINE   TERRY G ALTWINE   SCOTT M ALUMBAUGH   ANTONIO ALVARADO   
JOSE J ALVARADO   MIKE S ALVAREZ   NICOLAS ALVAREZ   JUAN ALVAREZ-ACOSTA   DEVERN G ALVORD   J BROOK ALVORD   KELLY ALWARD   ISAAC C AMADOR   CAROLE AMAROSSO   JOSEPH AMAROSSO   CHRISTOPHER P AMBROSE   DAVID A AMBROSE   
JAMES R AMBROSE   JAMES J AMBROZ   KATHY AMENT   LISA KAY AMES   CRAIG M AMEY   JARRAD T AMICK   ROGER A AMSTUTZ   HOWARD S ANDERS   CHRIS L ANDERSEN   ELAINE ANDERSEN   GARY L ANDERSEN   RODNEY L ANDERSEN   
ALBERT A ANDERSON   ANTHONY A ANDERSON   ANTHONY R ANDERSON   BETTY L ANDERSON   BLAKE ANDERSON   BRADY L ANDERSON   BRENT L ANDERSON   BRIAN S ANDERSON   CARLA R ANDERSON   CHARLES E ANDERSON   CHRIS D ANDERSON   
CHRIS J ANDERSON   CHRIS L ANDERSON   CHRISTINA D ANDERSON   CRAIG L ANDERSON   CRAIG N ANDERSON   DALE ANDERSON   DANIEL N ANDERSON   DAVID A ANDERSON   DAVID L ANDERSON   DENNIS LEE ANDERSON   DUSTIN R ANDERSON   
EDWARD E ANDERSON   EMMETT ANDERSON   ERIC D ANDERSON   ERIC J ANDERSON   GERALD D ANDERSON   GERALD R ANDERSON   JAMES A ANDERSON   JAMES N ANDERSON   JAMES WILLIAM ANDERSON   JERIMY R ANDERSON   JESS L ANDERSON   
JIM H ANDERSON   JOHN E ANDERSON   JOHN M ANDERSON   JOHN PAUL ANDERSON   JOHN W ANDERSON   JOHNATHAN A ANDERSON   JOSHUA L ANDERSON   KEITH ANDERSON   KENNETH W ANDERSON   KEVIN D ANDERSON   LENNERT ANDERSON   
MARINETTE R ANDERSON   NATHAN E ANDERSON   NATHAN V ANDERSON   PATRICK J ANDERSON   PAUL ANDERSON   RICHARD E ANDERSON   ROBERT H ANDERSON   RYAN W ANDERSON   SHAWN M ANDERSON   SHAWN M ANDERSON   
STEVEN J ANDERSON   STEVEN K ANDERSON   TERRY D ANDERSON   THOMAS C ANDERSON   THOMAS COLEMAN ANDERSON   WILLIAM E ANDERSON   EDWARD B ANDERSON JR   EDWARD D ANDERSON JR   THOMAS EDWARD ANDERSON JR   
STEPHEN P ANDREASEN   RICK ANDRES   BILL G ANDREWS   CHARLES A ANDREWS   JAIME A ANDREWS   MICHAEL V ANDREWS   SCOTT A ANDREWS   WILLIAM H ANDREWS   TIMOTHY A ANDRUS   JAMES T ANGELL   ELENA ANGHEL   BRADY ANGLESEY   
JAMES ANGLIN   LAWRENCE J ANGOTTI   PATRICIA DIANN ANGOTTI   BARRY M ANNALORA   CORY ANSLEY   EDWIN M ANTICI   MICHAEL D ANTRUM   WAYNE AOKI   TODD APPLE   W L APPLE   VIRGINIA EILEEN APPLEBEE   DARRELL W APPLEGATE   
BROCK CHADWICK APPLETON   JOHN E ARCEMENT   RODERICK ARCENEAUX   JERRY D ARCHER   RICHARD T ARCHER   CURTIS B ARCHIBALD   MATTHEW ARCHIBALD   FRED H ARCHULETA   JAMES C ARD   JEFFREY W ARD   MICKEY D ARDERY   
DAMON E ARDIS   MARK A ARDUSER   BRIAN A ARENS   BRIAN J ARENS   INGE A ARENS   SHAWN M ARENS   BRANDON K ARGO   DARRIN ARIAS   THOMAS E ARLEDGE   FRANCISCO ARMENTA   BRANDT L ARMSTRONG   ERIC B ARMSTRONG   
ANDREW ARNOLD   JACOB R ARNOLD   JOSEPH P ARNOLD   LAADAH ARNOLD   LARRY L ARNOLD   NICHOLAS M ARNOLD   PAUL H ARNOLD   WILLIAM E ARNOLD   EDWARD ARNOLD JR   JOSE ARREDONDO   ROWANTA XAVIER ARRINGTON   
ANDRES ARROYO   GABRIEL ARROYO CALVILLO   ANTHONY B ARTAGAME   JASON B ARTAGAME   OTTO E ARTFITCH   BO A ARTHUR   LEON ARTIS   QUINCY ASAY   KEITH V ASBELL   SEAN C ASBELL   MARK A ASBY   BRIAN M ASCHLEMAN   JASON D ASHBY   
MATTHEW GRAYSON ASHBY   RUSTY S ASHBY   RUSTY S ASHBY JR   BERT REEDER ASHCROFT   ZACHARY H ASHCROFT   KELVIN D ASHE   JERRY L ASHLEY   MATTHEW HARRELL ASHLEY   THOMAS H ASHLEY   DARWIN L ASHLIMAN   KRISTEN B ASHMORE   
RONALD ASHWORTH   JOSEF ASKEW   JOSEPH P ASKEW   ROBERT R ASKEW   SCOTT S ASKEW   STEPHANIE D ASKEW   WILLIAM M ASKEW   WILLIAM TONY ASKEW   TIMOTHY R ASMUS   NICHOLAS M ASTLE   NIK ASTLE   DAN ATKIN   KENNETH ATKINS   
MARK ATKINS   WILLIAM M ATKINS   ISOM ATKINS JR   JEANETTE H ATKINSON   RICKY L ATKINSON   ZENOS ATMORE   ALEXANDER ATOIAN   JEFFERY B AUBURGER   ROBERT AUCONE   JAMES P AUGUSTIN   CHARLES R AULT   RAYMOND E AULTMAN   
JOHN A AUMAN   ERIC L AUSTIN   HERSHEL W AUSTIN   JAMES K AUSTIN   JASON S AUSTIN   JOEL D AUSTIN   JOSEPH R AUSTIN   RICKY C AUSTIN   ROBERT AUSTIN   ROBIN M AUSTIN   SCOTT D AUSTIN   SHAWN H AUSTIN   THOMAS E AUSTIN   
JOHN L AUTON   JOSE G AVALOS   EDWARD M AVAU   GARY WAYNE AVERETTE   RICARDO A AVERION   MICHAEL S AVERITT   GARY E AVERY   PATRICK JEROME AVERY   RANDY R AVERY   STEVEN BRIAN AVERY   LUIS F AVILA   MARTIN X AVILA   
RAFAEL A AVILA   FRANCISCO AVILA-AGUILAR   JOSE R AVILA-FUERTE   J F AVILA-GARCIA   RYAN J AXFORD   GEORGE T AYCOCK   BRIAN C AYER   SPENCER K AYERS   MOHAMMED AZEEM   ERIC G BABCOCK   KEVIN M BABCOCK   MARCUS K BABER   
PHILLIP BACH   MATTHEW D BACHMAN   JOHN R BACK III   CHRISTOPHER J BACKEL   GREGORY R BACKUS   KEVIN E BACON   LONNIE BACON   TERRY A BACOTE   JASON BAER   ROGER B BAER   AMY C BAGGETTE   GERALD E BAGGOTT   JERZY BAGINSKI   
ANTHONY BAGLEY   ROBERT C BAGLEY   JAMES M BAHM   CHARLES A BAILEY   CHRIS V BAILEY   DALE E BAILEY   DARRELL BAILEY   DAVID W BAILEY   EDWARD M BAILEY   FRANK BAILEY   GEORGE BAILEY   GREGORY DEWAYNE BAILEY   JIMMY J BAILEY   
LARAMIE S BAILEY   LARRY C BAILEY   MICHAEL D BAILEY   MICHAEL D BAILEY   MICHAEL L BAILEY   NATHAN D BAILEY   RALPH S BAILEY   RANDY S BAILEY   ROBERT BAILEY   WAYMON D BAILEY   TERRY D BAINE   ROBERT R BAINES   STEVEN R BAIR JR   
JOSHUA C BAIRD   MARTHA GRIFFIN BAIRD   AARON C BAKER   ADAM L BAKER   ANDREA R BAKER   ANTHONY E BAKER   BARRY A BAKER   BRUCE BAKER   CHAD A BAKER   DANNY BAKER   GAYLEN B BAKER   GENSIE J BAKER   IRA J BAKER   
JARRIOD B BAKER   JASON R BAKER   JEREMIE M BAKER   JERRY L BAKER   JOHN R BAKER   JOHN TIMOTHY BAKER   KENNETH M BAKER   KENT L BAKER   LATASHA G BAKER   LEA BAKER   LEONARD BAKER   MARSHA K BAKER   MARTIN H BAKER   
MICHAEL E BAKER   PHILLIP A BAKER   SCOTT R BAKER   SHARON S BAKER   WADE BAKER   WILLIAM R BAKER   WILLIS BAKER JR   CESAR BALDERAS   DEWAUN L BALDWIN   ISAAC E BALDWIN   JOHNNIE L BALDWIN   THOMAS D BALDWIN   
ROBERT LEE BALDWIN JR   CHARLES BALL   HEATHER D BALL   JOHNNY J BALL   MICHAEL J BALL   MICHAEL S BALL   STEVEN D BALL   TIMOTHY J BALL   JOHNNY J BALL SR   DAVID BALLARD   IRVING E BALLARD   JERRY D BALLARD   MARY ELLEN BALLARD   
TEX J BALLARD   ANTONIO BALTAZAR   SHANNON L BALTAZAR   RUSSELL J BALVIN   CRAIG M BANDUR   RANDALL BANDY   CHARLES E BANKS   JOHNNY L BANKS   PERRY BANKS   ROBERT R BANKS   WILLIAM E BANKS   WILLIAM T BANKS   
WILLIE CORNELL BANKS   OCTAVIS BANKS III   WALTER BANKS JR   CHRISTOPHER R BANKSTON   JEFFERY ONDUS BANKSTON   LARRY BANKSTON   ROBERT MICHAEL BARANSKA   WARREN E BARBEE   JASON S BARBER   BRIAN L BARBERY   
KENNETH D BARBOUR   JERRY BARCLAY   JON BARCLAY   BART R BARDWELL   THOMAS EDMUND BARELA   ALBERT W BARFIELD   JOHN K BARFUSS   SHELDON D BARFUSS   C E BARGER   DEWEY L BARGER   TYLER M BARGER   JOHNNY M BARGESSER   
MATTHEW D BARGSTADT   DOUGLAS W BARKER   HAL G BARKER   JOSEPH A BARKER   RUSSELL W BARKER   TIMOTHY J BARKER   JOHNNY G BARKLEY   JEFFREY P BARKMAN   CHARLIE ONARD BARKS   KEVIN E BARKSDALE   JAMES BARLOW   
KEENON D BARNARD   ERIC PAUL BARNER   ROBERT J BARNER   ALFRED BARNES   ANDREW R BARNES   CHARLES BARNES   JAMES E BARNES   JOEY DAVID BARNES   KENNETH E BARNES   KENNETH R BARNES   TRAVIS BARNES   WILLIAM H BARNES   
EDWARD BARNES JR   DERRICK D BARNETT   JAMES M BARNETT   JASPER BARNETT   JOSEPH E BARNETT   RONALD L BARNETT   DONALD BARNEY   KEN E BARNHART   ROGER L BARNHART   KENNETH E BARNHILL   SANDRA L BARNHILL   
BRENT L BARR   JOSHUA D BARR   WESLEY E BARRENTINE   CHRISTOPHER L BARRETT   RAFAEL DAVID BARRIENTOS   WALTER E BARRINEAU   LAURICE R BARRINEAU JR   CHARLES A BARRINGTON   WILLIAM GABRIEL BARRINGTON   TIM J BARRITT   
CHAD R BARRON   JASON DERRICK BARRON   KEITH BARRON   ANDREW C BARROWS   ROBERT J BARRY   WINSTON BARRY   KENNETH A BARTANEN   BRYAN C BARTLETT   CHRISTOPHER D BARTLETT   JEREMY L BARTLETT   ROGER D BARTLETT   
ROY L BARTLETT   ELNORRIS BARTON   BRIAN K BARTROM   CHARLES E BARWEGEN   JESSICA S BASHORE   RANDALL L BASHORE JR   ANTHONY R BASS   DAVID E BASS   DONNIE L BASS   ELLIS BASS   JOHN R BASS   JAMES R BASSETT   JOHN C BASSETT   
JASON L BASSHAM   TRAVIS L BATCHLER   DAVID A BATENHORST   ANGELA M BATES   BRIAN K BATES   DANIEL D BATES   JAMES E BATES   JOHNNY H BATES   RONALD D BATES   RONNIE L BATES   LEE W BATESOLE   MELVIN JASON BATSON   
THOMAS J BATTERBEE   WILLIAM H BATTISTE III   GREGORY S BATTLES   SUSAN J BATTS   JOHN BATY   JOHN FRANKLIN BATY   ADAM J BAUER   BRETT C BAUER   JEFFERY E BAUER   QUENTIN G BAUER   TREVOR T BAUER   TABITHA G BAUERMEISTER   
STANLEY W BAUGH   GARY G BAUGHAN   FRANKLIN A BAUGHMAN   LARRY E BAUMAN   SARA J BAUMANN   CHARLES J BAUMERT   ANTHONY C BAUMGARTNER   BRYAN BRUCE BAUMLER   TIMOTHY J BAUSMITH   SCOTT A BAXLEY   ROBERT S BAXLEY JR   
STEPHANIE RENEE BAXTER   DAVID N BAYLESS   RAY H BAYLESS   WALTER C BAYLIS   ANTONIO BAYLON   JESSE E BAYNES III   DALE J BAYS   HOMER L BAZEN   JOHN D BAZEN   BARRY L BEACH   CHARLES WILLIAM BEACH   MICHAEL BEACH   
SADIE E BEACH   TY A BEACH   JASON P BEAGLES   AMMON BEAGLEY   STEPHEN BEALE   MATTHEW BEAM   RAY GORDON BEAMON JR   ELIZABETH A BEAN   SONYA Y BEAN   TIMOTHY BEAN   WILLIAM J BEAN   YANCY WILLIAM BEAN   LARRY OLIVER BEAR   
JAMES ALAN BEARD   JAMES R BEARD   RANDY BEARD   SAMUEL T BEARD   STEVE BEARD   THOMAS STEPHEN BEARD   GEORGE BRIAN BEASLEY   JAMES A BEASLEY   SHANE A BEASLEY   PATRICIA BEATTIE   RANDEL G BEATTY   JEFFREY D BEAUMONT   
DAVID F BEAUPRE   JAMES BEAVER   MOLLY DIANE BEAVER   ANNA DENISE BEAVERS   BRIAN SCOTT BEAVERS   LACY D BEAVERS JR   JANET S BECHTEL   LAWRENCE J BECIGNEUL JR   BRIAN S BECK   JAMES W BECK   JACK G BECKER   
JEREMY M BECKER   JON S BECKER   MARY E BECKER   WILLIAM A BECKHAM III   ROBERT J BECKHAM JR   LEROY BECKLEY   KEVIN R BECKMANN   JAY L BEDDINGFIELD   GABRIEL BEDOLLA-ARROYO   BRIAN J BEEBE   DERRICK D BEECHAM   
TISHA BEECHING   KENNETH D BEED   RODNEY A BEER   NATHAN J BEERBOWER   CURT R BEERMAN   TREVOR J BEERS   MELISSA BEEVERS   WINCEL L BEGGS JR   JOSEPH M BEHIL   MARK A BEHMER   ALLEN C BEHR   DREW A BEISWANGER   
PAUL D BELCHER   TIMOTHY BELCHER   RICHARD N BELDING   AARON CRAIG BELL   BILLY L BELL   BRIAN J BELL   CHRISTOPHER B BELL   CLINT ALLEN BELL   DANNY Q BELL   DAVID BELL   DAVID J BELL   DEBORAH E BELL   GARY L BELL   
HEATH B BELL   JERRY BELL   RICHARD G BELL   ROBERT L BELL   STANLEY M BELL   STEVEN R BELL   WILLIE B BELL   LORRIE J BELLAR   GREGORY L BELLEW   CECIL BELLFLOWERS   DARIUS V BELLINGER   CHARLES PAUL BELLNIER   MARK A BELLOMY   
JOSHUA BELT   CANDACE J BELTZ   JERRY A BELTZ   LARRY L BELTZ   LEANN BELTZ   JOSE J BENAVIDES   JUDY M BENCINI   JASON N BENDA   TODD D BENDA   SEAN M BENDER   GARY W BENEDICT   GEORGE R BENEFIELD   SHAWN E BENEFIELD   
GREGORY A BENGE   DAVID L BENJAMIN JR   DAVID L BENJAMIN SR   DONNIE BENJAMIN   LESTER BENJAMIN   NATHANIEL BENJAMIN   JOHN M BENNER   AARON BENNETT   ALBERT B BENNETT   BLACEY B BENNETT   BOBBY R BENNETT   
CALVIN BENNETT   CHRISTOPHER B BENNETT   DANIEL C BENNETT   DAVID BENNETT   DONALD J BENNETT   JOHN L BENNETT   ROBERT H BENNETT   STEVEN S BENNETT   STEVEN W BENNETT   THOMAS E BENNETT   WALTER C BENNETT   
CORNELIUS BENNETT JR   RICHARD D BENOIT   BILLY REX BENSON   EARNEST BENSON   GENE W BENSON   JERRY BENSON   PETER E BENSON   RICKY D BENSON   STEPHEN THOMAS BENSON SR   JOHN BENTEU   APRIL J BENTLEY   
CHRISTOPHER W BENTLEY   JEFF B BENTLEY   MATTHEW A BENTLEY   JAMES K BENTON   THOMAS P BENTON   WILLIAM ALLEN BENTON JR   DEL BENZENHAFER   BARRY W BERG   DANIEL L BERGQUIST   THOMAS E BERGSTROM   HENOCK BERHANU   
ALBERTO C BERMUDEZ   DAVID BERNAL   BRENT J BERNER   CHAD M BERNHARDT   JILL E BERNHARDT   RANDALL W BERNHARDT   JOHN A BERNIER   STEVEN W BERNINGER   PATRICK S BERNSON   GAYLE BERRETT   ROBERT W BERRETT   
STEPHEN M BERRETT   BENJAMIN BERRIOS III   BEVAN M BERRY   BRIAN LOWELL BERRY   CALVIN BERRY   CHERYL BERRY   DAVID E BERRY   DERON JOEL BERRY   MICHAEL BERRY   PETER R BERRY   RICHARD BERRY   SHAWN L BERRY   
STEVEN D BERRY   TRACY L BERRY   TYREE BERRY   JAMES EDWARD BERRY JR   THOMAS BERRY JR   JAMES EDWARD BERRY SR   KEVIN E BERRYHILL   MICHAEL A BERRYHILL   SHANNON J BERRYHILL   KARL H BERSCHAUER   DAVID BERTASSO   
JOAN E BERWALD   ELMA M BESSINGER   BECKY J BESSMER   TERRY P BESSMER   TIM E BESSMER   ALLISON M BEST   BENJAMIN L BEST   JANICE E BEST   JIMMY L BEST   JOSEPH A BEST   THOMAS BEST   ALEJANDRO G BETANCOURT   
RAUL G BETANCOURT   CHARLES C BETTS   BRYON E BEUTLER   JOSEPH E BEVEL   STEPHEN R BEVINGTON   WILLIAM D BEVIS   AJIT KUMAR BHANOT   DENNIS D BICKEL   BILLY G BIDDLE JR   DENNIS S BIERING   JAMES P BIERMAN    JOEL J BIERMAN   
JAMES PAUL BIERNAT   VICKI BIGELOW   JOHN O BIGGS   CLAUDE E BIGGS JR   RAYMOND W BILLBROUGH JR   CAROLYN E BILLICK   CYNTHIA A BILLINGS   GEORGE C BILLINGS   JEREMIAH BILLS   WILLIAM A BILSING III   WILLIAM ALBERT BILSING IV   
JUSTIN T BILSTEIN   BRETT V BINGHAM   CRAIG R BINGHAM   GARRICK G BINGHAM   JEFFREY T BINGHAM   V GLADE BINGHAM   WALTER E BINGHAM   DONALD BINGMAN   TERRY L BINKARD   SUE A BINNEBOSE   THOMAS BINSFELD   JERRY D BIRD   
JOSEPH LOUIS BIRDNOW   PHILLIP BIRDWELL   CHRISTOPHER D BIRKBECK   BRYAN K BIRKES   ROBERT N BIRKS   BRIAN C BIRR   BO G BISHOP   EDDIE D BISHOP   JEFFREY K BISHOP   TAMEKA LASHAN BISHOP   MICHAEL B BITZKY   CARLA BIVENS   
MARK A BIVENS   TIMOTHY BIVINS   DAVID R BJORK   MICHAEL D BJORK   CHRISTOPHER J BLACK   JAMES R BLACK   JEREMY A BLACK   KENNETH BARRY BLACK   LEONARD E BLACK   SAMUEL R BLACK   SHELDON G BLACK   WILLIAM W BLACK   
GARY R BLACKBURN   J MICAH BLACKBURN   SUSAN L BLACKBURN   AMY R BLACKMAN   JAMES S BLACKMAN   RACHEL A BLACKMAN   ROBERT C BLACKMAN   GEORGE G BLACKMON   RENETHA D BLACKMON   SAMUEL R BLACKMON   MAX L BLACKMORE   
GREGORY S BLACKWELL   ANTHONY L BLAINE   EDDIE BLAIR   MELVIN ROY BLAIR JR   DANIEL M BLAISDELL   KEITH D BLAISDELL   DONALD A BLAKE   RICHARD T BLAKE   ROBERT W BLAKE   HARRIS T BLAKELEY JR   CHARLTON H BLAKELY   
DARRELL E BLAKEMORE   BARNEY CLARENCE BLAKNEY   GEORGE J BLAKNEY JR   BRADLEY E BLALOCK   RODNEY L BLALOCK   ROGER D BLALOCK   DOUGLAS L BLANCHARD   FLAVIO GARBANZO BLANCO   MICHAEL BLANCO   MICHAEL A BLAND   
MARK A BLANK   ROGER L BLANK   CARR E BLANKENSHIP   LARI BLANKENSHIP   LOMAR L BLANKENSHIP   MICHAEL D BLANKENSHIP   PAUL A BLANKENSHIP   THOMAS BLANKENSHIP   ERIC BLANSCETT   DON-ANDRE BLANSETT   JAMES T BLANSIT   
HORACE H BLATON JR   JAMES F BLAUVELT   TODD A BLAUVELT   TIMOTHY SCOTT BLAYLOCK   LARRY E BLEVINS   JAMES H BLEW   MATTHEW L BLITCH   THOMAS A BLITCH   GREGORY L BLOOM   CODY M BLOOMQUIST   DENNIS D BLOOMQUIST   
RODNEY D BLOOMQUIST   JAMES W BLOSKIS   RUSSELL WAYNE BLOUNT   TERRY T BLOUNT   LESLIE W BLUE   SHANNON D BLUE   TRAVIS D BLUE JR   ERIC D BLUM   MATTHEW L BLUME   RICHARD K BLUME II   DONNIE O BLYTHE   EMMANUEL BOATSWAIN   
BILLY A BOATWRIGHT   ROBERT V BOBAY JR   MARCUS D BOBO   LAVERNE MITCHELL BOCHETTE JR   TIMOTHY A BODIFORD   JAMES BODILY   DORIS A BOEHM   DENISE B BOERST   MICHAEL R BOETTCHER   JEROME D BOGAN   SCOTT J BOGAN   
ALLEN BOGGS   KURT A BOGNER   KINLOCK O BOGUE III   ROLAND J BOGUSZEWSKI   ELDEN L BOHANNON   LARRY J BOHLKEN   CYNTHIA L BOHMANN   BRIAN G BOHN   JAMES D BOHNER   BRETT A BOJRAB   JOSEPH H BOLAM JR   DENNIS A BOLDUAN   
JAMES E BOLEN   ORVILLE BOLEN JR   ANDREW B BOLIN   CHARLES W BOLIN   SONNY LEE BOLIN   BRANDON BOLLINGER   PETER HOWARD BOLLIS   DAVID E BOLT   BOBBY BOLTON   GARRY LEE BOLTON   RANDY MICHAEL BOLTON   STREAMER L BOMAN   
WILLIAM A BONCZYNSKI   AARON BOND   BENJAMIN K BOND   HUGHIE BOND   JEWELL R BOND   STEVEN V BOND   CHRISTOPHER D BONE   LARRY W BONE   MELODIE M BONE   PAUL J BONERTZ   ILLA BONG   LIONEL A BONILLA   SANDRA S BONNER   
TWUN O BONNER   JAMES G BONNOITT   RICHARD B BONNOITT   BILL M BONTA   DANIEL BONTRAGER   JAMES C BOOKER   JOHN KELLY BOOKER   KEISHA G BOOKER   ROCKEY DARYL BOOKER II   JOHN A BOOTHE   JOHNATHAN H BOOTLAND   
STEPHEN A BOOZER   CHARLES J BORDEN   ERIC A BORDEN   JONNEY RAY BORDEN   WILLIAM L BORDEN   ROBERT BORDERS   JOSEPH LEIGH BORDONARO   JACK W BOREN   JASON E BOREN   STEVEN B BOREN   LESLIE J BORER   RODNEY L BORER   
ROMAN J BORER   GARY L BORGMAN   FRED G BORT   JEFFREY A BORTON   BRIAN P BOS   PHILLIP BOSHEARS   LONNIE D BOSHELL   SHANNON J BOSSARD   STEVEN J BOSSARD   OTIS H BOSTIC   DARREL BOSTON   BRUCE W BOSWELL   
ROBERT A BOSWELL   SOURIPHAN BOUAPHASEUTH   ALLEN J BOUDREAU   PETER O BOUDREAU   STEVE P BOUDREAU   KEITH M BOUGHN   PERCY L BOULDIN   DARYL B BOUNDS   CHRISTOPHER E BOURASSA   ROBERT M BOURASSA   
AARON S BOUSER   JAMES ADAM BOUTWELL   LAWRENCE S BOUVIER   A JAY BOWCUTT   BRUCE BOWCUTT   WESLEY V BOWCUTT   KENNAN BOWDEN   MARK H BOWDEN   ROBERT BOWDOIN   KEVIN M BOWE   GORDON R BOWEN   WILLIAM M BOWEN   
WILBURN P BOWEN SR   WINFORD BOWENS   RICHARD L BOWERMAN   ELIZABETH W BOWERS   JUSTIN D BOWERS   LYNN A BOWERS   MELFORD C BOWERS   TOM BOWERS   GORDON W BOWLES   DEWEY J BOWLING   JOHN D BOWLING   
BRADD A BOWMAN   BRIAN E BOWMAN   GEORGE B BOWMAN   JAMES C BOWMAN   JOHN C BOWMAN   SHANNON D BOWMAN   ERIC BOWSER   BETTY L BOWYER   SAMUEL BOX   JOHN H BOYCE   SCOTT E BOYCE   ALANDIS EARL BOYD   
CHRISTOPHER M BOYD   CLINT BOYD   CRAIG D BOYD   DENNIS M BOYD   DONALD BOYD   JEFFERY M BOYD   MARK A BOYD   MICHAEL J BOYD   NATHANIEL BOYD   REGINALD E BOYD   TERRY BOYD   LARRY T BOYER   MARK D BOYKIN   BOBBY L BOYLES   
JADE R BOYLES   JOEL W BOYLES   ANNMARIE BOZEK   ALLEN G BRACEY   MICHAEL H BRACKEN   MICHAEL H BRADBURY   SHELTON H BRADBURY   CHRISTOPHER B BRADDY   DAVID BRENT BRADFORD   MILTON O BRADFORD   ROGER D BRADFORD   
TERRY BRADFORD   BRIAN J BRADLEY   JAMES S BRADLEY   MICHAEL D BRADLEY   WILLIAM E BRADLEY   JOSHUA P BRADOC   CURTIS W BRADSHAW   GLEN H BRADSHAW   BRETT E BRADY   TRAVIS A BRADY   BRANDON JAY BRAEGGER   
BRIDGETTE BRAEGGER   LYLE J BRAEGGER   LARRY G BRAGGS   NATHAN LANE BRALY   MICHAEL D BRAMES   JIMMY B BRAMLETT   JOHN R BRANCH   JOSHUA P BRAND   RONALD V BRAND   CALVIN BRANDENBURG   JAMES R BRANDENBURG   
JOHN BRANDENBURG   DANNY J BRANDL   ROBERT E BRANDL   DONNA J BRANDON   E L BRANDON   MARK BRANDON   ROBERT L BRANDON   DAVID BRANDT   RICK E BRANDT   TIMOTHY L BRANDT   STEVE BRANNEN   WILLIAM H BRANNOCK   
BILLY D BRANNON   ROBBIE BRANNON   STEVEN NICK BRANNON   RANDY BRANNUM   THOMAS M BRANT   IVONNE J BRANTING   KIRK R BRANTLEY   ROBERT BRANTON   MATTHEW LEWIS BRANTZ   MICHAEL R BRANZ   JOHN P BRASELL   
LINDA DIANNE BRASWELL   KEVIN R BRATCHER   VALERIE BRATT-LEAL   GREGORY A BRAUN   JEFFREY DONALD BRAUN   JOSEPH C BRAUN JR   MIKE W BRAXTON   ALVIN E BRAZELL JR   FRANK W BRAZELTON   JOSHUA MICHAEL BRAZIEL   
PATRICK NEAL BRAZIER   ALLEN E BRAZIER II   JESSE BRAZILE   JEREMY BREAUD   JOHN L BREDEHOFT   CARL BREECE JR   JOHN WAYNE BREEDS   DONNA MARIE BREES   SEAN D BREESE   JOHN FRANCIS BREEZE   CLAYBORN BRELAND   
CHRISTOPHER J BRENNAN   DANIEL BRENNAN   THOMAS E BRENNAN   C MONTE BRENNEMAN   MICHAEL W BRENTON   LOREN M BRENTS   KURTIS BRETEY   DENNIS R BRETSCHNEIDER   BILL D BREWER   BRANTLEY G BREWER   HAROLD E BREWER   
JEREMY L BREWER   JULIE D BREWER   MARGARET E BREWER   MICHAEL LEE BREWER   PHILLIP W BREWER   RICKY LYNN BREWER   SONO BREWER   WILLIAM B BREWER   WILLIAM BREWSTER   ROBERT BRICELY   DALE BRICKER JR   
JOHN MICHAEL BRIDGEFORTH   DAVID W BRIDGES   GREGORY BRIDGES   JARED BRIDGES   MARY B BRIDGES   RICKY BRIDGES   GEORGE BRIER   JEFFERY A BRIER   ALAN G BRIGGS   JOSEPH C BRIGGS   DALE C BRIGHT   DAPHNE A BRIGHT   
JAMES A BRILEY   RONALD J BRILEY   ROGER D BRIM   EDDIE BRIMBERRY   VINCENT L BRIMER   KEITH ALLEN BRINKLEY   PHYLLIS B BRINKLEY   DONALD R BRINLEY   GERALD BRINSON   STEVEN M BRISSEY   DANIEL J BRISSON   CHRIS BRISTOW   
ROBERT L BRISTOW   ANTONIO BRITO   DERRYL BRITT   STARLET J BRITT   RICHARD K BRITTON   BRIAN C BRIZENDINE   ALVIN BROACH   JOHNATHAN S BROACH   STEVE L BROACH   PENNY S BROAD   J CURTIS BROADBENT   LARRY B BROADHEAD   
MATTHEW N BROADHEAD   ROBERT K BROADHEAD   LEONARD L BROADNAX   LONNEY R BROADUS   RUSTY L BROADUS   JOSEPH BROCATO   CHADWICK J BROCK   CHRIS M BROCK   JASON M BROCK   MARY E BROCK   ROBERT M BROCK   
RON D BROCK   EDRICK J BROCKINGTON   MICHAEL A BROCKMAN   JOHN ROBERT BRODMAN   KENNETH BRODMAN   MARLON W BROEKEMEIER   CHARLES G BROGAN   DONALD M BROGAN   KERI J BROGREN   RYAN M BROGREN   DANIEL BROMLEY   
BRANDON BRONSON   COREY R BRONSON   JONATHON W BRONSON   ADAM W BROOKS   BLAINE MANUEL BROOKS   CHRISTOPHER A BROOKS   CHRISTOPHER SEAN BROOKS   DANIEL L BROOKS   DOUGLAS D BROOKS   EDWARD BROOKS   
EMORY L BROOKS   JEFF D BROOKS   JESSE M BROOKS   JOE BROOKS   JOHN E BROOKS   KERRY L BROOKS   LARRY BROOKS   MARTIN M BROOKS   PHILIP B BROOKS   RONNIE BROOKS   SHAUN R BROOKS   TODD S BROOKS   TROY A BROOKS   
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